A
b 4 Arif Habib Corp

TOGETHER WE

GROW

— ANNUA] REPOTt
2021









ARIF HABIB
GROUP

Since initiation, the Arif Habib Group has grown by
imagining possibilities and developing a blueprint to
convert them into reality. It has made a difference to
lives across Pakistan by being a responsible
investor supporting the country’s growth story and
boosting relevant sectors of national importance.

With an entrepreneurial essence and passion to
undertake business projects that fuel the growth of
society and economy, the Arif Habib Group has built
and continues to develop businesses in the areas of
financial services, fertilisers, cement, steel,
renewable energy and real estate development.

After having found a strong foothold in financial
services, the Group, over time, has diversified into
emerging business areas, with meaningful

contributions to Pakistan’s economy. The Group
draws strength from its own human capital, as well
as, its ability to forge strong partnerships with other
businesses and benefit from collective strength. To
continuously strive for quality and excellence are an
integral part of the Group’s business model and
these are not merely corporate slogans but the
formula for achieving success. An important part of
our strategy is to continue raising the bar.

With a strong belief, consistent and unwavering faith
in Pakistan’s immense growth potential, the Arif
Habib Group is committed to serve the country,
community and all its stakeholders reach maximum
potential  through  innovation, transforming
challenges into opportunities.



ARIF HABIB
CORPORATION LIMITED

Arif Habib Corporation Limited (AHCL) is the
flagship company of the Arif Habib Group. The
company took over the sole proprietorship business
set up by Mr. Arif Habib in 1990 and was
incorporated in 1994 as a public limited company
with a paid up capital of PKR 40 million.

AHCL was listed in 2001, with an initial public offering
(IPO) of one million shares, targeting to raise PKR 80
million in order to finance growth. Since its listing in
2001, the Company has distributed PKR 14 billion as
dividend (including specie dividend), PKR 720 million
by buying back 2 million shares (having face value of
PKR 10 each) at a price of PKR 360 per share in
2005-6 & PKR 1.225 billion by buying back 45.375

million shares (having face value of PKR 10 each) at a
price of PKR 27 per share in 2019-20 from its
shareholders. Currently the Company’s equity is PKR
21 billion built through retained earnings. Thus, by 30th
June 2021, the initial investors in the IPO of the
Company, have had a compounded all annualized
return of 27.65% (2001).

The Arif Habib brand, is today seen as the name
that assures a commitment to best practices and
putting its stakeholders first, which they have come
to expect of the Company striving to be the best in
its class.



ARIF HABIB
GROUP’S JOURNEY 1

Establishment of Arif
Habib Securities
Limited (Now Arif

Habib Corporation
Limited)

Establishment of
Asset Management
Company, Arif Habib

Investments (now

MCB-Arif Habib
Savings and
Investments Limited)

Acquisition of Sachal
Energy Development
(Pvt) Ltd (to set up
Wind Power)

Merger of Arif Habib
Investments and MCB Asset
Management

Launch of Naya
Nazimabad Housing
Project

Establishment of Arif
Habib Limited by
separating brokerage
business from Arif
Habib Securities
Limited

Acquired Rupali

Bank, renamed as

Arif Habib Rupali
Bank and then
Arif Habib Bank

Listing of Arif Habib
Corporation Limited
on Stock Exchange

Acquisition of Sukh Pakar

Chayn Gardens and
Thatta Cement

Acquisition of

ab Fertilizers
Limited




Achieved COD of
Aisha Steel’s

: Launch of Silk
expansion

Islamic Development
REIT, Pakistan’s first
developments REIT

Achieved Financial

Close for expansion

of Aisha Steel and
Power Cement

TR

Incorporation of
Black Gold Power
Limited for 660MW
Coal Power Project

Achieved COD of
Power Cement'’s
expansion

Establishment of Arif
Habib Commodities
(Pvt) Ltd

Acquisition of DH
Fertilizers

e \ Launch of Dolmen
City REIT, South
Asia’s first listed REIT

Establishment of
REIT Management
Company

Divestment of Arif

Habib Bank (now

v Summit Bank) and
Thatta Cement

Invested in Power Cement Limited

Acquisition of Javedan Cement
Limited

----x{ 2008

Invested in Fatima Fertilizer

(4 Company Limited, which was
established as a green field project Became a joint venture
partner in Aisha Steel

Mills Limited

Acquired stake in
ICPL (Dolmen City)
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CORPORATE
STRATEGY

Our Corporate Strategy aims at creating value for all stakeholders by maintaining and
improving our competitive position in the market.

This is achieved by continuously evaluating and acting in the best interests of our
stakeholders in response to the changing market conditions, both domestically, as well as
internationally. Towards this end, we optimise our financial and human capital while seeking
partnerships with other business houses having strong management teams to create and
expand viable business enterprises.

VISION

To be Pakistan’s leading Investment Company, which delivers both competitive financial
returns, together with having a positive impact on the country’s economy and its people
through responsible investing.

MISSION

Our mission is to excel in conceiving, developing and executing innovative projects across
business sectors, with the aim of maximising returns for stakeholders, while playing a significant
role in developing Pakistan’s economy and its integration into the world markets.

OBJECTIVES

» Maintain Industry Leadership
» Create new businesses to augment profitability for sustained economic growth
» Maintain operational efficiency and to achieve synergies within our resources

m Arif Habib Corporation Limited
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VALUES

AHCL is values-driven and this principle continues
to direct the business and the growth of the Arif
Habib Group companies. The core values which
reinforce the way we do business are:

INTEGRITY EXCELLENCE

. . We conduct our business We constantly strive to
fairly, with honesty and achieve the highest
with transparency. ' possible standards in our

day-to-day work and in the

Everything we do quality of the goods and
stands the test of public services we provide
scrutiny

UNITY O RESPONSIBILITY

O We work cohesively We continue to be
with our colleagues A responsible, as well as
across the group and v sensitive to the
with our customers and geographies,
partners around the communities and the
world, building strong environment in which we
relationships based on work, always ensuring
tolerance, that what comes from the
understanding and people goes back to the
mutual cooperation people many times over
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COMPANY
INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Asadullah Khawaja
Chairman

Arif Habib
Chief Executive Officer

Sirajuddin Cassim
Independent Director

Zeba Bakhtiar
Independent Director

Nasim Beg
Non-Executive Director

Samad A. Habib
Non-Executive Director

Muhammad Ejaz
Non-Executive Director

Kashif A. Habib
Non-Executive Director

Audit Committee

Sirajuddin Cassim - Chairman

Kashif A. Habib - Member
Muhammad Ejaz - Member
Management

Arif Habib - Chief Executive Officer
Mohsin Madni - Chief Financial Officer

Manzoor Raza - Company Secretary
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Bankers

Allied Bank Limited

Askari Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

Bank Al Habib Limited

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited
Faysal Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited

MCB Islamic Bank Limited
National Bank Of Pakistan
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited
Sindh Bank Limited

Summit Bank Limited

Soneri Bank Limited

The Bank Of Khyber

The Bank Of Punjab

United Bank Limited
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KPN aseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Legal Advisors

Bawaney & Partners
Akhund Forbes

Registered & Corporate Office

Arif Habib Centre, 23, M.T.Khan Road
Karachi-74000

Phone: (021) 32460717-9

Fax: (021) 32429653

Email: info@arifhaibcorp.com

Company website:www.arifhabibcorp.com
Group website: www.arifhabib.com.pk

CDC Share Registrar Services ited

CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Main
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi

Phone: (021) 111-111-500

Fax: (021) 34326053

URL: www.cdcrsl.com

Email: info@cdcrsl.com
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REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN ON
THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD

During the year under review, the Board of Directors
(the Board) of AHCL has performed their duties
diligently in upholding the best interest of shareholders’
of the Company and has managed the affairs of the
Company in an effective and efficient manner.

The Board has exercised its powers and has
performed its duties as stated in the Companies Act,
2017, the Code of Corporate Governance (“the Code”)
and the Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange
(the Rule Book) where the Company is listed.

The Board during the year ended 30" June 2021
played an effective role in managing the affairs of the
Company and achieving its objectives in the following
manner;

e The Board has ensured that there is adequate
representation of non-executive and independent
directors on the Board and its committees as
required under the Code and that members of the
Board and its respective committees has adequate
skill, experience and knowledge to manage the
affairs of the Company;

e The Board has formed an Audit and Human
Resource and Remuneration Committee having
approved respective terms of references, and has
assigned adequate resources so that the
committees perform their responsibilities diligently;

e The Board has developed and put in place the
rigorous mechanism for an annual evaluation of its
own performance and that of its committees and
individual directors. The findings of the annual
evaluation are assessed and re-evaluated by the
Board periodically;

e The Board has ensured that the directors are
provided with orientation courses to enable them to
perform their duties in an effective manner;

e The Board has ensured that the meetings of the
Board and that of its committees were held with the
requisite quorum, all the decision making were
taken through Board resolution and that the
minutes of all the meetings (including committees)
are appropriately recorded and maintained;

e The Board has developed a code of conduct setting
forth the professional standards and corporate
values adhered through the Company and has
developed significant policies for smooth
functioning;

e The Board has actively participated in strategic
planning process, enterprise risk management
system, policy development, and financial
structure, monitoring and approval;

m Arif Habib Corporation Limited

« All the significant issues throughout the year were
presented before the Board or its committees to
strengthen and formalize the corporate decision
making process and particularly all the related
party transactions executed by the Company were
approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Audit Committee;

e The Board has ensured that the adequate system
of internal control is in place and its regular
assessment through self-assessment mechanism
and /or internal audit activities;

e The Board has prepared and approved the
director’s report and has ensured that the directors
report is published with the quarterly and annual
financial statement of the Company and the content
of the directors report are in accordance with the
requirement of applicable laws and regulation;

e The Board has ensured the hiring, evaluation and
compensation of the Chief Executive and other key
executives including Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary, and Head of Internal Audit;

* The Board has ensured that adequate information
is shared among its members in a timely manner
and the Board members are kept abreast of
developments between meetings; and

e The Board has exercised its powers in light of the
power assigned to the Board in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulation applicable on the
Company and the Board has always prioritized the
Compliance with all the applicable laws and
regulation in terms of their conduct as directors and
exercising their powers and decision making.

The evaluation of the Board’s performance is assessed
based on those key areas where the Board requires
clarity in order to provide high level oversight, including
the strategic process; key business drivers and
performing milestones, the global economic
environment and competitive context in which the
Company operates; the risk faced by the Company’s
business; Board dynamics; capability and information
flows. Based on the aforementioned, it can reasonably
be stated that the Board of AHCL has played a key role
in ensuring that the Company objectives’ are achieved
through a joint effort with the management team and
guidance and oversight by the Board and its members.

A

Asadullah Khawaja
Chairman
Karachi: 29th September 2021




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Asadullah Khawaja

Chairman

Mr. Asadullah Khawaja is the Chairman of Arif
Habib Corporation Limited. He started his
professional career with United Bank Limited and
soon switched to investment banking with
Investment Corporation of Pakistan (ICP) where
he served in various executive positions before
taking charge as the Managing Director.

Mr. Khawaja also held the additional charge as
Chief Executive of Bankers Equity Limited (BEL)
and National Investment Trust Limited (NITL). His
foreign assignments include five years at
Pakistan Embassy in London as Investment
Counsellor. During his professional career he
has served as Chairman Packages Limited,
Chairman Pakistan Industrial Credit and
Investment Corporation (PICIC) and also the
Executive Director of Pakistan Credit Rating
Agency. Mr. Khawaja has also served on the
Board of Directors of prestigious institutions of
domestic and international standings and the list
of companies can be termed impressive. He has
also served as the Chairman of the Board of
PICIC Asset Management Company.

Mr. Khawaja completed his Bachelor of Arts in
1964 from Forman Christian College, Lahore.
Subsequently, he completed several local and
foreign courses on banking, securities, industries
management, investment analysis and portfolio
management. Moreover, he has participated in
various international seminars and workshops
on investment oriented issues.

Corporate Responsibilities
As Director

Pak Elektron Limited
Pioneer Insurance
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Mr. Arif Habib

Chief Executive

Mr. Arif Habib is the Chief Executive of Arif
Habib Corporation Limited, the holding
company of Arif Habib Group. He is also the
Chairman of Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited,
Aisha Steel Mills Limited, Javedan Corporation
Limited (the owner of Naya Nazimabad) and
Sachal Wind Power.

Mr. Arif Habib remained the elected
President/Chairman of Karachi Stock Exchange
for six times in the past and was a Founding
Member and Chairman of the Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited. He
has served as a Member of the Privatisation
Commission, Board of Investment, Tariff
Reforms Commission and Securities &
Exchange Ordinance Review Committee. He is
currently a member of the Prime Minister’s
Economic Advisory Council (EAC) and the
Think-Tank constituted by the Prime Minister on
COVID-19 related economic issues.

Mr. Habib participates significantly in welfare
activities. He remains one of the directors of
Pakistan Centre for Philanthropy (PCP), Karachi
Education Initiative (KSBL) and Karachi Sports
Foundation as well as trustee of Memon Health
& Education Foundation (MMI) and Fatimid
Foundation.

Corporate Responsibilities
As Chairman

Aisha Steel Mills Limited

Arif Habib Consultancy (Private) Limited
Arif Habib Foundation

Black Gold Power Limited

Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited
Fatimafert Limited

Javedan Corporation Limited

Karachi Sports Foundation

National Resources (Private) Limited
Pakarab Fertilizers Limited

Sachal Energy Development (Private) Limited

As Director
Arif Habib Equity (Private) Limited

Arif Habib Real Estate Services (Private)
Limited

m Arif Habib Corporation Limited

Fatima Cement Limited

International Builders and Developers (Private)
Limited

NCEL Building Management Limited

Pakarab Energy Limited

Pakistan Business Council

Pakistan Engineering Company Limited
Pakistan Opportunities Limited

As Honorary Trustee/Director

Fatimid Foundation

Habib University Foundation
Karachi Education Initiative
Pakistan Centre for Philanthropy




Mr. Sirajuddin Cassim

Independent Director

Mr. Sirajuddin Cassim, a Fellow Member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan,
started as a partner in Daudally Siraj &
Company, Chartered Accountants and has
remained engaged in financial, investment
advisory and corporate consultancy services
since 1985. With his extensive experience and
in-depth knowledge of accounting, tax laws,
corporate law, and corporate finance, he leads
the Audit Committee and inspires the
management at AHCL to adopt appropriate
measures to improve controls.

He has practical experience of preparing
prospectus/offer for sale documents of
numerous companies and had been pivotal in
their successful listing on the stock exchanges
of the country.

Mr. Cassim was a member of the Karachi Stock
Exchange and Islamabad Stock Exchange.
Over the years he has held various Board
Positions through which he has introduced
reforms and improvements. He has served on
the Board of Directors of the Karachi Stock
Exchange in the years 1990 and 1991 and has
also held the position of Vice President in 1993
and of President in 1995. He served as the
Chairman of the CDC in 1995. He was also the
Vice President of Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Managers from 1997 to 2000.

He has also served as the Executive Director
Standard Chartered Mercantile Leasing
Company Limited from 1989 to 1998. He has
vast experience of serving as member of the
Taxation & Fiscal and Banking & Fiscal
sub-committees of the Karachi Chamber of
Commerce & Industry.

Corporate Responsibilities
As Director

Platinum Securities (Private) Limited
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Ms. Zeba Bakhtiar

Independent Director

Ms. Zeba Bakhtiar is a renowned name all over She is honorary President for Diya women’s
Pakistan. She belongs to the province of football club (Pioneers of women'’s football in
Baluchistan, and is the daughter of Mr. Yahya Pakistan) and supports women’s empowerment
Bakhtiar, a prominent barrister and political and career development at every opportunity. In
figure in the history of Pakistan who had played September 2020 she was appointed President
a key role in framing of the 1973 Constitution of of Women’s Chamber of Commerce and
Pakistan as the attorney general, when he Industry.

served in Prime Minister’s cabinet.
Corporate Responsibility
Ms. Zeba Bakhtiar studied at St. Josephs

Convent Quetta, Karachi Grammar School, As President
Kinnaird College Lahore and Baluchistan
University. She began her acting career in 1988 Women’s Chamber of Commerce and Industry

from PTV. In 1999, she established a film
production company Nirvana films and in 2004
Sagar Entertainment for television production. In
2012 she was selected in the Eisenhower
Fellowship South Asia program to study
possibilities of using media for social change
and development. In 2017, she made a career
shift to her paternal family’s business of real
estate development in Quetta and began her
first real estate development project “Bakhtiar
Mall” in the heart of Quetta city.

m Arif Habib Corporation Limited




Mr. Nasim Beg

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Nasim Beg is the Chief Executive Officer of
Arif Habib Consultancy (Pvt.) Limited, along with
being the Vice Chairman of MCB-Arif Habib
Savings & Investments Limited, an Asset
Management Company that was conceived and
set up by him and which he headed as Chief
Executive till June 2011.

He qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 1970
and over the decades has had experience in the
business world, including manufacturing, as well
as in financial services, within and outside the
country. Before joining the Arif Habib Group, Mr.
Beg served as the Deputy Chief Executive of the
National Investment Trust, which he joined
during its troubled period and played an
instrumental role in its modernisation and turn
around. He also served as the acting Chief
Executive of NIT for a few months. He has also
been associated at top-level positions with other
asset management and investment advisory
companies.

Mr. Beg has also held senior level
responsibilities in the automobile industry. During
his tenure as the Chief Executive of Allied
Precision (a subsidiary of the Allied Engineering
Group), he set up a green field project for the
manufacture of sophisticated indigenous
components for the automotive industry under
transfer of technology licenses with Japanese
and European manufacturers.

His initiation to the financial services business
was with the Abu Dubai Investment Company,
UAE, where he was a part of the team that set
up the company in 1977. He was the founding
Chairman of the Institute of Financial Markets of
Pakistan, which was sponsored by the Securities
& Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).
He has served on several committees set up by
the SECP for developing the Capital Markets,
including the one that authored the Voluntary
Pension System. He has also held the
Chairmanship of the Mutual Funds Association
of Pakistan. In addition, he has also been a
member of the Prime Minister's Economic
Advisory Council (EAC).

Corporate Responsibilities

Arif Habib Consultancy (Pvt.) Limited (Chief
Executive)

As Director

Aisha Steel Mills Limited

Arif Habib Dolmen REIT Management Limited
(non-executive Chairman)

MCB-Arif Habib Savings & Investments
Limited (non-executive Vice Chairman)

Power Cement Limited (non-executive
Chairman)

Pakarab Fertilizers Limited

Pakistan Opportunities Limited
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Mr. Samad A. Habib

Non-Executive Director

Starting off with a career at Arif Habib
Corporation Limited; Samad built up his
experience in sales, marketing and corporate
activities working his way up through various
executive positions. Joining Arif Habib Limited in
2004, he led the company as Chairman and
Chief Executive playing a key role in the
strategic direction of the company where he
specialized in capital market operations and
corporate finance building achieving a range of
significant IPOs and private placements.

In 2011 he moved to Javedan Corporation
Limited as a part of the driving force behind the
transformation of the dilapidated cement plant
to a living community. At Naya Nazimabad,
Samad Habib has contributed to making a
positive impact on society providing a quality
lifestyle to the middle class of the city. His
dedication and optimism is set to further
transform the area with the largest commercial
precinct development in the city presently under
planning.

Corporate Responsibilities

Javedan Corporation Limited (Chief Executive)
Safemix Concrete Limited (Chief Executive)

As Chairman

NN Maintenance Company (Pvt.) Limited
As Director

Aisha Steel Mills Limited

Arif Habib Dolmen REIT Management
Limited

m Arif Habib Corporation Limited

Power Cement Limited

Arif Habib Equity (Pvt.) Limited

Arif Habib Foundation

Arif Habib Real Estate Services (Pvt.) Limited
Black Gold Power Limited

Memon Health and Education Foundation
Nooriabad Spinning Mills (Pvt.) Limited
Pakarab Fertilizers Limited

Pakistan Opportunities Limited

Rotocast Engineering Company (Pvt.) Limited
Sukh Chayn Gardens (Pvt.) Ltd.



Mr. Muhammad Ejaz

Non-Executive Director

Muhammad Ejaz is the founding Chief
Executive of Arif Habib Dolmen REIT
Management Limited, which has successfully
launched South Asia’s first listed REIT fund. He
has been associated with Arif Habib Group
since August 2008 and sits on the board of
several group companies. He has spear headed
several group projects when these were at a
critical stage during their execution.

Prior to joining Arif Habib Group, Ejaz has
served at senior positions with both local and
international banks. He was the Treasurer of
Emirates NBD bank in Pakistan and served
Faysal Bank Pakistan as Regional Head of
Corporate Banking group. He also served
Saudi-Pak bank (now Silkbank) as Head of
Corporate and Investment Banking. He also had
short stints at Engro Chemical and American
Express bank.

Ejaz did his graduation in Computer Science
from FAST, ICS and did MBA in Banking and
Finance from IBA, Karachi where he is a regular
visiting faculty member. He has also conducted
programs at NIBAF-SBP and IBP. He is a
Certified Director and also a Certified Financial
Risk Manager.

He actively participates in the group’s CSR
initiatives especially those which render
services in the fields of health and education
with emphasis on female literacy.

Corporate Responsibilities

Arif Habib Dolmen REIT Management Limited
(Chief Executive)

As Director

Javedan Corporation Limited

Arif Habib Real Estate Services (Pvt.) Limited
REMMCO Builders & Developers Limited
Sachal Energy Development (Pvt.) Limited
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Mr. Kashif A. Habib

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kashif A. Habib is the Chief Executive of
Power Cement Limited. Being a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(ICAP) he completed his articleship from A.F.
Ferguson & Co. (a member firm of Price
Waterhouse Coopers), where he gained
experience of a diverse sectors serving clients
spanning the Financial, Manufacturing and
Services industries.

He has to his credit four years of experience in

Arif Habib Corporation Limited as well as over a
decade’s experience as an Executive Director in

cement and fertilizer companies of the group.
Corporate Responsibilities

Power Cement Limited (Chief Executive)

As Director

Aisha Steel Mills Limited

Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited

MCB-Arif Habib Savings & Investments Limited
Arif Habib Equity (Pvt.) Limited

a Arif Habib Corporation Limited

Arif Habib Foundation

Arif Habib Real Estate Services (Pvt.) Limited
Black Gold Power Limited

Fatimafert Limited

Fatima Cement Limited

Fatima Packaging Limited

Nooriabad Spinning Mills (Pvt.) Limited
Pakarab Fertilizers Limited

Rotocast Engineering Company (Pvt.) Limited
Safemix Concrete Limited

Siddgsons Energy Limited




KEY MANAGEMENT

Mr. Mohsin Madni

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Mohsin Madni is the Chief Financial
Officer of Arif Habib Corporation
Limited. His role encompasses a wide
range of matters ranging from finance
and taxation.

Mr. Madni is an Associate Member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan (ICAP) and holds Master’s
Degree in Economics & Finance. He is
a member of Pakistan Institute of
Public Finance Accountants (PIPFA)
and Institute for Internal Controls, USA.
Mr. Madni completed his Articleship
from KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, where he
gained experience of diverse sectors
serving clients spanning the Financial,
Manufacturing, Trading and Services
industries.

Mr. Manzoor Raza

Company Secretary

Mr. Manzoor Raza is the Company
Secretary of Arif Habib Corporation
Limited. His role encompasses a wide
range of matters ranging from
corporate law to compliance.

He is a member of Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Managers
and has been associated with the Arif
Habib Group since 2003. He worked
with Arif Habib Investments Limited
(now MCB-Arif Habib Savings and
Investments Limited) before moving to
Arif Habib Corporation Limited in
2011.
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DIRECTORS’
REPORT

DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS,

The Directors of Arif Habib Corporation Limited
(AHCL) present herewith the Annual Report of your
Company and the audited financial statements for
the financial year ended on 30" June 2021 together
with auditors’ report thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

AHCL is the holding company of Arif Habib Group,
having diversified businesses consisting of financial
services, fertilisers, energy, cement, steel and real
estate. The Company also continues to be an
investor in the securities market.

THE ECONOMY

The year under review has been a period of V
shaped recovery in economic activities after the
shock of COVID-19 pandemic in the last year. The
recovery witnessed has been on the back of a
proactive stance of the government and the central
bank through various stimuli and supportive
facilities/policies to revive economic activity. Worth
mentioning are loan deferment facility, aggressive
monetary easing towards the end of FY20,
Temporary Economic Refinance Facility,
construction package. The economy posted a GDP
growth of 3.94% for FY21 as compared to negative
0.5 % in the previous year. This recovery resulted in
higher import bill (goods) of USD 54 billion up by
23% Year on Year, higher exports increasing by
USD 3.1 hillion to USD 25.6 billion, impressive 27%
growth in remittances, reaching at USD 29.4 billion
and lower Current Account deficit of USD 1.8 billion
which was 0.6% of GDP. Value of Rupee
appreciated by 6.3% during the year under review.
The total reserves position continued to consolidate,
reaching USD 24.4 billion by FY21 end, up 29% YoY.
Inflationary readings for the year settled at an
average of 8.9% for FY21.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the financial year, the Company posted a
consolidated profit-after-tax (attributable to equity
holders of the Parent Company) of PKR 7.5 billion
as opposed to PKR 2.6 billion during last year. This
translates to an earning of PKR 18.33 per share as
compared with an earning of PKR 6.39 per share
last year.
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On unconsolidated basis, the Company has
recorded a profit-after-tax of PKR 3.8 billion as
compared with loss of PKR 569.9 million in 2019-20.
This translates to earnings-per-share of PKR 9.49
as compared with loss-per-share of PKR 1.38 per
share recorded in the previous year.

The Board has recommended declaration of a final
Cash Dividend for the year ended 30th June 2021 at
PKR 3.00 per share i.e. 30%. This entitlement shall
be available to those shareholders whose names
appear on the shareholders’ register at the close of
business on 21st October 2021.

PERFORMANCE OF
ASSOCIATES

SUBSIDIARIES AND

Financial Year 2021 has proven to be a positive year
with respect to the financial performance of your
investee companies. Your Company’s diversified
portfolio has performed beyond expectations
yielding higher dividends for the holding Company in
the following year.

INVESTEE SEGMENTS AT A GLANCE
FERTILISERS

The Company has a significant investment in the
fertiliser sector with a total annual production
capacity of 2.7 million tonnes consisting, of plants at
Sadigabad, Shaikhapura and Multan under the
name of Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited
(FATIMA).

The operational and financial performance of
FATIMA remained strong during the period. Overall
production and sales volumes increased as
compared to same period last year mainly due to
production volumes from Multan plant which was
acquired last year. FATIMA generated net profit after
tax of PKR 15.4 billion from July 2020 to June 2021.

Post the sale of production and operating plants of
Pakarab Fertilizers Limited (PAFL), PAFL plans to
focus on trading of imported DAP and sale of
Liguefied Carbon Dioxide (LCO2) and is also
providing manpower services for operations and
maintenance of plants sold to FATIMA.



FINANCIAL SERVICES

In contrast to its performance in FY19 and FY20,
KSE-100 Index has had a stellar year gaining 38%
to close at 47,356 points. This was the highest yearly
return since FY14 of 41%. The operating
performance of the subsidiaries in this sector has
mirrored the Market's trend. Arif Habib Limited
(AHL) has recorded its highest ever profit of PKR
2.08 billion for the year ended on June 30, 2021 with

growth of 3,382% as compared to the previous year.

The equity of the AHL as at the balance sheet date
stood at PKR 5 billion (June 2020: PKR 3.3 billion),
translating into book value per share of PKR 84.10
(June 30, 2020: PKR 55.07).

For our asset management company, MCB-Arif
Habib Savings and Investments Limited (MCBAH),
the year under review has shown significant growth.
MCBAH showed significant growth and generated
net sales of over PKR 46.1 billion; resultantly as on
June 30, 2021, the Assets Under Management
(AUMSs) reached at PKR 155.4 billion compared to
PKR 109.3 billion as on June 30, 2020. MCB Arif
Habib posted profit after tax of PKR 376.4 million
compared to last year profit of PKR 257.7 million.
The Earnings per Share of current financial year
ended June 30, 2021 is PKR 5.23 as compared to
PKR 3.58 per share in the previous financial year
ended June 30, 2020.

STEEL

ASML produces Cold Rolled Coils (CRC) and
Galvanized Iron Coils (GI) of international quality
standards from imported Hot Rolled Coils (HRC).
The sales quantity achieved in the year 2020-21 was
379,622 tons compared to 258,453 tons achieved
last year, showing an increase of about 47%. The
total production for the period was 365,274 tons
compared to 277,800 tons, showing an increase of
about 31%. The revenue generated during the year
was PKR 55.12 billion, compared to PKR 29.78
billion achieved in 2019-20, showing an increase of
85%. The gross profit increased to 20.29%
compared to 7.95% achieved last year. The profit
after tax was PKR 6.4 billion compared to a loss of
PKR 616.6 million in the previous year translated
into basic earning per share of PKR 8.19 as
compared to loss of PKR 89 paisas last year.

CEMENT

Power Cement has increased its capacity to 3.6
million tons per annum from 0.9 million tons per
annum, making it one of the most cost-efficient and
the second largest unit in the Southern region,
which will help the company acquire a bigger market

share, making it a serious player in the cement
sector. The new plant is a complete state-of-the-art
European cement production line supplied by
FLSmidth, Denmark with the latest environmental
pollution control systems and technology for the
highest levels of energy efficiency and
maintainability. The emissions will be in compliance
with the World Bank and IFC Guidelines. Special
feature of the new plant is the installation of a
comprehensive quality control system. The
company has recorded a profit after tax of PKR 358
million compared to a loss of PKR 3.6 billion last
year.

WIND POWER

Sachal Energy Development (Pvt.) Limited (SEDPL)
is the first Pakistani owned Wind Power project
under CPEC to have achieved commercial
operations. SEDPL is also the first privately owned
Pakistani project to receive SINOSURE backed
financing and the first such project to receive
financing from ICBC, China. The company is
committed to supply clean energy to the national
grid through the National Transmission and
Despatch Company for 20 years. The company has
generated an after tax profit of PKR 1.9 billion with
an EPS of PKR 5.83.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

We expect economic activity to continue marching
onwards on the back of the pro-growth stance of the
government and central bank. Pressure on Current
Account deficit and value of Rupee is foreseeable
resulting in inching of inflation. Your Company’s
diversified portfolio is expected to perform better as
dividend income is expected to increase. Fertiliser
and real estate are expected to record growth in
their profitability whereas wind power is expected to
maintain profitability of last year. Financial services
and steel are expected to record decent profits and
cement is expected to achieve break even. On
overall basis company is expected to do better.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The risk management system devised by the Board
comprises of a wide range of finely tuned
organizational and procedural components and is
capable of identifying events and developments
impairing the going-concern status of the Company.
The risk management system is designed to
promote a balanced approach to risks at all
organizational levels, identify and analyse the
opportunities and risks at an early stage, their
measurement and the use of suitable instruments to
manage and monitor risks.
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With the Company’s key business being that of
investing, it has evolved its risk management system
as its investment strategy has evolved, in light of
which an overall annual review of business risks is
undertaken regularly to ensure that the
management maintains a sound system of risk
identification, risk management and related
systemic and internal controls to safeguard assets,
resources, reputation and interest of the Company
and shareholder.

The Company started with secondary market
investments and has always followed a policy of
diversification between sectors and companies and
at the same time, basing individual investment
decisions on fundamental analysis and following the
time-tested rule of value investing. The Company
manages risk by applying caution with respect to the
security selection; avoiding concentration risk,
ensuring adequate underlying collateral and
potential cash flows and assessing the capacity of
the counterparty. In addition, the Company has
played a continuing role through its representatives
in the development of basic capital market
infrastructure.

For its strategic investments, the Company has
developed risk management systems suited to such
investing. Business decisions are reached after
deliberation of comprehensive project analyses,
which identifies both potential risks and
opportunities. To manage the risk, the Company
focuses on core areas like governance by Board and
senior management, preparation and
implementation of policies and procedures, risk
monitoring, management information system, and
internal controls. The Company goes through a
systematic process of identifying and evaluating
risks and controls and, where necessary, improving
the ways in which risks are managed. As an ongoing
process and at least once each year, the
management reviews the financial reporting
statements and also statements regarding risk
management, corporate social responsibility,
integrity and compliance with the code of conduct,
the accounting manual, statutory provisions and
compliance with other rules and regulations.

For operational risk management, the starting point
has always been carrying out an in depth analysis
before making the investment, and supplementing
that with hiring of qualified and experienced
professionals to represent it on the Boards of
investee companies wherever required, applying
budgetary and other internal controls on such
companies through the Board members, continuing
review of performance of the investee companies
and taking corrective measures as and when
needed, including the dis-investment from
businesses if that becomes the right option.
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The Board has set up an Investment Committee,
with the responsibility of vetting and continuous
monitoring of all strategic investments. In turn, the
Company’s management staff is responsible for
providing the Committee with timely reports on the
strategic investments. The detailed Qualitative
Reports and Quantitative analysis on Risk
management is presented in note 33 to the financial
statements.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND LIQUIDITY

The Company has a policy to maintain a strong
capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence, sustain future development of
the business, safeguard the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefit for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Board of
Directors monitors the return on capital, which the
Company defines as net profit after taxation divided
by total shareholders' equity. There were no
changes in Company's approach to capital
management during the year and the Company is
not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

HUMAN RESOURCE

Your Company takes great pride in the commitment,
competence and ownership shown by its employees
in all realms of the business. We ensure long-term
employee development by seeking out the right
employees, making the most of their talents,
developing potential and ensuring employability.
We understand that investment in our employees
will ultimately result in a stronger and more effective
workforce. Employees are recognized and rewarded
based on their performance, which results in
enhanced retention and motivation across all levels.
All our operational activities are carried out
transparently and in lieu with our code of ethics, on
which there can be no compromise.

MATERIALITY APPROACH ADOPTED

The Board of Directors closely monitors all material
matters of the Company. In general, matters are
considered to be material if, individually or in
aggregate, they are expected to significantly affect
the performance and profitability of the Company in
accordance with the policy.



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Sustainable and responsible development has
remained one of our key concerns since inception
which is why we continue to encourage our group
companies to demonstrate responsibility and
sensitivity towards the people and environment in
which they operate.

We, at the Arif Habib Group are conscious of the
well-being of our employees as well as community at
large and have taken steps to ensure the safety of
our employees, customers, stakeholders; providing
support to our local communities.

Arif Habib Group companies run a sizeable CSR
program in Pakistan covering various sectors
requiring foremost attention, with a special focus in
the areas of education, healthcare, environment,
community welfare, sports and relief work.

The group companies focus on energy conservation
and all departments and employees adhere to
power conservation measures. It is our vision to
continue contributing to the economic growth and
stability in Pakistan through actively reinvesting in its
economy, its people and the sustainability of its
environment. The Group continuously endeavours
to support initiatives to reduce resource
consumption and encourage research into
renewable energy.

Your Company takes its contribution towards
national economy seriously and has always
discharged its obligations in a transparent, accurate
and timely manner. Details of the contributions
made by group companies are presented on Page
71.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

AHCL is listed at the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The
Company’s Board and management are committed
to observe the Code of Corporate Governance
prescribed for listed companies and are familiar with
their responsibilities and monitor the operations and
performance to  enhance the  accuracy,
comprehensiveness and transparency of financial
and non-financial information.

The Board would like to state that proper books of
accounts of the Company have been maintained
and appropriate accounting policies have been
adopted and consistently applied except for new
accounting standards and amendments to existing
standards as stated in note # 3 to the annexed
audited financial statements. Preparation of
accounts and accounting estimates are based on

reasonable and prudent judgment. International
Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, are followed in the preparation of the
financial statements. The system of internal
controls, including financial controls, is sound in
design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored. The financial statements of the Company
present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity. No
material payment has remained outstanding on
account of any taxes, duties, levies or charges. The
Company has no outstanding obligations under
gratuity, pension or provident fund.

The Company has a policy in place to nominate
directors on the board of each strategic investment
based on its stake in the company. Wherever
required, AHCL nominees and / or representatives
work with the management of each strategic
investee company on a detailed business plan and
budget, and performance is measured against the
budget and business plan. Progress of investee
companies is monitored periodically.

The Board hereby reaffirms that there is no doubt
whatsoever about the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern and that there has been no
material departure from the best practices of
corporate governance.

It has always been the Company’s endeavour to
excel through better Corporate Governance and fair
and transparent practices, many of which have
already been in place even before they were
mandated by law.

TRADING IN COMPANY’S
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

SHARE BY

All Directors including the Chief Executive, Chief
Financial Officer and Executives of the Company
were informed by the Company Secretary to
immediately inform in writing, any trading in the
Company’s shares by themselves or by their
spouses and to deliver a written record of the price,
number of shares and CDC statement within 2 days
of such transaction to the Company Secretary.

A statement showing the Company’s shares bought
and sold by its Directors, Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and
their spouses and minor family members is annexed
as Annexure-l. Except as disclosed in Annexure — I,
there has been no trading in Company’s shares by
any of other employee whose basic salary exceeds
the threshold of PKR 2,400,000 in the year, being
the threshold set by the directors for disclosure in
annual reports.
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COMPOSITION OF BOARD / COMMITTEES

Out of the total eight Directors, seven Directors are male whereas one Director is female. During the year, Ms.
Zeba Bakhtiar has been appointed as a Director on casual vacancy in place of Dr. Shamshad Akhtar, the
outgoing director. The composition of existing Board of Directors and its Committees is as follows

Investment Human Resource
. i Project p
Board of Directors Category Coﬁl:giltttee Disersrgliggtison & Remuneration
Committee Committee
Mr. Sirajuddin Cassim Chairman - Chairman
- - Independent
Ms. Zeba Bakhtiar (Female director) - - -
Mr. Asadullah Khawaja (Chairman) - - -
Mr. Nasim Beg - Member Member
Mr. Samad A. Habib ) - Member -
- _ Non-executive
Mr. Kashif A. Habib Member Member Member
Mr. Muhammad Ejaz Member - -
Mr. Arif Habib (Chief Executive) Executive - Chairman Member

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY

Those non-executive directors including independent directors of Arif Habib Corporation Limited who do not
hold a senior executive or management position or directorship in any group company may claim meeting fee
for attending Board of Directors meeting or any of Boards’ sub-committee meeting at the rate approve by Board
of Directors from time to time.

Payment of remuneration against assignment of extra services by any director shall be determined by the Board
of Directors on the basis of standards in the market and scope of the work and shall be in line as allowed by the
Articles of Association of the Company. Levels of remuneration shall also be appropriate and commensurate
with the level of responsibility and expertise. However, for an Independent Director, it shall not be at a level that
could be perceived to compromise the independence.

The Chief Executive Officer is the only executive director on the Board. Disclosure with respect to remuneration
package of chief executive, director and executives is presented in note # 29 to the annexed audited financial
statements.

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS

A statement showing the names of the persons who were directors of the company during the financial year
along with their attendance at Board and Committee(s) meetings is annexed as Annexure-II.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The shares of the Company are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. There were 3,356 shareholders of the
Company as of 30th June 2021. The detailed pattern of shareholding and categories of shareholding of the
Company including shares held by directors and executives, if any, are annexed as Annexure-lIl.

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

The key operating and financial data has been given in summarized form under the caption “Financial &
Business Highlights” on page 62.

INVESTMENT IN RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The value of investment made by the staff Provident Fund operated by the Company as per their respective
unaudited financial statements as of 30th June 2021 amounts to PKR 41.8 million.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, the Audit Committee continued to perform as per its
terms of reference duly approved by the Board. The Committee composition and salient features of its terms
of reference are also attached with this report.

AUDITORS

The present external auditors M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. (KPMG) shall retire at the conclusion of Annual
General Meeting on 28" October 2021. Keeping in view the best practices of corporate governance for
rotation of auditors, the Board of Directors, upon the recommendation of Audit Committee, has proposed the
appointment of M/s. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants as external auditors for the year ending
30" June 2022, at a fee to be mutually agreed. M/s. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants hold
satisfactory rating by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as required under their
Quality Control Review Program. Approval to this effect will be sought from the shareholders at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting scheduled on 28" October 2021.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL PRACTICES

During the financial year under review, the secretarial and corporate requirements of the Companies Act,
2017 and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (as applicable) have been
duly complied with.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2017, the three years term of the
present eight directors elected in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held in September 2019 will be
completed in September 2022. During the year under review, Dr. Shamshad Akhtar had resigned and was
replaced by Ms. Zeba Bakhtiar. The casual vacancy was filled within the prescribed timeframe.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In order to comply with the requirements of listing regulations, the Company presented all related party
transactions before the Audit Committee and Board for their review and approval. These transactions have
been approved by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors in their respective meetings. The details of
related party transactions have been provided in note # 36 of the annexed audited unconsolidated financial
statements.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors are grateful to the Company’s stakeholders for their continuing confidence and patronage. We
wish to place on record our appreciation and thanks for the faith and trust reposed by our Business Partners,
Bankers & Financial Institutions. We thank the Ministry of Finance, the Securities & Exchange Commission
of Pakistan, the State Bank of Pakistan, the Competition Commission of Pakistan, Central Depository
Company of Pakistan and the Management of Pakistan Stock Exchange for their continued support and
guidance which has gone a long way in giving present shape to the Company. We acknowledge the hard work
put in by employees of the Company during the year. We also appreciate the valuable contribution and active
role of the members of the audit and other committees in supporting and guiding the management on matters
of great importance.

For and on behalf of the Board

S it4

. //
Mr. Arif Habib Mr. Asadullah Khawaja
Chief Executive Chairman

Karachi: 29" September 2021
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ANNEXURE I

Statement showing shares bought and sold by Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their
Spouses and Minor Children

From 1st July 2020 to 30t June 2021

Name Designation Shares bought Shares sold Remarks
Mr. Asadullah Khawaja Chairman - - -
Mr. Arif Habib Chief Executive 6,971,000 - -
Mr. Sirajuddin Cassim Director - - 3
Mr. Nasim Beg Director 23,000 - Giftin
Mr. Samad A. Habib Director - - )
Mr. Kashif A. Habib Director - - -
Mr. Muhammad Ejaz Director - - B
Ms. Zeba Bakhtiar Director (Appointed during the - ) )
year on casual vacancy)
Dr. Shamshad Akhtar Former Chairperson . . .
(Resigned during the year)
Mr. Mohsin Madni CFO - - -
Mr. Manzoor Raza Company Secretary
Mr. Zohaib Yaqoob Head of Internal Audit - - -
Mrs. Lubna Khawaja Spouse of Mr. Asadullah Khawaja - - -

Minor children - - - -
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ANNEXURE Ii

Statement showing attendance at Board Meetings
From 1st July 2020 to 30t June 2021

Board of Directors i ; Eligible to Leaves
Designation Total attend Attended Granted Remarks

Dr. Shamshad Akhtar | Former Chairperson

(Resigned during the 4 4 4 - -
year)

Mr. Sirajuddin Cassim Director 4 4 3 1 -

: Director (Appointed
Ms. Zeba Bakhtiar on casuagl \P;fcancy) 4 - B} _ .

Mr. Asadullah Khawaja| Chairman (Appointed
during the year) 4 4 4 - :
Mr. Nasim Beg Director 4 4 4 - -
Mr. Samad A. Habib Director 4 4 4 - R
Mr. Kashif A. Habib Director 4 4 4 n B}
Mr. Muhammad Ejaz Director 4 4 2 2 .
Mr. Arif Habib Chief Executive 4 4 4 - .

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted committees both at the Board and Management
levels. Most of the Board Committees’ members are non-executive directors.

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE (BAC)

The committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors in discharging its responsibilities primarily in
terms of:

- evaluating and reporting financial and non-financial information to shareholders;

- reviewing the system of internal controls and risk management; and

- reviewing the business plan and determining that it reconciles with the Company’s vision, mission,
corporate strategy & objectives.

Additionally, the committee has the authority to obtain any information it requires from the management and
to meet directly with external auditors.

The Board of Directors has determined the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and provides adequate
resources and authority to enable the Audit Committee carry out its responsibilities effectively. The Board
gives due consideration to the recommendations of the Audit Committee. Among other responsibilities, the
terms of reference of the Audit Committee includes the following:

- determination of appropriate measures to safeguard the company’s assets

- review of quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements of the company

- ensuring coordination between the internal and external auditors of the company

- review of the scope and extent of internal audit and ensuring that the internal audit function has adequate
resources and is appropriately placed within the company

- consideration of major findings of internal investigations of activities characterized by fraud, corruption and
abuse of power and management's response thereto

- ascertaining that the internal control systems are adequate and effective

- determination of compliance with relevant statutory requirements

- monitoring compliance with the best practices of corporate governance and identification of significant
violations thereof
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Board of Directors i i Eligible to Leaves
Designation Total attend Attended Granted Remarks
Mr. Sirajuddin Cassim Chairman 4 4 3 1 -
Mr. Kashif A. Habib Director 4 4 4 - -
Mr. Muhammad Ejaz Director 4 4 3 1 -

The Internal Audit Department is headed by Mr. Razi Haider, ACA, having the requisite qualification and the
relevant experience to execute the duties of the department in line with the Internal Audit Charter.

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HR&RC)

The responsibilities of the Committee include recommendation of human resource management policies to the
Board, along with the selection, evaluation, compensation (including retirement benefits) and succession
planning of the CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit to the Board. It also considers and
approves recommendations of the CEO on matters of key management positions who report directly to CEO.

THE HR&RC is committed to develop and take decisions on Human Resource strategy and policy. The
Committee meets at least once in every six months. During the financial year under review, the Committee met
three times.

The terms of reference of HR&RC provides an overview of the Committee and outlines the Committee’s
composition and responsibilities. The document also includes recommendation on human resource
management, organizational development, training and development matters, management succession, and
continuous review of compensation and benefit policies and assessment of corporate culture.

Board of Directors i i Eligible to Leaves
Designation Total attend Attended Granted Remarks
Mr. Sirajuddin Cassim Chairman 3 3 3 - -
Mr. Nasim Beg Director 3 3 3 - -
Mr. Kashif A. Habib Director 3 3 3 - -
Mr. Arif Habib Chief Executive 3 3 3 - -

Investments & Projects Diversification Committee (IPDC)

The committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors in discharging its responsibilities primarily

with regard to:

- Reviewing new investment opportunities keeping in view various factors including risk, return,
diversification and growth;
- Continuous monitoring of the investments already made and recommending corrective strategies, if

required; and

- Reviewing the Key assumptions used by the management of investee companies to determine Fair values
of strategic investments.

The committee on a required/ directed basis to discharge its responsibilities and regularly reports to the
Board. During the year under review, five meetings were held.

Board of Directors ignati Eligible to Leaves
Designation Total attend Attended Granted Remarks
Mr. Arif Habib Chief Executive 5 5 5 - -
Mr. Nasim Beg Director 5 5 5 - -
Mr. Samad A. Habib Director 5 5 5 - -
Mr. Kashif A. Habib Director 5 5 5 - -
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ON RISK MANAGEMENT (ECRM)

ECRM is headed by the Chief Executive of the Company and includes Group executives. The purpose of the
committee is to assist the Board of Directors in developing and continuous monitoring of risk management
policies and other business related matters.

The terms of reference of the ECRM are to assist Board of Directors in developing, reviewing and approving
risk management policies, instituting special projects and reviewing the adequacy of operational,
administration and financial controls. ECRM meets on required/directed basis.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCE (ECHR)

The objective of ECHR is to review, monitor and make recommendations to the HR&RC to oversee the
Company's compensation and benefits policies generally, evaluate executive officer performance and review
the Company's management succession plan and set compensation for the Company's executive officers.
The ECHR is committed to develop and make decisions on Human Resource strategy and policy. The ECHR
meets on the advice of the Chairman and/or on the request of the members.
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ANNEXURE IiI

Pattern of Shareholding (Symbol : AHCL)

Categories of Shareholders as at 30" June 2021

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held | Percentage
Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children 14 329,303,461 80.64
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties 5 11,183,560 2.74
NIT & ICP 1 724,292 0.18
Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking 3 307.606 0.08
Financial Institutions. '
Insurance Companies 4 3,579,669 0.88
Modarabas and Mutual Funds - - -
General Public - Local 3,272 34,765,105 8.51
General Public - Foreign 1 29 0.00
Others 56 28,511,278 6.98
Total 3,356 408,375,000 100
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

(SYMBOL : AHCL)

Categories of Shareholders as at 30th June 2021

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
Muhammad Arif Habib 2 328,920,967 80.54
Sirajuddin Cassim 1 229,893 0.06
Asadullah Khawaja / Lubna Khawaja 3 81,006 0.02
Mohammad Kashif 1 35,290 0.01
Nasim Beg / Zari Beg 3 25,078 0.01
Abdus Samad 1 1,006 0.00
Muhammad Ejaz 1 121 0.00
Zeba Bakhtiar 1 100 0.00
Lubna Khawaja 1 10,000 0.00
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
Sharmin Shahid 1 8,674,000 2.12
Nida Ahsan 1 2,379,500 0.58
Tasnim Beg 1 105,000 0.03
Abdul Rahim Khawaja 1 25,000 0.01
Muhammad Shahzad 1 60 0.00
NIT & ICP 1 724,292 0.18
Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking

Financial Institutions. 3 307,606 0.08
Insurance Companies 4 3,579,669 0.88
Modarabas and Mutual Funds - - -
General Public

a. Local 3,272 34,765,105 8.51

b. Foreign 1 29 0.00
Others 56 28,511,278 6.98
Total 3,356 408,375,000 100.00
Shareholders holding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage
Muhammad Arif Habib 328,920,967 80.54
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
(SYMBOL : AHCL)

As of June 30, 2021

No. of Shareholders Share holdings' Slab Total Shares Held
735 1 to 100 18,321
697 101 to 500 210,921
502 501 to 1,000 398,042
875 1,001 to 5,000 2,087,959
205 5,001 to 10,000 1,533,919
88 10,001 to 15,000 1,092,590
229 15,001 to 500,000 16,689,214
21 500,001 to 5,870,000 41,937,993

1 5,870,001 to 6,815,000 6,811,074
1 6,815,001 to 8,675,000 8,674,000
1 8,675,001 to 76,755,000 76,750,967
1 76,755,001 to 252,170,000 252,170,000
3,356 408,375,000
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Pakarab Fertilizers Limited (PAFL) was
acquired by a consortium of Arif Habib
Group and Fatima Group in 2005 under the
Government of Pakistan’s privatization
programme.

PAFL was principally engaged in the manufacturing and
sale of chemical. The plant had undergone extensive
modernisation and improved processes were introduced
to maximise the output, while minimising the negative
impacts on the environment. The company became the
first Pakistani company to earn and sell Carbon Credits in
the international market.

Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited has acquired
manufacturing business of fertilizer and plants of PAFL
pursuant to an agreement between Fatima Fertilizer
Company Limited and Pakarab Fertilizers Limited.

The site area of PAFL comprises of 302 acres, which
includes area for the factory and the housing colony with
all amenities including medical centre, school,
management and staff clubs for recreation of employees
and their families.

A | I |
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- wFatima

\} / A Fertilizer Company Limited
\ a JV of Fatima and Arif Habib Groups

Nt Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited
= (FFCL) was set up as a joint
= N venture between the Fatima and
N\ N gt the Arif Habib Groups, as a
& Greenfield fertiliser complex,
iy (—\ e R having a production capacity of
— e AT 1.4 million tonnes, a fully
4 integrated  production facility
N located at Sadigabad, Rahim Yar
Khan near the Mari Gas Field,

smphea fan s AN B RALLT= hyti 308 o e which supplies its feed-stock.

": A The company now has a total annual capacity of

. 2.57 million tonnes consisting of plants at
«ll’lﬂph Sadigabad, Shaikhapura and Multan. The
e T ~Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock
T H'l.u“ i A1 Exchange

*\\H ‘~,; .lf :
Ip'l.“'h -:_“'
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FY ARIF HABIB

\d L IMITED
Arif Habib Limited (AHL) took over the
Group’s securities brokerage business in
2005 and has since then raised the flag
even higher. AHL is one of the largest listed
securities brokerage and investment
banking firms in Pakistan that has won
accolades both in Pakistan and abroad
from reputed ranking firms such as The

Asset, Asiamoney, Global Capital, CFA
Society and others over the years.

Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) has also recognized AHL’s
prominence by conferring the “Top 25 Companies Award” in
2020 (which is the 8th in the past decade). The firm offers
financial services in the domains of equity, fixed income,
money market & forex brokerage, investment banking
corporate advisory services. AHL holds significant market
share in brokerage and investment banking segments and
enjoys a strong relationship with top international financial
institutions. Besides Equity market, AHL offers Commaodities
Brokerage through its wholly owned subsidiary, Arif Habib
Commodities Limited providing commodities futures
brokerage services.
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MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments
Limited (MCBAH) is an Asset Management,
Investment Advisory and Pension Fund
Management Company in a joint venture
with MCB Bank.

It manages Open-end Mutual Funds, Pension Funds as well
as Discretionary and Non-discretionary Portfolios for
institutional and individual clients. MCBAH has been an
industry leader, known for setting international standards of
international best practices in delivering its fiduciary
responsibilities and in bringing innovative products to market,
including the use of technology in creating innovative
distribution channels. As of 30th June 2021, it had PKR
155.40 billion under management. The company is listed on
the Pakistan Stock Exchange.
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SACHAL ENERGY
DEVELOPMENT

Sachal Energy Development (Pvt.)
Limited (SEDPL) has commissioned
and operates a 50 MW wind farm at
Jhimpir, Sindh.

The Group believes that alternate sources of
energy are the way forward. SEDPL is
contributing to the national development by
reducing dependence on imported fossil fuels
and producing 136.5GWh of clean energy per
annum. The ground breaking ceremony of
SEDPL was performed by the Chinese
President as part of the CPEC-Energy Priority
Projects. SEDPL is the first Pakistani owned
Wind project under CPEC to have achieved
commercial operations. SEDPL also holds the
honour of being the first privately owned
Pakistani project to receive SINOSURE backed
financing and the first such project to receive
financing from ICBC, China. The company is
committed to supply clean energy to the national
grid through the National Transmission and
Despatch Company for 20 years.
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POWER CEMENT
SFUI G- S

Power Cement Limited (PCL) is engaged in
the manufacturing and sale of cement
complying with Pakistan’s as well as the
European Standards.

The plant is situated on M-9 Motorway in Nooriabad Industrial
Area, Jamshoro, Sindh. In addition to two existing production
lines having total production capacity of 900,000 tons clinker
per annum, PCL has installed a third line having production
capacity of 7,700 tpd clinker production and 8,500 tpd
cement grinding. The new integrated cement plant has been
supplied by FLSmidth, Denmark with the state of the art
proven European technology. With a production capacity of
3.40 million tons per annum PCL is the second largest
cement producer in the South. Power Cement's primary
target is the domestic market as it caters to the Southern
region of Pakistan. Its products are also exported to markets
located in the region. Power Cement plants are environment
friendly and the emissions from the PCL cement plants
comply with the World Bank/IFC Standards. The company is
listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.
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A.’ COMMODITIES

Arif Habib Commodities is a member of the
Pakistan Mercantile Exchange (PEMEX)
and provides a wide range of services to a
diversified client base that includes

corporations, financial institutions, and
high-net-worth individuals.

The company is committed to establishing a strong name for
itself in commodity market research and commodity
brokerage services of Pakistan Mercantile Exchange, Arif
Habib Commodities, with a professional team provides
premier services for investors with around the clock services.
The Company is committed to serve the national goal of
providing a trading platform for agricultural commodities, as
agriculture is Pakistan’s economy’s backbone. In this
context, it has played a pioneering role of acting as a market
maker of produce such as red chilies and is actively engaged
with a not-for-profit entity working on bringing more
agricultural crops on to the Exchange. The Company has
been ranked a top broker by the PMEX several times and
serves PMEX’s largest client base.
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AISHA STEEL MILLS LIMITED /
SHAPING THE ECONOMY

Aisha Steel Mills Limited (ASML), a listed entity,
is one of the largest private sector investments
in the value added flat-rolled steel industry in
Pakistan.

ASML started its commercial operation in 2012 and a
manufacturer of Flat Rolled Steel — Cold Rolled and Hot
Dipped Galvanized coils located in Port Qasim, Karachi- the
most suitable plant location for export markets. The name
plate production capacity is 700,000 metric tons.

It is the only Cold Rolled Coil (CRC) and Galvanized Coil (Gl)
manufacturer which is using brand new Japanese, Germany
and Austrian machinery for CRC, and SMS equipment for Gl
production, ensuring the best quality of CRC & Gl for its
customers
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ARIF HABIB DOLMEN

REIT MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Arif Habib Dolmen REIT Management
Limited (AHDRML); a joint venture
between the Arif Habib Group and the
Dolmen Group, was incorporated as a
public limited company (non-listed) in
2009 and registered under NBFC
Rules with the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP).

The objective of the company is to provide 360
degree real estate advisory, launch and manage
Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) on carefully
selected and commercially viable properties, with the
aim of bringing real estate investment within the
reach of common investors. The company launched
South Asia’s first listed REIT— Dolmen City REIT in
June 2015 and Pakistan'’s first Devlopmental REIT in
2021 with many other REITs in the pipeline.

AHDRML combines the expertise of two leading
groups, bringing together strengths in finance,
investment management, property development and
complete property management. Leveraging our
uniqgue combination of group strengths, first hand
industry experience, in-house expertise and close
cooperation with real estate experts; our real estate
advisory services support our clients throughout their
property life cycle from negotiation and acquisition,
highest and best use analysis, development
recommendations, architect brief, and design
evaluation, through to fund raising and execution.
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JAVEDAN

CORPORATION LIMITED

The Arif Habib Group has a significant
stake in Javedan Corporation Limited
(JCL) which commenced its operations
as a cement manufacturing plant back
in 1960.

As the city limits grew to envelop the plant and it was
surrounded by a dense residential area,
environmental concerns led to the group dismantling
the cement plant and launching a housing society by
the name and style of Naya Nazimabad. Naya
Nazimabad over the period has become a master
piece in the centre of city and has provided an
unmatched lifestyle to its residents. It has indeed
become a Mark of Pride for the city of Karachi.
Spread over 1,366 acres and located just 2km from
Sakhi Hasan, North Nazimabad, Naya Nazimabad
has significantly contributed in upliftment of
surrounding areas and the Group going forward
envisions providing opportunities to people to
completely transform the overall adjoining
areas/kachi abadi.

Being the only completely owned real estate
development of its time, the design includes a host of
amenities such as an international standard cricket
ground which has been host to several tournaments,
football ground, basketball ground (all with
academies) and extensive green areas with award
winning tree plantation. Further facilities such as one
of the largest mosques, with a pillar-less prayer hall,
in the subcontinent (nearing completion), educational
facilities, medical centre and hospital, and the largest
singular commercial precinct of its magnitude are in
various stages of planning or construction.

With the number of residents moving into their new
homes, and a large number of houses under
construction and approval stages Naya Nazimabad
is fast transforming from a developing area to
bustling community enjoying the enhanced standard
of living offered nowhere else within the thickly
populated city area. Naya Nazimabad is poised to
launch its apartments, commercial sites and Naya
Nazimabad Gymkhana Club House.
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AHCL 2021
AT A GLANCE

H Dividend income, 95%
B Mark-up on loans and advances, 3%
H Others, 2%

M Salaries and benefits, 50%
M Depreciation, 17%
B Others, 16%
Utilities, repairs & maintenances, 11%
M Travelling and conveyance, 3%
Legal and professional charges, 3%

H Reserves, 76%
B Paid-up capital, 18%
W Liabilities, 6%

B Long term investments, 72%

B Short term investments, 23%
B Other assets, 3%
Loan and advances 2%
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KEY FIGURES & HIGHLIGHTS

ON CONSOLIDATED BASIS

Operating Revenue Profit after Tax EBITDA Earnings per Share 2021
(Rs. in million) 2021 (Rs. in million) 2021 (Rs. in million) 2021 G
5,523.60 8,395.32 11,049.55 18.33
5,048.65 4,358.03 2,916.71 259.96 5,777.23 2,711.24 6.39 0.34
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Total Assets

. Total Equit Equity Attributable to Owners of Net Book Value per Share
(Rs. in million) Aozl (Rs. in mc!”iox) 2021 th% Pgrent Company (Rs) P 2021
‘ (Rs. in million) 2021
49,767.09 32,890.89 30,005.32 80.54
3,720.92 908.18
! ’Zozo 47’2013 25,362.30 23,306.00 23,275.58 21,528.78 62.11 51.36
aAl als 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

ON UNCONSOLIDATED BASIS

Operating Revenue Profit / (loss) after Tax EBITDA Earnings / (Loss) per Share
(Rs. in million) 2021 (Rs. in million) 2021 (Rs. in million) 2021 (Rs)) 2021
1,093.22 3,874.06 4,336.90 9.49
870.42 1,033.86 (569.88) (963.84) (227.81) (724.29) (1.38) (2.12)
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Total Assets Total Equity Net Book Value per Share T
(Rs. in million) 2021 (Rs. in million) 2021 Rs) : 2021 CEGEL CalEETen
(Rs. in million)
N N R

22.764.01 21,364.54 52.32 16,347.25

18,978.03 26,708.57 18,103.04 19,877.95 rass 381
2020 2019 2020 2019 : : 12,251.25 11,212.16
2020 2019 2020 2019
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FINANCIAL & BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

Six Years at a Glance

Year ended 30" June 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Profit and Loss Account (Rs. in million)

Operating Revenue 1,093.22 870.42 1,033.86 1,409.39 1,483.00 560.37
Realised and unrealised gain / (loss) on

investments 3,393.58 (1,001.07) (1,657.28) (237.14) 801.77 1,415.92
Operating & administrative expenses and

other charges (170.61) (115.51) (126.57) (118.03) (144.25) (133.36)
Other income 0.97 0.19 20.25 10.35 388.81 3.08
Finance cost (20.63) (195.85) (172.04) (116.46) (148.34) (277.67)
Operating profit 4,316.20 (246.16) (749.99) 1,054.22 2,140.52 1,842.94
Profit before tax 4,296.54 (441.81) (901.79) 948.12 2,381.00 1,568.35
Profit after tax 3,874.06 (569.88) (963.84) 820.99 2,391.37 1,281.12
EBITDA 4,336.90 (227.81) (724.29) 1,071.13 2,537.26 1,854.34

Balance Sheet (Rs. in million)

Share capital 4,083.75 4,083.75 4,537.50 4,537.50 4,537.50 4,537.50
Reserves 17,280.79 14,019.29 15,340.45 25,365.96  25,931.98 24,525.53
Property and equipment 61.04 61.59 25.27 30.32 36.59 43.44
Long term investments 16,321.39 15,325.67 16,403.15 27,572.49 28,128.15 28,810.29
Current assets 6,243.04 3,453.26 10,114.25 11,158.05 7,574.49 6,261.88
Current liabilities 1,140.57 759.12 6,830.62 6,363.88 4,374.72 4,929.69
Non-Current liabilities 258.90 115.86 - 2,678.37 2,890.81 2,771.72
Total assets 22,764.01 18,978.03 26,708.57 38,945.71 37,735.01 36,764.44
Total liabilities 1,399.47 874.99 6,830.62 9,042.24 7,265.53 7,701.41
Performance

Return on equity (%) 19.63% -3.00% -3.87% 2.72% 8.03% 4.38%
Return on Assets (%) 18.56% -2.49% -2.94% 2.14% 6.42% 3.36%
Return on capital employed (%) 19.97% -1.35% -3.67% 3.27% 7.58% 5.80%
Income/ expense ratio (x) 26.30 (1.13) (4.93) 9.93 10.28 4.20
Earning Asset/Total Asset Ratio (%) 99.59% 96.14% 99.57% 99.79% 99.35% 99.35%
Break-up value (PKR) 52.32 44.33 43.81 65.90 67.15 64.05
Leverage

Total liabilities to equity ratio (%) 6.55% 4.83% 34.36% 30.24% 23.85% 26.50%
Cost of debt (%) 9.00% 14.47% 9.34% 8.08% 10.18% 9.05%
Long term debt to equity ratio (%) 1.21% 0.64% - 1.09% 1.49% 0.51%
Interest cover ratio (x) 209.29 (1.26) (4.24) 9.14 17.05 6.65

m Arif Habib Corporation Limited



Year ended 30" June 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Liquidity
Current ratio (x) 5.47 4.55 1.48 1.75 1.73
Cash to current liabilities (%) 0.26 4.64% 6.25% 0.70% 0.89%
Valuation
Price earning ratio (x) 4.22 (21.75) (11.63) 19.15 7.82
Break-up value per share (PKR) 52.32 44.33 43.81 65.90 67.15
Cash dividend per share (PKR) 3.00 1.50 - 2.00 3.00
Dividend Declared (%) 30.00% 15.00% 0.00% 20.00% 30.00%
Dividend yield (%) 7.49% 5.00% 0.00% 5.77% 7.28%
Dividend payout ratio (%) 31.62% (107%) 0.00% 110.54% 56.92%
Dividend cover ratio (x) 3.16 (0.93) - 0.90 1.76
Market value per share (end of year) (PKR) 40.03 30.00 24.71 34.64 41.23
High (during the year) (PKR) 46.62 36.25 37.80 41.99 49.70
Low (during the year) (PKR) 29.11 19.01 18.52 31.36 35.74
Earnings Per Share (PKR) 9.49 (1.38) (2.12) 1.81 5.27
*Proposed
Shareholders' Return
Arif Habib Corporation Limited - annual total
return (%) 38.30% 21.41% -23.50% -5.51% 11.28%
Karachi Stock Exchange 100 Index - annual
return (%) 37.60% 1.53% -19.10% -6.17% 22.90%
Shareholders' return differential:
AHSL-KSE-100 Index (%) 0.70% 19.88% -4.40% 0.66% -11.62%
Graph for the year ended on 30t June 2021
AHCL KSE 100
155% -
145%
135% -
125% |
115% |
105% -
95% . . . . . . . .
s §& § § § § § § § § ¢
5 =2 o 5 > o < i) 5 L >
s 2 & S 2 a 3 i s < s

Jun-21 -

2016

1.27
0.51%

13.97
64.05
2.50
25.00%
6.34%
88.55%
1.13
39.45
64.55
36.00
2.82

-20.01%

10.00%

-30.01%
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2021 % AYoY 2020 % AYoY 2019 % AYoY
2021-20 2020-19 2019-18
Rupees in Rupees in Rupees in
million million million

Balance Sheet
Total equity 21,364.54 18.02 18,103.04 (8.93) 19,877.95 (33.53)
Total non-current liabilities 258.90 123.45 115.86 100.00 - (100.00)
Total current liabilities 1,140.57 50.25 759.12 (88.89) 6,830.62 7.33
Total equity and liabilities 22,764.01 19.95 18,978.03 (28.94) 26,708.57 (31.42)
Total non-current assets 16,520.97 6.42 15,524.77 (6.45) 16,594.31  (40.28)
Total current assets 6,243.04 80.79  3,453.26 (65.86) 10,114.25 (9.35)
Total assets 22,764.01 19.95 18,978.03 (28.94) 26,708.57 (31.42)
Profit and Loss Account
Operating Revenue 1,093.22 25.60 870.42 (15.81) 1,033.86 (26.65)
Gain / (loss) on sale of securities - net 204.62 (68.34) 646.38 910.80 63.95 18.25
Gain / (loss) on remeasurement of

investments - net 3,188.97 (293.57) (1,647.45) (4.29) (1,721.23) 491.04
Unrealised gain on remeasurement of

investment property - - - - - -
Administrative expenses (120.14) 4.25 (115.25) 12.44 (102.49) (3.50)
Impairment reversal / (loss) on

investments - - - - - -
Other incomes / (charges) - net (49.50) 74,318.28 (0.07) (98.26) (3.83) 162.38
Finance cost (20.63) (89.47) (195.85) 13.84 (172.04) 47.73
Profit / (loss) before tax 4,296.54 (1,072.48) (441.811) (51.01) (901.79) (195.11)
Taxation (422.48) 229.90 (128.06) 106.38 (62.05) (51.19)
Profit / (loss) after tax 3,874.06  (779.81) (569.88) (40.87) (963.84) (217.40)
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2018 %AYoY 2017 % AYoY 2016 %AYoY
2018-17 2017-16 2016-15
Rupees in Rupees in Rupees in
million million million

Balance Sheet
Total equity 29,903.46 (1.86) 30,469.48 484  29,063.03 (1.30)
Total non-current liabilities 2,678.37 (7.35) 2,890.81 4.30 2,771.72  (36.70)
Total current liabilities 6,363.88 4547  4,374.72 (11.26) 4,929.69 (14.61)
Total equity and liabilities 38,945.71 3.21 37,735.01 2.64 36,764.44 (7.15)
Total non-current assets 27,787.66 (7.87) 30,160.52 (1.122) 30,502.56 (9.86)
Total current assets 11,158.05 47.31 7,574.49 20.96 6,261.88 8.75
Total assets 38,945.71 3.21 37,735.01 2.64 36,764.44 (7.15)
Profit and Loss Account
Operating Revenue 1,409.39 (4.96) 1,483.00 164.64 560.37 (62.38)
Gain on sale of securities - net 54.08 (92.46) 717.13 (53.18) 1,531.72 3,131.91
Gain / (loss) on remeasurement of

investments - net (291.22) 11.16 (261.98) (56.41) (601.02) (116.22)
Unrealised gain on remeasurement of

investment property - (100.00) 346.62 100.00 485.21  100.00
Administrative expenses (106.21) (9.01) (116.73) (0.24) (117.01) (18.35)
Impairment reversal / (loss) on

investments - - - - - (100.00)
Other incomes / (charges) - net (1.46)  (100.40) 361.29 (2,822.49) (13.27) (92.77)
Finance cost (116.46) (21.49) (148.34) (46.58) (277.67) 14.92
Profit / (loss) before tax 948.12 (60.18) 2,381.00 51.82 1,568.35 (63.05)
Taxation (127.13) (1,326.04) 10.37 (103.61) (287.22) (248.30)
Profit / (loss) after tax 820.99 (65.67) 2,391.37 57.65 1,281.12 (71.14)
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HIGHLIGHTS

2021 %AYoY 2020 %AYoY 2019 %AYoY
2021-20 2020-19 2016-15
Rupees in Rupees in Rupees in
million million million
Balance Sheet
Total equity 21,364.54 93.85 18,103.04 95.39 19,877.95 74.43
Total non-current liabilities 258.90 1.14 115.86 0.61 - -
Total current liabilities 1,140.57 5.01 759.12 4.00 6,830.62 25.57
Total equity and liabilities 22,764.01 100.00 18,978.03 100.00 26,708.57 100.00
Total non-current assets 16,520.97 72.57 15,524.77 81.80 16,594.31 62.13
Total current assets 6,243.04 27.43 3,453.26 18.20 10,114.25 37.87
Total assets 22,764.01 100.00 18,978.03 100.00 26,708.57  100.00
Profit and Loss Account
Operating Revenue 1,093.22 100.00 870.42 100.00 1,033.86  100.00
Gain / (loss) on sale of securities - net 204.62 0.24 646.38 0.76 63.95 0.06
Gain / (loss) on remeasurement of
investments - net 3,188.97 3.66 (1,647.45) (1.94) (1,721.23) (1.66)
Unrealised gain on remeasurement of
investment property - - - - - -
Administrative expenses (120.14) (0.14)  (115.25) (0.14) (102.49) (0.10)
Impairment reversal / (loss) on
investments - - - - - -
Other incomes / (charges) - net (49.50) (0.06) (0.07) 0.02 (3.83) (0.00)
Finance cost (20.63) (0.02) (195.85) 0.23 (172.04) (0.17)
Profit / (loss) before tax 4,296.54 393.02 (441.81) (51.99) (901.79) (87.23)
Taxation (422.48)  (38.64)  (128.06)  (15.08) (62.05)  (6.00)
Profit / (loss) after tax 3,874.06 354.37 (569.88) (67.07) (963.84)  (93.23)
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2018 % AYoY 2017 %AYoY 2016 % AYoY

2018-17 2017-16 2016-15
Rupees in Rupees in Rupees in
million million million

Balance Sheet
Total equity 29,903.46 76.78 30,469.48 80.75 29,063.03 79.05
Total non-current liabilities 2,678.37 6.88 2,890.81 7.66 2,771.72 7.54
Total current liabilities 6,363.88 16.34 4,374.72 11.59 4,929.69 13.41
Total equity and liabilities 38,945.71 100.00 37735.01 100.00 36,764.44  100.00
Total non-current assets 27,787.66 71.35 30,160.52 79.93 30,502.56 82.97
Total current assets 11,158.05 28.65 7,574.49 20.07 6,261.88 17.03
Total assets 38,945.71 100.00 37735.01 100.00 36,764.44  100.00
Profit and Loss Account
Operating Revenue 1,409.39 100.00 1,483.00 100.00 560.37  100.00
Gain / (loss) on sale of securities - net 54.08 0.04 71713 0.48 1,5631.72 2.73
Gain / (loss) on remeasurement of

investments - net (291.22) (0.21) (261.98) (0.18) (601.02) (1.07)
Unrealised gain on remeasurement of

investment property - - 346.62 0.23 485.21 0.87
Administrative expenses (106.21)  (0.08) (116.73)  (0.08) (117.01) (0.21)
Impairment reversal / (loss) on

investments - - - - - -
Other incomes / (charges) - net (1.46) (0.00) 361.29 0.24 (13.27) (0.02)
Finance cost (116.46) (0.08) (148.34) (0.10) (27767) (0.50)
Profit / (loss) before tax 948.12 0.67 2,381.00 1.61 1,568.35 2.80
Taxation (127.13) (0.09) 10.37 0.01 (287.22) (0.51)
Profit / (loss) after tax 820.99 0.58 2,391.37  161.25 1,281.12  228.62
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SUMMARY OF CASH FLOWS STATEMENT

Year ended 30th June

3,000
2,000
1,000
i |
(1,000) -
(2,000)
(3,000)
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
M Net cash flows from operating activities M Net cash flows from investing activities
i Net cashflows from financing activities M Net change in cash and cash equivalents
M Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year M Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Net cash flows from operating activities (1,119.56)  1,803.15 1,207.52 (769.65) 1,936.53 (1,680.29)
Net cash flows from investing activities 1,576.92 174.72 (0.45) 2,127.28 341.93 2,406.47
Net cash flows from financing activities (627.89) (1,236.62) (1,362.68) (1,426.68) (910.62) (1,914.04)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (170.53) 741.25 (155.61) (69.05) 1,367.84 (1,187.86)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of the year (635.59) (1,377.03) (1,233.00) (1,154.74) (2,522.58) (1,334.72)
Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year (806.55)  (635.59) (1,377.03) (1,223.00) (1,154.74) (2,522.58)
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SHARE PRICE / VOLUME ANALYSIS

AHCL Share Price on the PSX

Month Highest (LHS) Lowest (LHS) Volume (RHS)
July-20 36.00 29.11 596,500.00
August-20 41.00 32.25 3,447,500.00
September-20 46.62 38.51 11,444,000.00
October-20 44.75 35.02 576,000.00
November-20 42.01 38.00 109,000.00
December-20 41.65 37.25 232,500.00
January-21 43.70 39.00 9,567,500.00
February-21 42.50 38.81 1,519,500.00
March-21 40.00 35.15 879,000.00
April-21 38.90 34.00 2,541,000.00
May-21 39.00 35.00 8,436,500.00
June-21 40.68 37.00 6,358,500.00
46.62 29.11 45,707,500.00
Share price movement at PSX during FY2021
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Investing in Pakistani Economy, Society & Environment

Annual Report 2021



CEO’s Message

Responsibility has always been a strong,
guiding value at the Arif Habib Group. While we
take our responsibility towards our shareholders
very seriously, we take responsibility towards
our community and environment equally
seriously; thriving businesses depend on a
thriving, sustainable society.

We have undertaken, across the Arif Habib
Group, to responsibly contribute to the
development of a vibrant society and help
secure a sound future for the planet.

Pakistan and its people have always been
resilient in the face of adversity, small and large,
but that in no way frees us of our responsibility
of playing our role in bettering the conditions
from which we found them.

And if we all come together, there is no stopping
us from achieving our potential.

At Arif Habib Group, we aspire to help realise
the potential of the society, support sustainable
measures and provide assistance to institutions
and welfare organisations across Pakistan. We
have reached well beyond our business
locations, impacting the lives of marginalised
communities.

Our Vision for Sustainability

We believe that Corporate Social Responsibility
is more than just philanthropy. It is a philosophy
that aims at maximizing the positive impacts
and minimizing the negative impacts of our
business operations on internal and external
stakeholders. This is done through strategic
engagement by embedding sustainability in our
core activities and through active stakeholder
engagement.

As a company, we want to be valued by society
and viewed as one that contributes to a better,
more sustainable future where the aspirations
of people are fulfilled. It is our aim to continue
contributing to economic growth and stability in
Pakistan through actively reinvesting in its
economy, its people and the sustainability of its
environment.

Investment in Targeted Areas

Our goal is charitable giving, and to better align
our objectives, the Arif Habib Foundation was

Arif Habib Corporation Limited

established. In the current year the Foundation
has donated almost PKR 56.65 million in an
effort to support different causes in accordance
with our CSR targets.

We hope to contribute and empower others in
eliminating the dearth of basic necessities,
which we do through partnerships with relevant
organisation.

Group companies have also donated ration
packages to families impacted by COVID-19.

Investing in Health

The importance of quality healthcare and the
lack of facilities could probably not have been
more clear than as they were at the emergence
of COVID-19. Pressure was put on an already
inadequate system and it was made more
evident than ever that even the most basic
health care remains inaccessible for the
masses.

Over the past many years, the Group has
played its role in investing in the better health of
our human capital and the communities in which
we work.

Group companies have contributed to various
causes which include but are not limited to
Shaukat Khanum Memorial Cancer Hospital
and Research Centre, Sindh Institute of Urology
and Transplantation (SIUT), The Patients'
Behbud Society for AKUH, Lahore Institute of
Health Sciences, Kharadar General Hospital,
Indus Hospital and The Kidney Centre.

Group companies support the Memon Medical
Institute (a project of the Memon Heath &
Education Foundation) to assist in achieving the
vision of providing accessible and affordable
quality healthcare and education to all with
dignity, respect and empathy. Memon Medical
Institute is soon to begin its expansion, to which
the Group has committed support.



Another hospital that the Group Companies support
is the Mukhtar A. Sheikh Hospital which is located in
the heart of Southern Punjab. Mukhtar A. Sheikh
Hospital opened its doors to general public in
November 2018. At its completion, the hospital will
include 500 beds and state of the art healthcare
facility, providing assessment and treatment of

common and complex medical conditions.

The Ali Habib Medical Centre (AHMC), an initiative
of Javedan Corporation Limited, located at Naya
Nazimabad has commenced operations. It has been
designed to cater to the primary healthcare needs of
the community, both within Naya Nazimabad and the
densely populated areas in the surrounding. Ali
Habib Medical Centre provides specialized health
consultation through consultant clinics and modern
diagnostic facilities in a pleasant environment with
well trained, dedicated staff. We believe the
promotion of good health, disease prevention and
management are essential to the wellbeing of
residents in the area.

AHMC has conducted several Medical Camps for its
community and adjoining neighbourhood to promote

the importance of regular check-ups for a healthy life.

Naya Nazimabad is also planning to commence
work on full scale tertiary hospital with an ultimate
capacity of 500 beds. The ground-breaking of the
Hospital is expected in the second quarter of FY
21-22.

In line with our commitment to lifesaving initiatives,
most group companies organised vaccination drives
against COVID-19 at their premises for employees
and their families.

Additionally, Naya Nazimabad also established a
“COVID Vaccination Centre” at AHMC in

collaboration with Government of Sindh — Ministry of
Health. To date thousands of people have been
vaccinated with the vaccines provided by the Sindh
Government.

Aisha Steel Mills Limited, organized a blood drive at
their site where large numbers of employees
participated to play their role.

Investing in Education

The Arif Habib Group is committed to reinvesting in
the improvement and advancement of our local
educational. We believe in investing in our youth
through providing them access to quality education
within the country. Access to quality education is a
critical factor not just to further develop the country
and its economy in the coming years, but also be
able to hold our own in the world space.

Group companies continue to support Habib
University Foundation (HUF), Institute of Business
Administration (IBA), Karachi School of Business &
Leadership  (KSBL), Lahore  University of
Management Sciences (LUMS), Ghulam Ishag Khan
Institute of Engineering Sciences and Technology
(GIKI), Namal Education Foundation and National
University of Sciences and Technology (NUST).
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In a bid to address the needs of education at the
grassroots level in far flung areas of Pakistan, Arif
Habib Group has partnered with Million Smiles
Foundation to set up a school Phullawai, Neelum
Valley, Kashmir to impart quality education.

Other causes supported by the Group include CARE
Foundation, Progressive Education Network, Bait us
Salam Welfare Trust, The Citizens Foundation and
The Hunar Foundation amongst others.

Investing in the Enabling Environment

A supportive operating environment for business and
industry is essential in creating a healthier economy.
At the Arif Habib Group we believe that engagement
with media and dialogue, capacity building,
contributing to professional development and
supporting networking opportunities for business is
part of our responsibility to the country.

During the year under review Sachal Energy and Arif
Habib Limited sponsored a number of capacity
development initiatives that were undertaken by
industry experts and associations.

Pakarab Fertilizer Limited is also engaged with The
Hunar Foundation, Karachi to build a technical
school for local population within its premises, while
Fatima Vocational Training Centre — Sadigabad has
been in operation since 2014.

Investing in Culture And Diversity

Many of the Group companies arranged celebratory
activities to commemorate the historic events of
Independence Day paying tribute to the homeland
which has allowed us to grow.

As a Group operating across the country we have
the opportunity to support various cultural and
sporting events. Naya Nazimabad’s cricket stadium
has been a popular host to many notable events over
the past few years. It has now added a football
stadium and basketball court along with training
academies to polish our youth’s talents while giving
them an outlet of fun and healthy recreation options.
Team building is one of Arif Habib Group’s core
focuses. We understand that a team performs well
only when all its members are in sync. Arif Habib
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Group companies arrange workshops, sporting
events and skill building activities to not just enhance
an individual's own capacity but also forge strong
bonds that improve communication and teamwork in
the workplace.

Investing in the Environment

In today’s world where climate change has become a
serious concern, we put ourselves at the forefront in
an effort to be a part of the solution. The Group
continuously endeavours to support initiatives to that
take measures to promote resource efficiency and
encourage research in renewable energy. We
believe that sustainable use of resources lies at the
heart of maintaining a healthy environment.

Renewable energy is the future of energy in this
country and around the world. We believe that in
order to address the issue indigenous sources of
power generation must be enabled and invested in.
For this purpose, the group has set up, SEDPL a
special-purpose company that is operating a 50 MW
wind farm at Jhimpir, Sindh. We hope to contribute to
a more sustainable future for the country’s energy
needs.

Naya Nazimabad has been designed with an energy
efficient approach with minimum cooling and heating
requirements in consideration of utilizing sunlight
and natural wind.

Group companies as a norm have carried out
plantation drives and adopted various areas around
Karachi, working towards beautification and
upliftment through restoration of long forgotten
beauty and renovation to include modernity.



GOVERNANCE & MANAGEMENT

Corporate Governance

As a major aspect of our way of thinking, we are
committed to creating value for all stakeholders and
maintaining uncompromising standards as we grow.

Transparency, accountability and adherence to
ethical practices, lie at the core of AHCLSs business
processes. Our Board of Directors has adopted
governance principles and approved policies to
direct AHCLs governance practices. Currently, our
Board has eight directors who effectively represent
and safeguard the interests of shareholders,
including minority shareholders.

The Board actively participates in key activities
including approval of budgets for capital and
operational expenditure, investments in new
ventures and issuance of further shares. The Board
also monitors Company operations by approval of
financial statements and dividends, review of internal
and external audit reports regarding internal controls
and their effectiveness. For the purpose of ensuring
standardisation, the Board has devised policies for
conducting business and ensures their monitoring
and implementation through an independent Internal
Audit department, which continuously reports, to the
Audit Committee.

Whistle Blowing

There exists a defined code of conduct within the
Company which has stipulated a whistle blowing
mechanism across the board. The Company
believes in the conduct of the affairs of its elements
in a fair and transparent manner by adopting the
highest standards of professionalism, honesty,
integrity and ethical behaviour. Our policies and
procedures are mature, enabling employees to raise
their concerns in confidence about possible
improprieties in all matters, without fear of reprisal.
No incidents or concerns were reported during the
year.

Succession Planning

A company is only as strong as the people it
employs. Developing our human resources is a key
focus at AHCL. As we continue our journey of
growth, the role and development of human

resources becomes all the more critical. Talented
people are at the heart of our efficiency driven
culture. The Company ensures it has at all times a
pool of talented people across all its functions, which
ensures availability of competent personnel for each
department, in terms of an individual's potential,
qualification, experience and professional attitude
amongst other factors.

We believe in nurturing their strengths by
empowering our team through challenging
opportunities which enhance their potential and
develop their abilities. The Group employs several
qualified professionals of varying experience at
different levels within the Group companies; this
allows the Company to draw upon talent and
experience so as to ensure smooth succession
planning.

Stakeholder Engagement

AHCL is fully committed to developing effective
working relationships with all our stakeholders and
makes efforts to resolve issues that occur while
carrying out its business dealings. We believe that
Company’s value depends on the trust placed in us
by our stakeholders and promote dialogue with them.
AHCL interacts with its stakeholders on a regular
basis through use of internal and external
communication. The frequency of engagements is
based on business and corporate requirements with
the following:

Shareholders and Investors
Customers and Suppliers

Banks and other lenders
Government functionaries and elected
representatives Media
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CRITERIA TO EVALUATE
BOARD’'S PERFORMANCE

At a time when accountability and performance assessment have become key metrics, self-evaluation
can be a difficult proposition. However, a high-performing company’s success is a function of the capacity
of its directors to provide a strategy and the way forward that is commensurate with the overall vision in
order to expand and flourish. The company, hence, endeavours to develop the capacity of its Board of
directors to improve both their personal and collective contributions to the overall development of the
company as well as the society. A quality Board that really adds value is not just a panel of
high-performing individuals but a balanced team that utilises its diverse skill sets and a culture that allows
them to function as one unit to make the most effective decisions for the betterment of the company and
environment it operates in. While the guidance from the chair is key, the participation of every Board
member is also paramount for its effectiveness.

Performance evaluation continues to gain importance and momentum within Boardrooms. Regulators
and institutional investors increasingly endorse performance evaluation as a prerequisite for good
corporate governance. The Board of Directors acts as a custodian of the shareholders’ money as well as
their priorities, and translates the same into the Company’s mission and goals. In order to uphold the trust
of stakeholders, the Board of Directors’ performance warrants assessment.

The Board of AHCL has established a mechanism to self-evaluate and has been doing so for several
years as a part of good governance. The main focus of the evaluation remains on strategic growth,
business opportunities, risk management, Board composition and providing oversight to the
management, the global economic environment and competitive context, amongst other areas.

In continuance of adhering to the Code, the Board undertook an evaluation on the following criteria to
assess its performance:

e Compliance with the legislative system in which Company operates, including Companies Act,
2017, Listing Regulations of the Stock Exchange, the Memorandum and Articles of Association of
the Company.

» Active participation in strategic planning process, enterprise risk management system, policy
development, financial structure, monitoring and approval.

e Hiring, evaluating, compensating and supporting the Executive Directors and other key positions
including Chief Executive.

» Appropriate constitution of Board Committees with members possessing adequate technical
knowledge and experience.

« Establishing adequate system of internal controls in the Company and its regular assessment
through self-assessment mechanism or/and internal audit activities.

* Ensuring presence of required quorum in Board and Committees’ meeting.

e Ensuring orientation and training of Board of Directors to enable them to perform their duties in an
effective manner.

» Ensuring adequate information is shared with the Board timely and the Board is kept abreast of
developments between meetings.

The overall performance of the Board measured on the basis of above mentioned parameters for the year
was satisfactory.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
ON ADHERENCE TO THE BEST PRACTICES
OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The audit committee has concluded its annual review of the conduct and operations of the Company
during financial year ended on 30t June 2021, and reports that:

. The Company has adhered in full, without any material departure, with both mandatory and
voluntary provisions of the listing regulation of Pakistan Stock Exchange, Company’s statement of
ethics and values and the international best practices of Governance throughout the year.

. Compliance has been confirmed from the members of the Board, the Management and employees
of the Company individually. Equitable treatment of shareholders has also been ensured.

. The Company has issued a “Statement of Compliance with the Best Practices of Code of Corporate
Governance” as stipulated in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019,
and the auditors have provided their review report there on.

. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied. Applicable accounting standards
were followed in preparation of financial statements of the Company and consolidated financial
statements on a going concern assumption basis, for the financial year ended 30t June 2020, which
present fairly the state of affairs, results of operations, profits, cash flows and changes in equities of
the Company and its subsidiaries for the year under review.

. The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have duly endorsed the unconsolidated
financial statements and consolidated financial statements of the Company under their respective
signatures before presenting the financial statements, for consideration and approval of the Board of
Directors. They acknowledge their responsibility for true and fair presentation of the financial
statements, compliance with regulations and applicable accounting standards and establishment
and maintenance of internal controls framework and procedures necessary for the purpose.

. Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. Proper and adequate
accounting records have been maintained by the Company in accordance with Companies Act,
2017.

. The financial statements comply with the requirements of the Fourth Schedule to the Companies
Act, 2017 and applicable “International Accounting Standards/International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS)” notified by SECP.

. All direct and indirect trading and holdings of the Company’s shares by Directors & Executives or
their spouse were notified in writing to the Company Secretary along with the price, number of
shares, form of share certificate and nature of transaction which were notified by the Company
Secretary to the Board with in the stipulated time. All such holdings have been disclosed in the
pattern of Shareholdings.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal control framework has been effectively implemented through an independent in-house
Internal Audit function established by the Board.

The Company’s system of internal control is sound in design and has been continually evaluated for
effectiveness and adequacy.

The Audit Committee has ensured the achievements of operational, compliance and financial
reporting objectives, safeguarding of the assets of the Company and the shareholders wealth
through effective financial operational and compliance controls and risk management at all levels
within the Company.

The Head of Internal Audit has direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the
Committee has ensured staffing of personnel with sufficient internal audit acumen.

Coordination between the External and Internal Auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency and
contribution to the Company’s objectives, including a reliable financial reporting system and
compliance with laws and regulations.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The statutory Auditors of the Company, M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants,
have completed their audit assignments of the “Company’s Separate Financial Statements”, the
“Consolidated Financial Statements” and the “Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019 for the financial year ended 30" June 2021 and
shall retire on the conclusion of the 27t Annual General Meeting.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed Audit observation and Draft Audit Management
Letter with the External Auditors. Final Management Letter is required to be submitted within 45 days
of the date of Auditors’ Report on financial statements under the listing regulations and shall thereof
accordingly be discussed in the next Audit Committee Meeting.

The Audit Firm has been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review Program of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and the firm is fully compliant with the
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) Guidelines on Code of Ethics, as adopted by the
ICAP. The Auditors attended the general meetings of the Company during the year and have
confirmed attendance of the Annual General Meeting scheduled on 28t October 2021

Keeping in view the best practices of corporate governance for rotation of auditors, the Audit
Committee has recommended the appointment of M/s. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants
as external auditors for the year ending 30" June 2022. M/s. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered
Accountants hold satisfactory rating by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as
required under their Quality Control Review Program.

Karachi: 29t September 2021 Chairman - Audit Committee
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Arif Habib Corporation Limited

Review report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“the Regulations”) prepared by the Board of Directors of Arif Habib
Corporation Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 30 June 2021 in accordance with the requirements of
regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review
of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or
to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions
and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only
required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out
procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether
the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2021.

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date: 1st October 2021
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH
LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

ARIF HABIB CORPORATION LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30t JUNE 2021

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1.  The total number of directors are 8 (eight) as per the following:

a. Male Directors : 7
b. Female Director : 1

2. The composition of board is as follows:

Category Names

Independent Directors Mr. Sirajuddin Cassim
Ms. Zeba Bakhtiar

Mr. Asadullah Khawaja
Mr. Nasim Beg

Other Non-executive Directors Mr. Samad A. Habib
Mr. Kashif A. Habib

Mr. Muhammad Ejaz

Executive Director Mr. Arif Habib
Ms. Zeba Bakhtiar

Female Director (Also mentioned above in the list of Independent
Directors)

3.  The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies,
including this company.

4.  The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5.  The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their
date of approval or updating is maintained by the company.

6.  Allthe powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the
Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7.  The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman / Chairperson and, in his / her absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

8.  The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the
Act and these Regulations.

9.  During the year, Ms. Zeba Bakhtiar has been appointed as a Director on casual vacancy who shall acquire the
directors training program certification within a period of one year from the date of appointment. Three directors
had already completed the directors’ training / education program earlier whereas remaining four directors are
exempt from attending the directors training program as per criteria mentioned under Code of Corporate
Governance.

10. No new appointments of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary or Head of Internal Audit were made
during the year under review. However their remuneration was approved by the Board of Directors and the HR
committee.

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the
board.
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12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee:

Mr. Sirajuddin Cassim Chairman
Mr. Kashif A. Habib Member
Mr. Muhammad Ejaz Member

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Sirajuddin Cassim Chairman
Mr. Arif Habib Member
Mr. Nasim Beg Member
Mr. Kashif A. Habib Member

c) Investments & Projects Diversification Committee:

Mr. Arif Habib Chairman
Mr. Nasim Beg Member
Mr. Samad A. Habib Member
Mr. Kashif A. Habib Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:

a) Audit Committee — 4 (four) meetings of the committee were held during the financial year.

b) HR and Remuneration Committee - 3 (three) meetings of the committee were held during the financial
year.

c) Investments & Projects Diversification Committee - 5 (five) meetings of the committee were held
during the financial year.

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function which is considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered
with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close
relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief
financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with.

Explanation as required under the regulations 6(1) is mentioned below:

Currently, Company has two eminent and seasoned independent directors out of total eight directors on
the Board. Both the independent directors have requisite competencies, skills, knowledge and experience
to discharge and execute their duties competently as per laws and regulations; therefore, the appointment
of a third independent director is not considered.

For and on behalf of the Board jd.l \:L .j
Arif Habib Asadullah Khwaja
Chief Executive Chairman

Karachi: 29t September 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT

To the members of Arif Habib Corporation Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Arif Habib Corporation Limited (the
Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017),
in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at
30 June 2021 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the unconsolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Annual Report 2021 B



Following are the Key audit matters :

S No Key audit matters

How the matters were addressed in our audit

1. Valuation of equity Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
investments equity investments, amongst others, included the
following:
Refer notes 13 and 19 to the
unconsolidated Financial - assessed the design and tested operating
Statements. effectiveness of the relevant controls in place

relating to valuation of equity investments;
We identified valuation of
investments in equity securities e compared and recalculated the fair valuation
as key audit matter because of of quoted equity investments with available
its significance to the external quoted market prices;
Unconsolidated Financial
Statements as a whole and . involved our own valuation specialist to assist
involvement of management’s us in evaluating the valuation techniques,
judgment and use of assumptions and methodologies used by
assumptions and estimates. management for valuation of unquoted equity
investments; and

e considered the Company’s disclosures of
equity investments in accordance with the
requirements of accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Information Other than the Consolidated and Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Reports Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information included in
the Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2021, but does not include the consolidated and unconsolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity
and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of
the Company'’s business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the
Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Amyn Pirani.

Date: 15t October 2021 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi
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STATEMENT OF UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30t June 2021

Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorised share capital 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000
Share capital
Issued, subscribed and
paid up share capital 5 4,083,750,000 4,083,750,000
Reserves
General reserve 4,000,000,000 4,000,000,000
Fair value reserve 20,085,153 20,085,153
Unappropriated profit 13,260,702,933 9,999,201,190
17,280,788,086 14,019,286,343
21,364,538,086 18,103,036,343
Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation - net 6 240,963,798 101,282,836
Lease liability against right of use assets 7 17,941,122 14,582,113
258,904,920 115,864,949
Current liabilities
Accrued expenses 8 5,761,262 28,706,598
Short term borrowings 9 1,102,687,110 670,828,552
Current portion of lease liability 7 14,782,306 12,754,406
Taxation - net - 27,772,826
Unclaimed dividend 17,338,597 19,062,446
1,140,569,275 759,124,828
Contingencies and commitments 10

22,764,012,281

18,978,026,120
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STATEMENT UNCONSOLIDATED OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30t June 2021
Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Properties and equipments 11 61,035,337 61,589,127
Intangible assets 12 606,095 -
Long term investments 13 16,321,392,392 15,325,669,912
Long term loan to a related party 14 134,970,641 134,970,641
Long term deposits and other receivable 15 2,964,728 2,537,030
16,520,969,193 15,524,766,710
Current assets
Loans and advances 16 634,834,491 34,561,656
Mark-up receivable 17 15,759,219 21,636,362
Prepayments and other receivables 18 15,648,067 649,189,817
Short term investments 19 5,238,368,312 2,712,628,138
Taxation - net 42,300,846 -
Cash and bank balances 20 296,132,153 35,243,437
6,243,043,088 3,453,259,410
22,764,012,281 18,978,026,120

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements

O 0w,

Chief Executive Officer

SO

Director

=

Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 30t June 2021

Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)

Revenue
Operating revenue 21 1,093,222,803 870,415,834
Gain on sale of securities - net 204,616,567 646,379,863
Gain / (loss) on remeasurement of investments - net 22 3,188,968,081 (1,647,445,278)

4,486,807,451 (130,649,581)
Administrative expenses 23 (120,143,129) (115,248,011)
Other income 24 969,400 191,872
Finance cost 25 (20,628,094) (195,847,381)
Other charges 26 (50,465,744) (258,383)
Profit / (loss) before tax 4,296,539,884 (441,811,484)
Taxation 27 (422,475,641) (128,063,609)
Profit / (loss) for the year 3,874,064,243 (569,875,093)
Earnings / (loss) per share - basic and diluted 28 9.49 (1.38)

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

O 3u0du |
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Chief Executive Officer
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STATEMENT OF UNCONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 30t June 2021

2021 2020
(Rupees)

Profit / (loss) for the year 3,874,064,243 (569,875,093)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of

profit or loss
Investment in associate at fair value through other

comprehensive income - net change in fair value - 25,667,927
Related tax thereon - (5,582,774)
Other comprehensive income - 20,085,153
Total comprehensive income / (loss) 3,874,064,243 (549,789,940)

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF UNCONSOLIDATED CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30t June 2021

Balance as at 1 July 2019

Total comprehensive loss for the year
ended 30 June 2020

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners of the
Company recorded directly in equity -

Distributions

Buy-back of shares at Rs. 27 per share
(refer note 6.2.2)

Balance as at 30 June 2020

Balance as at 1 July 2020

Total comprehensive income for the
year ended 30 June 2021

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners of the
Company recorded directly in equity -
Distributions

Final cash dividend at the rate of Rs. 1.5

per share for the year ended
30 June 2020

Balance as at 30 June 2021

Reserves Total
Revenue Reserves Sub total
Issued, Fair value General Unappropriated
subscribed reserve * reserve profit
and paid up
share capital
(Rupees)
4,537,500,000 - 4,000,000,000 11,340,451,283 15,340,451,283 19,877,951,283
- - - (569,875,093) (569,875,093) (569,875,093)
- 20,085,153 - - 20,085,153 20,085,153
- 20,085,153 - (569,875,093) (549,789,940) (549,789,940)
(453,750,000) - - (771,375,000) (771,375,000) (1,225,125,000)
4,083,750,000 20,085,153 4,000,000,000 9,999,201,190 14,019,286,343 18,103,036,343
4,083,750,000 20,085,153 4,000,000,000 9,999,201,190 14,019,286,343 18,103,036,343
- - - 3,874,064,243 3,874,064,243 3,874,064,243
- - - 3,874,064,243 3,874,064,243 3,874,064,243
- - - (612,562,500) (612,562,500) (612,562,500)
4,083,750,000 20,085,153 4,000,000,000 13,260,702,933 17,280,788,086 21,364,538,086

* Fair value reserve comprises of the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity securities designated at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

O* 0w,

Chief Executive Officer
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STATEMENT OF UNCONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 30t June 2021

Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net cash (used in) / generated from operations 30 (784,355,830) 1,919,082,829
Income taxes paid (352,868,351) (30,039,697)
Interest received 35,719,263 137,937,452
Finance cost paid (18,056,641) (223,835,437)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (1,119,561,559) 1,803,145,147
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure incurred (1,416,450) (16,096,482)
Acquisition of intangible assets (618,990) -
Dividend received 1,678,011,459 123,431,567
Proceeds from sale of properties and equipment 1,366,000 77,626
Acquisition of long term investment (99,993,500) -
Disposal of long term investments - 67,360,000
Long term deposits paid (427,698) (50,000)
Net cash generated from investing activities 1,576,920,821 174,722,711
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid (612,562,500) -
Payment of lease liability (15,325,860) (11,494,395)
Buy-back of shares - (1,225,125,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (627,888,360) (1,236,619,395)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (170,529,098) 741,248,463
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (635,585,115) (1,377,025,450)
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held (440,744) 191,872
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 31 (806,554,957) (635,585,115)

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o)
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Chief Executive Officer Director
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Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30" June 2021

5 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

11 Arif Habib Corporation Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in Pakistan on 14 November 1994 as a public
limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The Company is
listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activity of the Company is to make strategic
investments in subsidiary companies and associates engaged in diversified sectors and investment in other
securities. The Company also extends loans, advances and guarantees to its associated company / undertaking as
allowed under the Companies Act, 2017 as its principal business activity. The registered office of the Company is
situated at 2nd Floor, 23, M. T. Khan Road, Karachi, Pakistan. The Company is domiciled in the province of Sindh.

These financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company in which investments in subsidiaries
and associates are accounted for on the basis of direct equity interest rather than on the basis of reported results.
Consolidated financial statements are prepared separately.

1.2 The Company has following long term investments and its underlying shareholding in respective investee companies:
Name of Companies Shareholding
Subsidiaries
- Arif Habib Limited, a brokerage house 69.44%

- Sachal Energy Development (Private) Limited, a wind power generation company 85.83%
- Black Gold Power Limited, a coal power generation company 100.00%
Associates

- MCB - Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited - a pension fund manager, asset

management company and investment advisor 30.09%
- Pakarab Fertilizers Limited, a fertilizer company 30.00%
- Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited, a fertilizer company 15.19%
- National Resources (Private) Limited, a mining exploration company 9.57%
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards or IFAS,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30" June 2021

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as otherwise stated in
these financial statements.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been rounded to the nearest rupee, unless
otherwise stated.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the
Company's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements, and about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a
significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are included in the following notes:

- Provision for taxation (note 4.3)

- Useful lives and residual values of properties and equipment (note 4.4)
- Useful lives and residual values of intangible assets (note 4.5)

- Fair value of investments (note 4.6 & 4.7)

- Classification of investments (note 4.7.1)

- Impairment of non-financial assets (note 4.8)

- Investment property (note 4.9)

- Provisions (note 4.14)

3. AMENDMENTS / INTERPRETATIONS TO EXISTING STANDARDS AND FORTHCOMING REQUIREMENTS
3.1 New standards, amendments or interpretations which became effective during the year
The new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after 1

July 2020 are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Company’s financial
statements and are therefore not stated in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30" June 2021

3.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective:

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act,
2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
July 2021:

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 which amended IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 is
applicable for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with earlier application permitted.
The amendments introduce a practical expedient to account for modifications of financial assets or financial
liabilities if a change results directly from IBOR reform and occurs on an ‘economically equivalent’ basis. In these
cases, changes will be accounted for by updating the effective interest rate. A similar practical expedient will
apply under IFRS 16 for lessees when accounting for lease modifications required by IBOR reform. The
amendments also allow a series of exemptions from the regular, strict rules around hedge accounting for hedging
relationships directly affected by the interest rate benchmark reforms. The amendments apply retrospectively
with earlier application permitted. Hedging relationships previously discontinued solely because of changes
resulting from the reform will be reinstated if certain conditions are met.

- COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16) — the International Accounting Standards Board
(the Board) has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to provide practical relief for lessees in
accounting for rent concessions. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020,
with earlier application permitted. Under the standard’s previous requirements, lessees assess whether rent
concessions are lease modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on accounting for lease modifications.
This generally involves remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease payments and a revised discount
rate. In light of the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the fact that many lessees are applying the standard
for the first time in their financial statements, the Board has provided an optional practical expedient for lessees.
Under the practical expedient, lessees are not required to assess whether eligible rent concessions are lease
modifications, and instead are permitted to account for them as if they were not lease modifications.

The practical expedient introduced in the 2020 amendments only applied to rent concessions for which any
reduction in lease payments affected payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021. In light of persistence
of economic challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Board has extended the practical expedient for
COVID-19 related rent concessions by one year i.e. permitting lessees to apply it to rent concessions for which
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022.

Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if they occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and if all the following criteria are met:

- the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as,
or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

- any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and
- there is no substantive change to the other terms and conditions of the lease.

- Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) effective for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 amends IAS 1 by mainly adding paragraphs which clarifies what comprises
the cost of fulfilling a contract, Cost of fulfilling a contract is relevant when determining whether a contract is
onerous. An entity is required to apply the amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the date of
initial application). Restatement of comparative information is not required, instead the amendments require an
entity to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30t June 2021

Annual Improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020:

The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

- IFRS 9 — The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the
borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf,
when it applies the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a
financial liability.

- IFRS 16 — The amendment partially amends lllustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by excluding the
illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective of the amendment is to
resolve any potential confusion that might arise in lease incentives.

- IAS 41 — The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation
cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique.

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that sales proceeds and costs of items produced while
bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management e.g. when testing etc., are recognized in profit or loss in
accordance with applicable Standards. The entity measures the cost of those items applying the measurement
requirements of IAS 2. The standard also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from
cost of testing. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and
equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. The entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other
component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.

- Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) - Reference to the Conceptual Framework,
issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 of and added paragraphs 21A, 21B, 21C and
23Ato IFRS 3. An entity shall apply those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date
is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted if at the same time or earlier an entity also applies all the amendments made by
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, issued in March 2018.

- Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) amendments apply retrospectively
for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. These amendments in the standards have been
added to further clarify when a liability is classified as current. The standard also amends the aspect of
classification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity’s right at the end of the
reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. An entity
shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.

- Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) — the Board has
issued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies and to help companies

provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1 include:

- requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting
policies;

- clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are
themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and

- clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are

themselves material to a company’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30" June 2021

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional examples on the
application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted.

- Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) — The amendments introduce a new definition for
accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty.

The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by
specifying that a company develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting
policy. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, and will apply
prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies occurring on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company applies the amendments.

- Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12) — The
amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not apply to transactions
that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result, companies will need to recognise a
deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising on initial recognition of a lease and
a decommissioning provision. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred tax asset and
liabilities will need to be recognised from the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to retained earnings or other components of equity at that date.
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier
application permitted.

- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28) — The amendment amends accounting treatment on loss of control of business or assets The
amendments also introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-
up of certain retained interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective date for these changes has been
deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.

Above standards, interpretations and amendments are not likely to have any material impact on the Company's
financial statements, other than effecting few disclosures in certain cases.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies set out below are consistently applied for all periods presented in these financial
statements.

4.1 Right of use assets and related lease liabilities
41.1 Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets (ROU assets) at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). ROU assets are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, if any. The cost of ROU
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, if any, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised ROU assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30t June 2021

4.2

4.3

Lease Liabilities

The Company assess at contract inception whether a contract is, or contain a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company acts
as a lessee and applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all the leases except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets. The Company recognises lease liability to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. At the commencement date of the lease, the Company
recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The
Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e. those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option) for real estate. It
also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low value.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments
or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods affected
by an option to extend or terminate the lease. After the commencement date, the Company reassess the lease term if
there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to excercise (or
not to excercise) the option to renew the lease. Any change is accounted for as a change in estimate and applied
prospectively with corresponding change in right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

Staff retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a recognised provident fund for all its eligible permanent employees. Equal monthly
contributions are made by the Company and employees to the fund at the rate of 12.50% of basic salary.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current, prior year and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in statement of other comprehensive income or equity respectively.

Current

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of prior years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax base and carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences and carried forward unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carried
forward unused tax losses can be utilised. Carrying amount of all deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is

realised or the liability is settled.
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4.4 Properties and equipment

Properties and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset including borrowing cost
incurred on qualifying assets. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. Cost incurred to replace a component of an item of property
and equipment is capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired from use and its carrying amount is derecognised.
Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on all properties and equipment are charged to the statement of profit or loss using the reducing balance
method over the asset's useful life at the rates specified in respective note. The depreciation is charged full in the
month of acquisition and no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal. Gains or losses on disposal of an item
of properties and equipment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The assets' residual value and useful life
are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted if appropriate. Further, when the written down value of the asset
falls below Rs. 10,000 the same is charged directly to the statement of profit or loss.

4.5 Intangible assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is charged using
the straight line method over assets' estimated useful life at the rates stated therein, after taking into account residual
value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

Amortisation on additions is charged from the month the assets are put to use while no amortisation is charged in the
month in which the assets are disposed off. Gain and losses on disposal of such assets, if any, are included in the
statement of profit or loss.

4.6 Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity.

The Company considers its associates to be such entities in which the Company has ownership, of not less than
twenty percent but not more than fifty percent, of the voting power and / or has significant influence, but not control or
has joint control, over the financial and operating policies.

Investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment losses if any. Investments in associates are accounted
for under 'lFRS 9 - Financial instruments' considering each investment individually.

The Company manages its investment in associates classified at fair value upon initial recognition, with an intention to
sell them in the future upon receiving its fair value in accordance with the Company's documented investment
strategy.

Associates classified as at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and changes therein are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss except associates classified at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the changes of which are recognised in statement of other comprehensive income.

Investment in the shares of associated companies carried at fair values listed on the stock exchange are valued to the
reporting end trade rates, whereas investments in the shares of unlisted associated companies carried at fair values
are valued at the values ascertained under the discounted cashflow model. In the later case, impairment are recorded
in the "Other Comprehensive Income" and are not recycled to the Statement of profit or loss.
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4.7 Financial Instruments
4.7.1 Financial assets
4.7.1.1 Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- at amortised cost;

- at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses, in
case of debt instruments;

- at FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition, in case of equity instruments; and

- atfair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

a) At amortised cost

The Company measures financial assets at amortised cost if the financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss
allowance recognised and measured as described in note 4.7.1.2. Gains and losses are recognised in the profit
and loss account when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

b) At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and
losses in case of debt instruments

The Company measures financial assets at FVOCI if the financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income (OCI),
except for the recognition of impairment losses or reversals, recognised and measured as described in note
4.7.1.2, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortised cost which are
recognised in the profit and loss account. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to the profit and loss account.

c) At FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition - equity instruments

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity

instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the profit and loss account.

Dividends are recognised in the profit and loss account when the right of payment has been established, except
when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to
impairment assessment.

d) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Assets that do not meet the criteria for classification at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a financial asset that is subsequently measured at fair value through

profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the profit and loss account in the period in
which it arises.
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4.7.1.2 Impairment

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The Company recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each
reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

- Anunbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

- The time value of money; and

- Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at The reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses for all of its financial assets
(receivables, advances, deposits, etc.). For all other financial assets, a life time ECL is recorded in which there has
been Significant Increase in Credit Risk (SICR) from the date of initial recognition and for financial assets which are
credit impaired as on reporting date. A 12 months ECL is recorded for all other financial assets which do not meet the
criteria for SICR or “credit impaired” as at reporting date.

4.7.1.3 Initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised at the time the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. These are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried at
FVTPL. Financial assets carried at FVTPL are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs associated with
these financial assets are taken directly to the profit and loss account.

4.7.1.4 Derecognition

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
assets have expired, or when they have been transferred and either:

(i) the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership; or
(i) the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Company
has not retained control.

4.7.1.5 Business model

The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, whether
the objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash
flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for
trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured at FVTPL.
Factors considered by the Company in determining the business model for a Company of assets include past
experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the asset’'s performance is evaluated and
reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are compensated.

4.7.1.6 Solely Payment of Principal And Interest

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Company assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest (the ‘SPPI test’). In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are
consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money,
credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where
the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement,
the related financial asset is classified and measured at FVTPL.
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4.7.1.7 Reclassifications
The Company reclassifies financial assets when and only when its business model for managing those assets

changes. The reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following the change. Such
changes are expected to be very infrequent and none occurred during the period.

4.7.1.8 Write-offs
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. Against each outstanding exposure which stands as
impaired, the Company makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on the

expectation of recovery. However, financial assets that are written off remain subject to legal enforcement activities for
recovery of amounts due.

4.71.9 Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are valued as follows:

a) Financial assets at fair value
Financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' are marked to market using the closing market rates and are
carried on the balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair values of these
financial assets are taken to the profit and loss account in the period in which these arise.
Financial assets at fair value through 'Other Comprehensive Income' are marked to market using the closing
market rates and are carried on the balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair

values of these financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Fair value of the investments in listed shares is determined on the basis of the trade rates quoted at the reporting
date.

b) Financial assets held at amortised cost
These are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
4.7.1.10 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
4.7.2 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. These are initially recognised at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost except for:
- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss; and

- Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets which did not qualify for derecognition, whereby a
financial liability is recognised for the consideration received for the transfer.

4.7.21 Derecognition
Financial liabilities are derecognised at the time when these are extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the

contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities is taken to the profit and loss account.
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4.8 Impairment of Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than investment
property and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash generated units (CGU).

The Company considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both, an individual asset and a collective level. All
individually significant assets were individually assessed for impairment. Those found not to be impaired are then
collectively assessed for any impairment that had been incurred but not yet individually identified. Assets that were not
individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment. Collective assessment is carried out by grouping
together assets with similar risk characteristics.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value
in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

4.9 Investment property

Investment property is measured initially at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values are included in the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from
disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in the statement of profit or loss . When investment
property that was previously classified as property plant and equipment is sold, any related amount included in
revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

410 Purchase under resale agreement

Transactions of purchase under resale (Reverse-repo) of marketable securities are entered into at contracted rates
for specified periods of time. Securities purchased with a corresponding commitment to resale at a specified future
date (Reverse-repo) are not recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Amounts paid under these agreements in
respect of reverse repurchase transactions are included in assets.

The difference between purchase and resale price is treated as income from reverse repurchase transactions in
marketable securities and accrued on a time proportion basis over the life of the reverse repo agreement.

4.11 Off Balance Sheet Obligations

The Company issues financial guarantee contracts in return for fees (i.e. commission on guarantee) to associated
concerns. Under a financial guarantee contract, the Company undertakes to meet counter party’s obligations under
the terms of a debt instrument, if the counter party fails to do so.
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412 Short term borrowings
Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less any directly attributable transaction cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between cost and redemption value being recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings on an effective interest basis.
4.13 Revenue recognition
- Gain/loss on sale of investments are recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the date of transaction. 'All
purchases and sales of securities that require delivery within the timeframe established by regulation or 'market
conventions such as 'T+2' purchases and sales are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the 'date on
which the Company commits to purchase or sell the financial assets.
- Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive such dividend is established.

- Put option fee is recognised on time proportion basis over the period of its tenor.

- Interest income on bank deposits and loans are recognised on time proportion basis that takes into account 'the
effective yield.

- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on remeasurement of investments classified as at fair value through profit ‘or
loss are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

- Guarantee commission is recognised in income over the period of the guarantee.

414 Provisions
Provision is recognised when, as a result of past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Subsequently, provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate.

4.15 Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistan Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of
the transactions. All the monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies, at the reporting date, are translated into
Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on translation are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

4.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of cash flow statement comprises of cash in hand, cash at bank and short
term borrowings (running finance).

417 Dividend and appropriation to reserve

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial
statements in the period in which these are approved.
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5

5

5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital

2021 2020 Note 2021 2020
(Number of shares) (Rupees)
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

5,000,000 5,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid in cash 50,000,000 50,000,000
450,750,000 450,750,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
issued as fully paid bonus shares 4,507,500,000 4,507,500,000
455,750,000 455,750,000 4,557,500,000 4,557,500,000
(2,000,000) (2,000,000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
bought back at Rs. 360 per
share 5.2.1 (20,000,000) (20,000,000)
(45,375,000) (45,375,000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
bought back at Rs. 27 per share 5.2.2 (453,750,000) (453,750,000)
408,375,000 408,375,000 4,083,750,000 4,083,750,000

During financial year 2005-2006, the Company bought back two million shares of Rs. 10 each from its shareholders
through tender notice at a price of Rs. 360 per share in accordance with section 95-A of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 and the Companies (Buy-back of Shares) Rules, 1999. The acquisition resulted in reduction of capital
and unappropriated profit by Rs. 20 million and Rs. 700 million respectively, in the relevant year.

During the financial year 2019-2020, the Company purchased and cancelled 45,375,000 ordinary shares (10% of existing
shares i.e. 453,750,000). The buy-back and cancellation of shares were approved by shareholders at the extra ordinary
general meeting held on 3rd July 2019. The shares were acquired at a purchase price of Rs. 27 per share. The purchase
of shares were made in cash out of the distributable profits as required under Section 88(8) of the Companies Act, 2017
read with the Listed Companies (Buy-Back of Shares) Regulations, 2019. Pursuant to buy-back of shares the ordinary
share capital of the Company has been reduced by 45,375,000 ordinary shares amounting to Rs. 453,750,000.

At year end, Mr. Arif Habib (Chief Executive Officer of the Company) held 80.54% (2020: 78.84%) of ordinary shares in the
Company.
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6.1

DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

Net deferred tax liability comprises of taxable / (deductible) temporary differences in respect of the following:

Taxable temporary differences

- Associates - at fair value through other comprehensive income

- Accelerated tax depreciation and amortization

- Unrealised gain on investment in equity securities at fair value
through profit and loss

- Dividend receivable

Deductible temporary differences

- Accelerated accounting depreciation

- Impairment loss on long term investment - unquoted

- Unrealised loss on investment in equity securities at fair value
through profit and loss

- Lease liability against right of use assets- net

Unused tax losses

Deferred tax asset not recognised
Deferred tax liability

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

2021

(Rupees)

5,582,774
292,544

235,381,024

(11,310,000)

(508,862)

2020

5,582,774

95,700,062

(264,692)
(435,000)

(90,789,262)
(487,687)

229,437,480

(196,706,850)

9,306,195

(145,086,693)

32,730,630 (135,780,498)
208,233,168 237,063,334
240,963,798 101,282,836

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items, because it is not probable that future

taxable profits under normal tax regime will be available against which the Company can use the benefits therefrom.

LEASE LIABILITY AGAINST RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

As at 1 July

Effect of lease modification
Interest accrued

Payments

As at 30 June 2021

Current portion
Non-current portion

2021 2020
(Rupees)

27,336,519 34,650,794
18,141,316 -

2,571,453 4,180,120
(15,325,860) (11,494,395)
32,723,428 27,336,519
14,782,306 12,754,406
17,941,122 14,582,113
32,723,428 27,336,519
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i) Lease liability is payable as follows: 2021
Less than one Between one Total
year and two years
(Rupees)
Future minimum lease payments 16,858,446 18,544,291 35,402,737
Less: Interest relating to the future periods (2,076,140) (603,169) (2,679,309)
Present value of minimum lease payment 14,782,306 17,941,122 32,723,428
2020
Less than one Between one Between one
year and two years and two years
(Rupees)
Future minimum lease payments 15,325,860 15,325,860 30,651,720
Less: Interest relating to the future periods (2,571,454) (743,747) (3,315,201)
Present value of minimum lease payment 12,754,406 14,582,113 27,336,519
7.2 The remaining lease term is 24 months and the present value has been discounted at 9% per annum.
8. ACCRUED EXPENSES Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Mark-up due on short term borrowings 890,269 24,059,455
Other accrued expenses 8.1&8.2 4,870,993 4,647,143
5,761,262 28,706,598

8.1 This includes Rs. 0.033 million (2020: Rs. 0.080 million) payable to Arif Habib Limited (subsidiary company) on
account of CDC charges.

8.2 This includes Rs. 1.19 million (2020: Rs. 0.098 million) payable to Rotocast Engineering Co. (Pvt) Ltd, a related
party on account of monthly expense contribution of utilities and maintenance charges.

9. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - Secured

Running finance facilities are available from various commercial banks, under mark-up arrangements, amounting to
Rs. 3,200 million (2020: Rs. 3,600 million). These facilities have various maturity dates up to 31 December 2021,
and are generally renewable. These arrangements are secured against the pledge of marketable securities.

These running finance facilities carry mark-up ranging from 1-month KIBOR plus 1% to 3-month KIBOR plus 1.75%
per annum (2020: 1-month KIBOR plus 1% to 3-month KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum) calculated on a daily product
basis, and is payable quarterly. The aggregate amount of these facilities which have not been availed as at the
reporting date amounts to Rs. 2,097 million (2020: Rs. 2,929 million).

The fair value of the Company's investments in listed shares pledged as collateral against short term borrowings
amount to Rs. 5,080 million (2020: Rs. 4,408 million) at the year-end.
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10. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
10.1 Contingencies

10.1.1 During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) issued an order
under Section 22 of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 ("the Ordinance") regarding non-compliance of
orders passed by it under Section 18A of the Ordinance for depositing confiscated subscription money amounting to
Rs. 3.14 million relating to fictitious applications received by the Company for subscription of shares of Summit Bank
Limited which were offered to general public by the Company in 2007. On 2 November 2012, Appellate bench of the
SECP dismissed the appeal filed by the Company against the order. The Company has filed a constitutional petition
challenging the orders passed by the SECP before Honourable High Court of Sindh which has granted ad interim
stay. The petition is being contested and management is confident that the petition will be decided in the Company's
favour.

10.1.2 The Company has issued Corporate Guarantee, on behalf of a subsidiary company, namely Sachal Energy
Development (Private) Limited (SEDPL), amounting to USD 100 million (current outstanding: USD 60 million) to
Industrial Commercial Bank of China in relation to a project financing agreement of SEDPL.

10.1.3 The Company has issued guarantee of Rs. 677.45 million on behalf of Aisha Steel Mills Limited (ASML) - a related
party to secure the financing arrangement. The Company has also pledged 24.5 million ordinary shares of Fatima
Fertilizer Company Limited valued at Rs. 704.38 million as at year end to a commercial bank for financing facility
availed by ASML.

10.1.4 The Company had issued Corporate Guarantee on behalf of an associated concern, Power Cement Limited (PCL)
to the extent of USD 10.127 million. During the year, exposure on this guarantee has been reduced to USD 1.16
million (2020: USD 10.127 million). Further, the Company had issued another Corporate Guarantee on behalf of
PCL to the extent of Rs. 847.68 million issued to secure payment obligations of PCL.

10.1.5 The Company has pledged 120.35 million shares of Fatima Fertilizers Limited with various banks for running finance
facilities amounting to Rs. 2,172 million obtained by Arif Habib Limited, a subsidiary company. The fair value of these
shares at the year end amounts to Rs. 3,460 million.

10.1.6 The Company has obtained letters of indemnity from the respective related parties.

10.1.7 For tax related matters, refer note 27 to these financial statements.

10.2 Commitments
The Company holds 2.56 million shares (2020: 2.56 million) of Silkbank Limited in its CDC account. During financial
year 2020, Silkbank Limited’s sponsor had exercised the option granted to him to purchase the Company’s entire
investment in Silkbank Limited. Accordingly, the Company had derecognised its investment in Silkbank Limited and

had also set off relevant deposits and margin against this investment. However, shares will be transferred as per the
option agreement in due course in line with regulatory approvals.

The legal advisor of the Company also agrees with the above point of view.
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115 PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENTS

Right-of-use Vehicles Furniture Computer Leasehold Total
assets and office and allied improvements
equipment equipment
(Rupees)

Cost
Balance as at 01 July 2019 - 29,941,393 1,122,059 4,317,013 67,750,472 103,130,937
Additions 38,482,259 15,717,281 197,128 182,073 - 54,578,741
Disposals - (171,533) (90,000) - - (261,533)
Balance as at 30 June 2020 38,482,259 45,487,141 1,229,187 4,499,086 67,750,472 157,448,145
Balance as at 01 July 2020 38,482,259 45,487,141 1,229,187 4,499,086 67,750,472 157,448,145
Additions - 463,900 32,000 920,550 - 1,416,450
Effect of lease modification 18,141,316 - - - - 18,141,316
Disposals - (477,500) (36,800) (10,000) - (524,300)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 56,623,575 45,473,541 1,224,387 5,409,636 67,750,472 176,481,611
Depreciation
Balance as at 01 July 2019 - 20,379,748 673,959 3,331,310 53,471,962 77,856,979
Charge for the year 12,827,420 2,687,449 78,814 415,103 2,141,777 18,150,563
Disposals - (113,907) (34,617) - - (148,524)
Balance as at 30 June 2020 12,827,420 22,953,290 718,156 3,746,413 55,613,739 95,859,018
Balance as at 01 July 2020 12,827,420 22,953,290 718,156 3,746,413 55,613,739 95,859,018
Charge for the year 12,827,419 4,517,926 89,335 459,766 1,820,510 19,714,956
Disposals - (80,900) (36,800) (10,000) - (127,700)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 25,654,839 27,390,316 770,691 4,196,179 57,434,249 115,446,274
Written down value as at

30 June 2020 25,654,839 22,533,851 511,031 752,673 12,136,733 61,589,127
Written down value as at

30 June 2021 30,968,736 18,083,225 453,696 1,213,457 10,316,223 61,035,337
Annual rates of depreciation 33% 20% 15% 33% 15%

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer softwares 2021 2020
(Rupees)

Cost
Balance as at 1 July - -
Addition 618,990 -
Balance as at 30 June 618,990 -
Amortisation
Balance as at 1 July - -
Charge for the year (12,895) -
Balance as at 30 June (12,895) -
Written down value as at 30 June 606,095 -
Annual amortisation rate 25% -
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Note 2021 2020
13. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS (Rupees)
Subsidiaries - at cost 13.1 4,903,984,832 4,953,984,832
Associates - designated at fair value through profit and loss 13.2 9,967,414,060 9,021,685,080
Associates - at fair value through other comprehensive income 13.3 1,449,993,500 1,350,000,000
Other equity securities - at fair value through other comprehensive income 134 - -
16,321,392,392 15,325,669,912
13.1 Subsidiaries - at cost
Arif Habib Limited (AHL) 13.1.1 2,157,519,772 2,157,519,772
Sachal Energy Development (Private) Limited (SEDPL) 13.1.2 2,746,465,060 2,746,465,060
Black Gold Power Limited (BGPL) 13.1.3 50,000,000 50,000,000
Impairment recognised during the year o (50,000,000) -
- 50,000,000
4,903,984,832 4,953,984,832

13.1.1 Investment in AHL (listed) represents 41.246 million (2020: 41.246 million) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, representing 69.44%
(2020: 69.44%) of AHL's paid up share capital as at 30 June 2021. These includes 4 million shares of market value of Rs. 324 million, which
has been pledged with the commercial bank as a security against the Company's borrowings. The company is engaged in the business of
investments, shares brokerage, inter-bank brokerage, initial public offering underwriting, advisory and consultancy.

Market value of the above shares as at 30 June 2021 amounted to Rs. 3,346 million (2020 Rs. 1,342 million).

13.1.2 Investment in SEDPL (unquoted) represents 274.647 million (2020: 274.647 million) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, representing
85.83% (2020: 85.83%) of SEDPLs paid up share capital as at 30 June 2021. Book value based on net assets, as per audited financial
statements as at 30 June 2021 is Rs. 27.75 per share (2020: Rs. 21 .92 per share). The entire shareholding in SEDPL has been pledged in
favour of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (ICBC) to secure project financing of SEDPL. The company is engaged in the business of
electricity generation and its sale.

13.1.3 Investment in BGPL (unquoted) represents 5 million (2020: 5 million) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, representing 100% (2020:
100%) of BGPL's paid up share capital as at 30 June 2021. BGPL has been allocated with supply of coal for its 660 MW Thar Coal based
power project to be constructed, commissioned and operated at Thar Block II.

During the year, management has recognized impairment loss of Rs. 50 million against the said investment (2020: Rs. Nil). Consequently,
the investment is carried at Nil value in these financial statements.

13.2  Associates - designated at fair value through profit and loss

Note Cost Unrealised Carrying amount (at fair value)
appreciation on 2021 2020
remeasurement
of investments
(Rupees)
MCB - Arif Habib Savings and
Investments Limited (MCB-AH) 13.2.1 477,694,882 318,463,255 796,158,137 494,809,574
Fatima Fertilizer Company
Limited (FFCL) 13.2.2 3,512,782,225 5,658,473,698 9,171,255,923 8,526,875,506

3,990,477,107 5,976,936,953 9,967,414,060 9,021,685,080

13.2.1 Investment in MCB-AH (quoted) represents 21.664 million (2020: 21.664 million) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, representing
30.09% (2020: 30.09%) of MCB-AH's paid up share capital as at 30 June 2021, having historical cost of Rs. 81.95 million (2020: Rs. 81.95
million). Market value per share as at 30 June 2021 was Rs. 36.75 (2020: Rs. 22.84), whereas book value based on net assets, as per audited
financial statements as at 30 June 2021 is Rs. 22.27 per share (2020: Rs. 21.54 per share). Pursuant to Rule 5(6)(e) of Non-Banking Finance
Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003, the Company, being a promoter of MCB-AH, has placed shares in an account
marked as 'Freeze' with the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited. The company is a non-banking finance company and is an asset
management company and an investment advisor.

13.2.2 Investment in FFCL (quoted) represents 319 million (2020: 319 million) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, representing 15.19% (2020:
15.19%) of FFCL's paid up share capital as at 30 June 2021. Fair value per share as at 30 June 2021 is Rs. 28.75 (2020: Rs. 26.73). Book
value based on net assets as per audited financial statements as at 30 June 2021 is Rs. 43.41 per share (2020: Rs. 38.56 per share). The
company is a fertilizer manufacturing company.
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13.3 Associates - at fair value through other comprehensive income

Note Cost Unrealised Carrying amount
appreciation / 2021 2020
(diminution) on
remeasurement
of investments
(Rupees)
Pakarab Fertilizers Limited (PFL) 13.3.1 1,324,332,073 25,667,927 1,350,000,000 1,350,000,000
National Resources (Private)
Limited (NRPL) 13.3.2 99,993,500 - 99,993,500 -
1,424,325,573 25,667,927 1,449,993,500 1,350,000,000
Deferred tax - (5,582,774) - -
Net of tax 1,424,325,573 20,085,153 1,449,993,500 1,350,000,000

13.3.1 Investment in PFL (unquoted) represents 135 million (2020: 135 million) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, representing 30% (2020:
30%) of PFL's paid up share capital as at 30 June 2021. Fair value per share as at 30 June 2021 was Rs. 10 (2020: Rs. 10), whereas book
value based on net assets, as per audited financial statements as at 30 June 2021 is Rs. 24.12 per share (2020: Rs. 14.09 per share). The
company is engaged in the fertilizers trading business. Details regarding valuation of PFL are as follows:

Type Date of Valuation approach and Inter-relationship between significant
valuation assumptions unobservable Inputs and fair value
measurement
Unguoted equity securities - 30 June 2021 Discounted cash flows: The estimated fair value would increase /
Pakarab Fertilizers Limited (PFL) The valuation model considers the (decrease) if:
present value of future cash flow of - the annual growth rate were higher or lower
investee company discounted using a - the EBITDA margin were higher or lower

risk-adjusted discount rate.

The cash flow projection include Generally, a change in the annual growth

specific estimates for 5 years. rate is accompanied by a directionally
similar change in EBITDA margin.

Inputs used:

- Long term growth rate 4.0%
- Long term return on equity 16.56%
- Weighted average cost of capital 12.27%

13.3.2 On 22nd June 2021, the Company had subscribe 9,999,350 ordinary shares of NRPL having face value of Rs. 10 each.
The Company holds 9.57% of NRPL's paid up share capital as at 30 June 2021. NRPL is in its pre-feasibility stage and has
not yet commenced its operations and has yet to apply for a mining license. NRPL intends to carry on the business of
exploring, operating and working on mines, quarries and other related activities. The investment is under a joint venture
agreement dated 20 November 2020 between sponsors (Y.B Pakistan Ltd, Arif Habib Equity (Private) Limited, Liberty Mills
Limited, Reliance Commodities (Private) Limited and Mari Petroleum Company Limited). The Company has one director
on the Board of the company and has the capacity to nominate one such director. All other investors too can appoint one
director each.

13.4 Other equity securities - at fair value through other comprehensive income
Note 2021 2020
Shares Fair value Shares Fair value
(Number) (Rupees) (Number) (Rupees)
Sun Biz (Private) Limited (SBL) 13.4.1 10,000 - 10,000 -
Al-Khabeer Financial Services
(Private) Limited (AKFS) 13.4.2 5,000 - 5,000 -

13.4.1 Investment in SBL (unquoted) represents 10,000 (2020: 10,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each. These have
been fully provided due to losses and being non-operational.

13.4.2 Investment in AKFS (unquoted) represents 5,000 (2020: 5,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 200 each. These have
been fully provided due to losses and being non-operational.

m Arif Habib Corporation Limited



NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30t June 2021

13.5 Fair value of long term investments pledged with banking companies against various facilities of the company amounts to
Rs. 3,581.86 million (2020: Rs. 4,120 million).

14. LONG TERM LOAN TO A RELATED PARTY
Note 2021 2020

At amortised cost (Rupees)

Secured

Aisha Steel Mills Limited 163,404,133 163,404,133

Less: Current portion of long term loan 16 (28,433,492) (28,433,492)

134,970,641 134,970,641

14.1 This represents long term loan secured against first charge on all present and future fixed assets, accounts receivables

and interest in any insurance claim and equitable mortgage of land and building. The mark-up rate in the said loan is 6-
month KIBOR plus 3.25% per annum (2020: 6-months KIBOR plus 3.25% per annum). The rate of mark-up on the loan
during the period ranged between 10.49% to 10.60% (2020: ranged between 16.38% to 16.74%) per annum. Mark-up is
payable on a semi-annual basis.

The repayment terms of the above loan was rescheduled during the year due to the impact of COVID-19 and now the
balance is repayable in semi-annually instalments of Rs. 14.216 million effective 19 July 2021. However markup for the
extended period continued to be recovered. The loan is repayable by January 2025. The repayment period due to above
deferment has been extended by one year and has been approved by the shareholders in their Annual General Meeting.
No other terms have been revised.

14.2 Maximum balance due from the above related party as at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 163.4 million
(2020: Rs. 149.19 million).

15. LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLE Note 2021 2020
(Runees)
Security deposits - unsecured
Security deposit with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 4,090 4,090
Security deposits with telecommunication companies 40,500 40,500
Security deposits for fuel cards 95,000 95,000
139,590 139,590
Other receivable - secured
Receivable from employees against leased vehicles 15.1 2,825,138 2,397,440
2,964,728 2,537,030
15.1 This represents security deposits paid by the Company to / on behalf of employees for leased vehicles and is secured

against respective employees' provident fund balances. It will be recovered from the respective employees from their final
settlement or at the termination of lease agreement.
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16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

17.

17.1

17.2

1723

17.4

LOANS AND ADVANCES Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)

At Amortised cost

Unsecured

Loans to related parties - Black Gold Power Limited (BGPL) 16.1 5,500,000 5,500,000

Advance for investment in Silk Islamic Development REIT 16.2 600,000,000 -

Secured

- Current portion of long term loan to Aisha Steel Mills Limited (ASML) 14 28,433,492 28,433,492

- Advance against salaries to employees 16.4 900,999 628,164

634,834,491 34,561,656

The Company entered into an interest free financing agreement with BGPL, a wholly owned subsidiary, to the extent of Rs. 10
million in order to finance its working capital requirements and for any other business as may be mutually agreed between the
parties to the agreement. The loan is repayable within 30 business days of notice of demand.

This represent advance paid for equity investment in a Sharia Compliant Apartment Development REIT. The said REIT is in the
process of acquiring the land from a commercial bank. Thereafter units of the REIT shall be issued to the subscribers. If the units
are not issued to the subscribers, including to the Company, within 240 days of the subscription (i.e from 30 June 2021 in the
Company's case), the same would need to be refunded.

In addition maximum balance due from related parties in respect of loans and advances as at the end of any month during the
year was Rs. 922.5 million (2020: Rs. 790 million). These balances were disbursed and recovered during the year.

This represents interest free balance due from the employees and are secured against their retirement benefit fund.

MARK-UP RECEIVABLE Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)

From related parties:

- Aisha Steel Mills Limited (ASML) 14.1 8,589,238 21,441,982

- Javedan Corporation Limited (JCL) 17.1 2,722,849 147,616

- Arif Habib Limited (AHL) 17.2 4,447,132 -
15,759,219 21,589,598

Others:

Bank's saving account - 46,764
15,759,219 21,636,362

Represents the markup receivable on an unsecured loan of Rs. 250 million given to JCL, which was repaid during the period. The
rate of mark-up on the principal balance was 3 month KIBOR plus 2.25% (2020: 3 month KIBOR plus 2.25%) and was payable
quarterly.

Represents the markup receivable on an unsecured loan of Rs. 667 million given to AHL, which was repaid during the period. The
rate of mark-up was 3 month KIBOR plus 2% (2020: Nil) and was payable quarterly.

The company timely received the above markup subsequent to the year end.

The maximum amount due from related parties in respect of mark-up receivable as at the end of any month during the year was
Rs. 15.8 million (2020: Rs. 36.32 million).
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18. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepayments

Guarantee commission receivable
Dividend receivable

Others

Note

18.1

18.2

2021 2020
(Rupees)
784,153 4,427,879
4,307,736 5,041,526
- 638,000,412
10,556,178 1,720,000
15,648,067 649,189,817

18.1  This represents guarantee commission receivable from related parties, namely Arif Habib Limited, Sachal Energy Development
(Private) Limited, Aisha Steel Mills Limited and Power Cement Limited. The maximum amount due in respect of guarantee

commission receivable as at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 5.16 million (2020: Rs. 5.39 million).

18.2 This includes Rs. 8.814 million inadvertently deducted by a bank from the Company's bank account on account of the charges due
by a related party to the said Bank. Arrangements have been made for the reversal of the deduction from the Company's bank

account.

19. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Equity securities - at Fair value through profit or loss
19.1 Details of the investments are as follows:
Investment in ordinary shares of related parties

Investment in preference shares of related parties
Investment in ordinary shares of other companies

19.2 Reconciliation of loss on remeasurement of
equity securities at fair value through profit and loss

Cost of investment
Unrealised (loss) / gain

Balance as at 1 July
Unrealised gain / (loss) for the year

Balance as at 30 June

Note

191

2021 2020
(Rupees)
5,238,368,312 2,712,628,138
3,286,748,289 2,064,725,743
854,461,693 359,802,880
1,097,158,330 288,099,515
5,238,368,312 2,712,628,138

3,691,198,002

3,408,696,929

(696,068,791)
2,243,239,101

(47,153,780)
(648,915,011)

1,547,170,310

(696,068,791)

5,238,368,312

2,712,628,138

19.3 Fair value of short term investments pledged with banking companies against various financing facilities availed by the company

amounts to Rs. 1,498 million (2020: Rs. 306.66 million).

20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

With banks in:
Current accounts

- In local currency

- In foreign currency

Deposit accounts

Cash in hand (in local and foreign currency)

20.1 Mark-up on deposit accounts carries profit rates ranging between 5.5% to 6% (2020: 7.25% to 14%) per annum.

Note

20.1

2021 2020
(Rupees)

23,813,879 21,306,514
6,327,873 6,768,178
30,141,752 28,074,692
265,904,089 7,111,149
296,045,841 35,185,841
86,312 57,596
296,132,153 35,243,437
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21 OPERATING REVENUE

Dividend income

Mark-up income on loans and advances
Guarantee commission income

Mark-up income on bank deposits

Mark-up income on term finance certificates

Note

21.1
21.2

2021 2020
(Rupees)

1,040,011,047 761,431,979
29,842,120 75,744,454
18,879,227 21,079,496
4,490,409 5,343,225
- 6,816,680
1,093,222,803 870,415,834

21.1 This represents mark-up income on loans extended to related parties, namely Arif Habib Limited, Aisha Steel Mills

Limited, Power Cement Limited and Javedan Corporation Limited.

21.2 This pertains to guarantees issued to related parties namely, Arif Habib Limited, Sachal Energy Development (Pvt.)

Limited, Aisha Steel Mills Limited and Power Cement Limited.

22: GAIN / (LOSS) ON REMEASUREMENT OF INVESTMENTS
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS- NET

Long term investment
Short term investment

23. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits

Rent, rates and taxes

Legal and professional charges
Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets
Advertisement and business promotion
Repairs and maintenance
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Insurance

Electricity

Fees and subscription

Auditor's remuneration
Communication

Directors' meeting fees

Custody and settlement charges
Entertainment

Others

Note

23.1

11

23.2

2021

2020

(Rupees)

945,728,980
2,243,239,101

(1,899,068,265)
251,622,987

3,188,968,081

(1,647,445,278)

2021 2020
(Rupees)

58,433,182 47,087,818
3,153,797 1,757,772
3,843,890 4,704,633

19,714,956 18,150,563

12,895 -
1,834,374 13,275,932
7,102,680 5,244,316
3,651,167 5,147,577
2,329,120 2,736,467
2,881,231 2,528,081
4,501,352 4,376,492
3,125,677 2,365,519
2,522,016 2,568,664
1,310,469 1,577,725

625,000 450,000
1,641,562 1,361,417
2,064,425 610,195
1,395,336 1,304,840
120,143,129 115,248,011

23.1 Salaries and benefits include Rs. 2.81 million (2020: Rs. 2.47 million) in respect of provident fund contribution. All
investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the

Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.
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23.2

24,

25.

25.1

26.

26.1

26.2

Auditor's remuneration 2021 2020
(Rupees)

Audit fee 1,402,000 1,402,000

Interim review 450,000 450,000

Other services (certifications) 130,000 330,000

Out of pocket expense 361,536 178,500

Sales tax 178,480 208,164
2,522,016 2,568,664

OTHER INCOME

Gain on disposal of fixed assets 969,400 -
Gain on foreign currency translation - 191,872
969,400 191,872

FINANCE COST

Mark-up on short term borrowings 13,672,590 191,613,433
Mark-up on loan from sponsor 25.1 4,355,592 -
Interest expense on lease liabilities against right-of-use assets 2,571,453 4,180,120
Bank charges 28,459 53,828
20,628,094 195,847,381

During the year, the Company availed unsecured finance facility from its major shareholder, Mr. Arif Habib,
amounting to Rs. 541 million (2020: Rs Nil) which was repaid during the year. This financing facility carried markup
at 3 month KIBOR plus 1.75% calculated on daily product basis. The agreement had expired on 30 June 2021.

OTHER CHARGES Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Impairment against investment in a subsidiary company 13.1.3 50,000,000 -
Loss on foreign currency translation 440,744 -
Donations 26.1 25,000 223,000
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 35,383
50,465,744 258,383

This include donation paid to following donees:

2021 2020
(Rupees)
Donees
Saylani Welfare Trust 25,000 23,000
Karachi Union of Journalists - 200,000

There are no donations to any person, institution or organisation in which a director or his spouse had any interest.
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27. TAXATION 2021 2020
(Rupees)

Current

- for the year 256,637,813 30,549,974

- for prior years 26,156,866 1,813,573
282,794,679 32,363,547

Deferred 139,680,962 95,700,062
422,475,641 128,063,609

27.1 The provision for current year tax represents tax on taxable income at the rate of 29% (2020: 29%) per annum or minimum tax per annum,
whichever is higher. The rate of tax imposed on the taxable income of a Company for the tax year 2021 and onwards is 29%. The Company
computes current tax expense based on the generally accepted interpretation of the tax laws to ensure that sufficient provision for the purpose of
taxation is available. According to management, the tax provision made in these audited unconsolidated financial statements is sufficient.

27.2 During the period, the petition filed by the Company against the imposition of super tax for rehabilitation of temporarily displaced persons under
section 4B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax years 2015 to 2019 in the Honourable High Court of Sindh was rejected vide order
dated 21 July 2020. The Company, in consultation with its legal and tax advisors, has filed an appeal against the decision of the Honourable High
Court of Sindh in the Supreme Court of Pakistan.

Consequent to the High Court judgement, the tax authorities issued notices to the Company and subsequently framed orders for the recovery of
super tax for the relevant tax years. An appeal has been filed against these orders with the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) along with
stay against recovery of demand based on certain contentious and factual grounds. Further, through an interim order dated 26 November 2020,
the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan has ordered for no coercive action against the petitioners who deposit 50% of outstanding tax
demand, accordingly the company has made the required deposit. The management has assessed the sufficiency of tax provision on account of
super tax and considers that these sufficient for the purpose.

27.3 Further, the deemed assessments for the tax years 2016 to 2019 were subsequently modified by the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue by
issuing amended assessment orders (Orders), mainly attempting to reclassify company's normal business income to income from other sources.
The Company had filed appeal before the CIR (Appeals) against the Orders, who remanded back the liability raised through the Order for tax year
2019. Appeals for remaining tax years are pending for adjudication before CIR (Appeals), while the Company has sought stay on payment of
demand from the Honourable High Court of Sindh against the remaining Orders. The legal advisor of the Company is of the opinion that there are
reasonable grounds for a favourable decision.

27.4 In addition to the above certain other appeals are also pending. However adequate provisions are held by the Company.
275 Relationship between tax expense / (income) 2021 2020
and accounting profit (Rupees)
Profit / (loss) before tax 4,296,539,884 (441,811,484)
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29% (2020: 29%) 1,245,996,566 (128,125,330)
Tax effect of income under final tax regime (145,601,547) (106,464,258)
Tax effect of income taxed at lower rate (750,315,076) (177,257,394)
Prior year tax effect 26,156,866 1,813,572
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 55,458,720 22,683,722
Tax effect of minimum tax at 1.5% (2020: 1.5%) - 1,842,473
The effect of exempt income / permanent difference - 477,703,488
Others (9,219,888) 35,867,336
422,475,641 128,063,609
28. EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year. There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per shares of the Company.

2021 2020
(Rupees)
Profit for the year 3,874,064,243 (569,875,093)
(Number)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 408,375,000 413,210,041
(Rupees)
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 9.49 (1.38)
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29. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND OTHER EXECUTIVES

29.1 For the purpose of disclosure, employees are considered as executives whose basic salary exceeds twelve
hundred thousand rupees in a financial year.

29.2 The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements in respect of remuneration including benefits
to the Chief Executive Officer and Other Executives of the Company are given below:

Chief Executive Executive employees

2021 2020 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Managerial remuneration 12,000,000 10,200,000 18,847,436 17,301,570
Contribution to provident fund 967,740 822,582 1,189,390 1,075,938
Bonus 3,000,000 700,000 3,673,049 1,026,824
Other perquisites and benefits 600,000 780,000 4,005,095 3,177,498
Total 16,567,740 12,502,582 27,714,970 22,581,830
Number of person(s) 1 1 7 7

29.3  The aggregate amount charged to these financial statements in respect of directors' fee paid to three non-
executive directors (2020: three) was Rs. 0.63 million (2020: Rs. 0.45 million). The Chief Executive Officer
draws salary on account of managerial remuneration.

29.4  The Chief Executive Officer has been provided with free use of Company's maintained vehicles in
accordance with the Company's policy. The net book value of these vehicles are Rs. 17.24 million.

30. NET CASH (USED IN) / GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Profit / (loss) before tax 4,296,539,884 (441,811,484)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 19,714,956 18,150,563
Amortisation 12,895 -

Dividend income

Mark-up income on loans and advances

Mark-up income on term finance certificate

Loss on disposal of long term investments

(Gain) / loss on remeasurement of investment in associates
(Gain) / loss on remeasurement of short term investments
Impairment loss on an investment

Finance cost

Exchange loss / (gain)

(Gain) / loss on disposal of assets

Changes in:

Loans and advances

Prepayments and other receivables
Short term investments

Unclaimed dividend

Trade and other payables

Net cash (used in) / generated from operations

(1,040,011,047)
(29,842,120)

(761,431,979)
(75,744,454)

- (6,816,680)
- 37,257,458
(945,728,980) 998,530,267
(2,243,239,101) 648,915,011
50,000,000 -
20,628,094 195,847,381
440,744 (191,872)
(969,400) 35,383
(4,168,993,959) 1,054,551,078
127,545,925 612,739,594
(600,272,835) 29,058,969
(4,458,662) (2,598,874)
(282,501,073) 1,301,268,807
(1,723,849) (12,643,469)
(22,945,336) (8,742,198)

(911,901,755)

1,306,343,235

(784,355,830)

1,919,082,829
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3., CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Cash and bank balances 20 296,132,153 35,243,437
Short term borrowings 9 (1,102,687,110) (670,828,552)
(806,554,957) (635,585,115)

32. OPERATING SEGMENTS
These unconsolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the basis of a single reporting segment.
All non-current assets of the Company as at 30 June 2021 are located in Pakistan.

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company has exposures to the following risks from the use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company’s risk management framework.
The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

3301 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has
entered into with the Company, resulting in a financial loss to the Company.

Credit risk management

It is the Company’s policy to enter into financial contracts with reputable, diverse and creditworthy counterparties and, wherever
possible or deemed necessary, obtain collaterals in accordance with internal risk management policies and investment
guidelines designed for credit risk management. Management closely monitors the creditworthiness of the Company’s
counterparties.

Exposure to credit risk

The Company's maximum credit exposure (without taking into account collateral and other credit enhancement) at the reporting
date is represented by the carrying amount of financial assets as follows:

2021 2020
(Rupees)

Long term deposits 139,590 139,590
Loan to related parties (short term and long term) 168,904,133 168,904,133
Guarantee commission receivable 4,307,736 5,041,526
Mark-up receivable 15,759,219 21,636,362
Dividend receivable - 638,000,412
Other receivable 11,661,316 2,397,440
Bank balances 296,045,841 35,185,841

496,817,835 871,305,304

The Company does not take into consideration the value of collateral while testing financial assets for impairment. The Company
considers the credit worthiness of counterparties as part of its risk management.

None of the financial assets are past due.
Bank balances

The credit ratings to respective banks have been assigned by independent credit rating agencies. At reporting date credit ratings
of respective banks were as follows:

Short term Long term
PACRA Alto Al+ AA- to AAA
JCR-VIS A-1to A-1+ A+ to AAA
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33.2

Concentration of credit risk

Details of the concentration of credit risk are as follows:

Utility companies and CDC
Banks

Steel manufacturing company
Mining companies

Power generation company
Cement manufacturing company
Fertilizer company

Real estate management company

Brokerage house
Employees

Liquidity risk

2021 2020
(Rupees)

139,590 139,590
296,045,841 35,185,841
173,044,995 185,941,542

5,500,000 5,500,000
2,414,655 3,045,845
376,375 445,884

- 638,000,412
2,722,849 194,380
13,748,392 454,370
2,825,138 2,397,440
496,817,835 871,305,304

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from its financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, or that such obligations will have to be settled in a manner
disadvantageous to the Company. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities and the availability of adequate funds through committed credit faciliies. The Company finances its operations
through equity, borrowings and working capital with a view of maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of
finance to minimize risk. The management aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping regular committed credit lines.

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Financial liabilities

Accrued expenses

Unclaimed dividend

Short term borrowings (including
mark-up due)

Lease liability against right
of use assets

Financial liabilities

Accrued expenses

Unclaimed dividend

Short term borrowings (including
mark-up due)

Taxation

Lease Liability against right of
use assets

2021
Carrying Contractual Up to one year More than
amount cash flows one year
(Rupees)
4,870,993 4,870,993 4,870,993 -
17,338,597 17,338,597 17,338,597 -
1,103,577,379 1,103,577,379 1,103,577,379 -
32,723,428 35,402,737 16,858,446 18,544,291
1,158,510,397 1,161,189,706 1,142,645.415 18,544,291
2020
Carrying Contractual Up to one year More than
amount cash flows one year
(Rupees)
4,647,143 4,647,143 4,647,143 =
19,062,446 19,062,446 19,062,446 -
694,888,007 694,888,007 694,888,007 -
27,772,826 27,772,826 27,772,826 -
27,336,519 30,651,720 15,325,860 15,325,860
773,706,941 777,022,142 761,696,282 15,325,860

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of mark-up rate effective
as at reporting date. The rates of mark-up have been disclosed in respective notes to these financial statements.
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33.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

The Company is exposed to currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

a) Foreign exchange risk management
Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.
Currently, the Company's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to cash and bank balances in foreign currency.

Management believes that the Company's exposure emanating from any fluctuations in the foreign currencies is not
required to be hedged.

Financial assets 2021 2020

(Rupees) (US Dollars) (Rupees) (US Dollars)
Cash in hand 6,312 40 6,751 40
Bank balances 6,327,873 40,101 6,768,178 40,101

The following significant exchange rates were applicable during the year:

Average rates Reporting date rates
2021 2020 2021 2020
US Dollars to Pakistan Rupee 163.29 158.48 157.80 168.77

Sensitivity analysis
A 10 percent strengthening / (weakening) of the Pakistan Rupee against various foreign currencies at reporting date would
have (decreased) / increased the loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in

particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for 2020.

Effect on profit or loss

2021 2020
(Rupees)
As at 30 June
Effect in US Dollars 633,490 677,127

In addition, the Company has also given certain foreign currency guarantees, details of which are given in note 10.
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b)

Interest / mark-up rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The majority of the interest rate exposure arises from financial assets and financial liabilities as
stated below.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest bearing financial instruments was as
follows:

2021 2020 2021 2020
(Effective interest rate %) (Rupees)
Financial assets
Variable rate financial instruments
Long term loan to a related party 10.49% to 10.60% 16.38% to 16.74% 163,404,133 163,404,133
Bank balances 5.50% to 6.00% 7.25% to 14.00% 265,904,089 7,111,149
Financial liabilities
Variable rate financial instruments
Short term borrowings 8.31% to 9.34% 9.33% to 15.60% 1,102,687,110 670,828,552

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

For cash flow sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments a hypothetical change of 100 basis points in interest rates
would have increased / (decreased) profit for the year by the amounts shown below.

Increase Decrease
100 bps 100 bps
(Rupees)
As at 30 June 2021
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial assets 4,293,082 (4,293,082)
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities 11,026,871 (11,026,871)
As at 30 June 2020
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial assets 1,705,153 (1,705,153)
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities 6,708,286 (6,708,286)
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The Company's net exposure to interest rate risk, analysed by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity date is as follows:

2021
Interest / mark-up bearing
Particulars Maturity up to Maturity over: { Maturity over Maturlty over Maturity after Sub- Non-mterestl/ Total
one month to | three months | six months to mark up bearing
one month ) one year total
three months | to six months one year
(Rupees)
On balance sheet
financial instruments
Financial assets
Investments - - - - - - 5,238,368,312 5,238,368,312
Loans and advances 14,216,746 - - 14,216,746 134,970,641 163,404,133 606,400,999 769,805,132
Long-term deposits - - - - - - 139,590 139,590
Other receivables - 4,307,736 - 8,836,178 - 13,143,914 4,545,138 17,689,052
Markup receivable 15,759,219 - - - - 15,759,219 = 15,759,219
Cash and bank balances 265,904,089 - - - - 265,904,089 30,228,064 296,132,153
295,880,054 4,307,736 - 23,052,924 134,970,641 458,211,355 5,879,682,103 6,337,893,458
Financial liabilities
Lease liability against
right-of-use assets - 3,573,163 3,653,559 7,555,584 17,941,122 32,723,428 - 32,723,428
Short-term borrowings 1,102,687,110 - - - - 1,102,687,110 = 1,102,687,110
Unclaimed dividend - - - - - - 17,338,597 17,338,597
Accrued expenses - - - - - - 5,761,262 5,761,262
1,102,687,110 3,573,163 3,653,559 7,555,584 17,941,122 1,135,410,538 23,099,859 1,158,510,397
On-balance sheet gap (a) * (806,807,056) 734,573 (3.653,559) 15,497,340 117,029,519 (677,199,183) 5,856,582,244 5,179,383,061
Total interest rate
sensitivity gap (a+b) (806,807,056) 734,573 (3.653,559) 15,497,340 117,029,519 (677,199,183)
Cumulative interest rate
sensitivity gap (806,807,056)  (806,072,483) (809,726,042) (794,228,702)  (677,199,183) (677,199,183)
2020
Interest / mark-up bearing
Particulars Maturity up to Maturity over Maturity over | Maturity over six Maturity after Sub- Non-lnteresll/ Total
one month to | three months to | months to one mark up bearing
one month . one year total
three months six months year
(Rupees)
On balance sheet
financial instruments
Financial assets
Investments - - - - - - 2,712,628,138 2,712,628,138
Loans and advances 14,216,746 - - 14,216,746 134,970,641 163,404,133 6,128,164 169,532,297
Long-term deposits - - - - - - 139,590 139,590
Other receivables - 5,041,526 - 5,041,526 642,117,852 647,159,378
Markup receivable 21,636,362 - - - - 21,636,362 - 21,636,362
Cash and bank balances 7,111,149 - - - - 7,111,149 28,132,288 35,243,437
42,964,257 5,041,526 - 14,216,746 134,970,641 197,193,170 3,389,146,032 3,586,339,202
Financial liabilities
Lease liability against
right-of-use assets - 3,024,512 3,128,347 6,601,548 14,582,112 27,336,519 - 27,336,519
Short-term borrowings 670,828,552 - - - - 670,828,552 - 670,828,552
Unclaimed dividend - - - - - - 19,062,446 19,062,446
Accrued expenses - - - - - - 28,706,598 28,706,598
670,828,552 3,024,512 3,128,347 6,601,548 14,582,112 698,165,071 47,769,044 745,934,115
On-balance sheet gap (a) * (627,864,295) 2,017,014 (3,128,347) 7,615,198 120,388,529 (500,971,901) 3,341,376 ,988 2,840,405,087
Total interest rate
sensitivity gap (a+b) (627,864,295) 2,017,014 (3,128,347) 7,615,198 120,388,529 (500,971,901)

Cumulative interest rate
sensitivity gap

(627,864,295)

(625,847,281)

(628,975,628)

(621,360,430)

(500,971,901)

(500,971,901)

* The on-balance sheet gap represents the net amounts of on-balance sheet items.

c) Pricerisk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market prices
(other than those arising from interest / mark-up rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar financial instruments traded in the
market. The Company is exposed to equity price risk since it has investments in quoted securities.

The Company's strategy is to hold its strategic equity investments for a longer period of time. Thus, management is not
concerned with short term price fluctuations with respect to its strategic investments provided that the underlying business,
economic and management characteristics of the investee company remain viable. The Company manages price risk by
monitoring exposure in quoted equity securities and implementing strict discipline in internal risk management and investment
policies.
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33.4

The carrying value of investments subject to equity price risk are, in almost all instances, based on quoted market prices as of the
reporting date except for unquoted associates which are carried at fair value determined through valuation techniques. Market prices
are subject to fluctuation and consequently the amount realised in the subsequent sale of an investment may significantly differ from the
reported market value. Fluctuation in the market price of a security may result from perceived changes in the underlying economic
characteristics of the investee, the relative price of alternative investments and general market conditions. Furthermore, amount
realised in the sale of a particular security may be affected by the relative quantity of the security being sold.

Sensitivity analysis

The table below summarises the Company's equity price risk as of 30 June 2021 and 2020 and shows the effects of a hypothetical 30%
increase and a 30% decrease in market prices as at the year end. The selected hypothetical change does not reflect what could be
considered to be the best or worst case scenarios. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily an indication of the
effect on Company's net assets of future movement in the level of PSX 100 index.

30 June 2021

30 June 2020

Financial instruments by category

30 June 2021
Financial assets measured
at fair value

Equity securities

Financial assets not
measured at fair value

Equity securities

Cash and bank balances

Long term loan to a related party

Long term deposits and other
receivables

Loans and advances

Mark-up receivable

Other receivables

Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value

Lease liability

Accrued expenses

Current portion of lease liability
Short term borrowings
Unclaimed dividend

Fair value Hypothetical Estimated Hypothetical Hypothetical
price change fair value increase / increase
after (decrease) in / (decrease) in
hypothetical shareholders' profit / (loss)
change in equity before tax
prices
(Rupees) (Rupees)
5,238,368,312 30% increase 6,809,878,806 1,335,783,920 1,571,510,494
30% decrease 3,666,857,818 (1,335,783,920) (1,571,510,494)
2,712,628,138 30% increase 3,526,416,579 691,720,175 813,788,441
30% decrease 1,898,839,697 (691,720,175) (813,788,441)
The following table shows the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities.
Mandatorily at Fair value Designated at Financial assets Other financial
fair value through other fair value at amortized cost liabilities
through profit comprehensive through profit
and loss - others  income - equity and loss
Instruments
(Rupees)
5,238,368,312 1,449,993,500 9,967,414,060 -
5,238,368,312 1,449,993,500 9,967,414,060 - -
- - - 4,903,984,832
- - - 296,132,153 -
- - - 134,970,641 -
- - - 2,964,728
- = - 634,834,491 =
- - - 15,759,219 -
- - - 14,863,914 -
- - - 6,003,509,978 -
- - - - 17,941,122
= = = = 5,761,262
= = = = 14,782,306
= = = = 1,102,687,110
= = = = 17,338,597

= 1,158,510,397
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33.5

The following table shows the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Mandatorily at Fair value through ~ Designated at fair Financial assets

Other financial

fair value through other value through profit ~ at amortized cost liabilities
profit and loss - comprehensive and loss
Others income - equity
Instruments
(Rupees)
30 June 2020
Financial assets measured at fair value
Equity securities 2,712,628,138 1,350,000,000 9,021,685,080 - -
2,712,628,138 1,350,000,000 9,021,685,080 - -
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Equity securities - - - 4,953,984,832
Cash and bank balances - - - 35,243,437 -
Long term loan to a related party - - - 134,970,641 -
Long term deposits and other receivables - - - 2,537,030 -
Loans and advances - - - 34,561,656 -
Mark-up receivable - - - 21,636,362 -
Other receivables - - - 644,761,938
- - - 5,827,695,896 -
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Lease liability - - - - 14,582,113
Accrued expenses - - - - 28,706,598
Current portion of lease liability - - - - 12,754,406
Short term borrowings - - - - 670,828,552
- - - - 726,871,669
None of the financial assets and financial liabilities have been netted off in the financial statements.
Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities
Liability Equity
Short term Long term loan Fair value Unappropriated Total
borrowings and lease reserve profit
used for cash liability
management including
purpose related accrued
including related markup
accrued markup
(Rupees)
Balance as at 1 July 2020 694,888,007 27,336,519 20,085,153 9,999,201,190 10,741,510,869
Changes from financing cash flows
Buy-back of shares - - - - -
Payment of lease liability - (15,325,860) - - (15,325,860)
Dividend paid - - - (612,562,500) (612,562,500)
Total changes from financing activities - (15,325,860) (612,562,500) (627,888,360)
Other changes
Interest expense 18,028,182 2,571,453 - - 20,599,635
Interest paid (18,028,182) - - - (18,028,182)
Reassessment of lease term - 18,141,316 - -
Changes in short term borrowings 431,858,558 - - - 431,858,558
Total loan related other changes 431,858,558 20,712,769 - 434,430,011
Total equity related other changes - - - 3,874,064,243 3,874,064,243
Balance as at 30 June 2021 1,126,746,565 32,723,428 20,085,153 13,260,702,933 14,422,116,763
Balance as at 1 July 2019 1,859,848,065 - 11,340,451,283 13,200,299,348
Adoption of IFRS 16 - 34,650,794 - - 34,650,794
Changes from financing cash flows
Buy-back of shares - - - (771,375,000) (771,375,000)
Payment of lease liability - (11,494,395) - - (11,494,395)
Repayment of long term loans - - - - -
Dividend paid - - - - -
Total changes from financing activities - (11,494,395) (771,375,000) (782,869,395)
Other changes
Interest expense 191,613,433 4,180,120 - - 195,793,553
Interest paid (223,781,609) - - - (223,781,609)
Changes in short term borrowings (1,132,791,882) - - - (1,132,791,882)
Total loan related other changes (1,164,960,058) 4,180,120 - (1,160,779,938)
Total equity related other changes - - 20,085,153 (569,875,093) (549,789,940)
Balance as at 30 June 2020 694,888,007 27,336,519 20,085,153 9,999,201,190 10,741,510,869
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34.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosure require the measurement of fair values for both financial if any and

non-financial assets and financial liabilities.

Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

Management engage independent external experts / valuers to carry out valuation of its non-financial assets (i.e. Investment Property) and financial assets
where prices are not quoted or readily available in the market. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon by management. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and uses
observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e.derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair values of financial assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices. For all other financial instruments the Company
determines fair values using valuation techniques unless the instruments do not have a market / quoted price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured.

Valuation techniques used by the Company include discounted cash flow model for valuation of unquoted equity securities. Assumptions and inputs used
in valuation techniques include risk-free rates, bond and equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity and equity index prices. The objective of
valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price of the financial instrument at the reporting date that would have been
determined by market participants acting at arm’s length.

Valuation models for valuing securities for which there is no active market requires significant unobservable inputs and a higher degree of management
judgment and estimation in the determination of fair value. Management judgment and estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate
valuation model to be used, determination of expected future cash flows on the financial instrument being valued and selection of appropriate discount
rates, etc.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the management recognises transfers between
levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred. There were no transfers between different levels
of fair values mentioned above.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities. toaether with the carrvina amounts shown in the statement of financial position. are as follows:

30 June 2021

Carrying amount Fair value
Mandatorily / Fair value Financial Other Other Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
designated at fair through other assets at financial financial
value through comprehensive  amortized cost assets liabilities
profit and loss income - equity
Instruments
(Rupees)
Financial assets
measured at fair value
Associates 9,967,414,060 1,449,993,500 - - - 9,967,414,060 - 1,449,993,500
Short term investments 5,238,368,312 - - - - 5,238,368,312 - -
Financial assets not
measured at fair value
Subsidiary - - - 2,157,519,772 - 3,345,866,110 - -
Long term loan to related
party - - 134,970,641 = = = - -
Long term deposits and
other receivables - - 2,964,728 - - - o o
Other receivables - - 14,863,914 - - - - -
Loans and advances - - 633,933,492 ° o o S -
Mark-up receivable - - 15,759,219 - - - - °
Cash and bank balances - - 296,132,153 - o ° o o

15,205,782,372 1,449,993,500 1,098,624,147 2,157,519,772 -

Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value

Lease liability - - - - 17,941,122 = = =
Accrued expenses - - - - 5,761,262 = = =
Short term borrowings - - - - 1,102,687,110 - - o
Current portion of lease

liability - - - - 14,782,306 = = =

- - - - 1,141,171,800
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30 June 2020

Carrying amount Fair value
Mandatorily / Fair value Financial assets Other Other Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
designated at fair through other at amortized financial financial
value through comprehensive cost assets liabilities
profit and loss income - equity
Instruments
(Rupees)
Financial assets
measured at fair value
Associates 9,021,685,080  1,350,000,000 9,021,685,080 1,350,000,000
Short term investments 2,712,628,138 - 2,712,628,138 -
Financial assets not
measured at fair value
Subsidiary 2,157,519,772 1,341,728,607
Long term loan to related
party 134,970,641
Long term deposits and
other receivables 2,537,030
Other receivables 644,761,938
Loans and advances 33,933,492
Mark-up receivable 21,636,362
Cash and bank balances - 35,243,437 -
11,734,313,218 __ 1,350,000,000 873,082,900 2,157,519,772
Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value
Lease liability 14,582,113
Accrued expenses 28,706,598
Short term borrowings 670,828,552
Current portion of lease
liability 12,754,406
726,871,669
34.1 Management assessed that the fair values of loans and advances, other receivables, mark-up receivable, cash and bank
balances, trade and other payables, short term borrowings, mark-up accrued on borrowings and other current liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. For long term deposits and
other receivables, long term loan to related party and other non-current liabilities, management consider that their carrying
values approximates fair value.
34.2 Measurement of fair values
34.2.1 The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for Level 3 fair values.
Unquoted
equity
securities - at
fair value
(Rupees)
Balance at 1 July 2019 1,324,332,073
Gain recognised on remeasurement of investment 25,667,927
Balance at 30 June 2020 1,350,000,000
Balance at 1 July 2020 1,350,000,000
Investment made during the year 99,993,500
Gain / loss recognised during the year -
Balance at 30 June 2021 1,449,993,500
34.2.2 Investment in subsidiaries - at cost

Investment in a subsidiary company namely Arif Habib Limited is quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange and fair value of
investment, based on the available market price, is Rs. 3,345.87 million (2020: Rs. 1,341.73 million). The said subsidiary is
carried at cost and fair value is determined for disclosure purposes. However, the fair value of the investment in the other
subsidiary company, being an unlisted company has not been disclosed due to non-availability (and as such not disclosed
above).
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30t June 2021

35.

36.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence, sustain
future development of the business, safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Company defines as net profit after taxation divided
by total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. There were
no changes in Company's approach to capital management during the year and the Company is not subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of group companies (including subsidiaries and associates), directors and their close family
members, major shareholders of the Company, companies where directors also hold directorship, key management
personnel and staff provident fund. Transactions with related parties are carried out at contractual / agreed rates.
Remuneration and benefits to executives of the Company are in accordance with the terms of the employment while
contribution to the provident fund is in accordance with staff service rules. Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer, Directors
and Executives is disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Company. The Company considers its Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary,
Non-Executive Directors and departmental heads to be its key management personnel. There are no transactions with key
management personnel other than their terms of employment / entitlement.

Transactions and balances with related parties during the year other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements are given below:

Subsidiaries 2021 2020
(Rupees)

Name of the related party Transactions during the year

Arif Habib Limited Services availed 5,932,872 2,560,553
Loan extended 917,000,000 -
Loan repaid 917,000,000 -
Markup on loan 4,447,132 -
Guarantee commission income 1,876,617 2,090,095
Guarantee commission received 1,866,104 2,048,227
Dividend income / received 103,114,710 -

Sachal Energy
Development Guarantee commission income 10,624,444 12,307,871

(Private) Limited Guarantee commission received 11,255,634 12,649,190

Annual Report 2021 m



Associates
Name of the related party
Fatima Fertilizer

Company Limited

MCB-Arif Habib Savings
and Investments Limited

Transactions during the year

Dividend income
Dividend received

Dividend income / received

Associated companies by virtue of common directorship

Aisha Steel Mills Limited

Power Cement Limited

Javedan Corporation
Limited

Rotocast Engineering
Company (Private) Limited

Above are considered as associated companies under the Companies Act, 2017.

Other related undertakings

Arif Habib Securities Limited -
Employee Provident Fund

Mr. Arif Habib

Mr. Asadullah Khawaja

Dr. Shamshad Akhtar

Mr. Sirrajuddin Qasim

Khawaja Jalaluddin Roomi
Mr. Abdus Samad

Mr. Muhammad Kashif
Mr. Nasim Beg

Mr. Muhammad Ejaz

@ Arif Habib Corporation Limited

Loan extended

Loan repaid

Markup on loan

Markup received

Guarantee commission income
Guarantee commission received

Loan extended

Loan repaid

Markup on loan

Markup received

Guarantee commission income
Guarantee commission received

Loan extended
Loan repaid
Markup on loan
Markup received

Payment of rent and sharing of

utilities, insurance and maintenance

charges

Company's contribution

Dividend paid

Loan received from sponsor
Loan repaid to sponsor
Markup expense / paid on loan

Meeting fee paid
Dividend paid

Meeting fee paid
Dividend paid
Meeting fee paid
Dividend paid
Meeting fee paid
Dividend paid
Dividend paid
Dividend paid
Dividend paid

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30t June 2021

2021 2020
(Rupees)
797,500,515 638,000,412
1,435,500,927 -
97,488,752 50,910,792

1,630,000,000

2,075,000,000

1,630,000,000

2,093,955,660

20,504,114 60,530,813
33,356,858 74,441,058
4,409,707 5,023,384
4,453,511 4,915,446
462,000,000 416,000,000
462,000,000 416,000,000
922,124 14,441,538
922,124 14,441,538
1,968,459 1,658,146
2,037,768 1,632,800
450,000,000 173,000,000
450,000,000 183,067,474
3,968,751 772,103
1,393,518 41,192,368
24,535,762 26,399,797
2,811,526 2,468,699
482,924,951 -
541,000,000 -
541,000,000 -
4,355,592 -
200,000 200,000
121,509 -
200,000 200,000
150 -
225,000 -
344,840 -
- 50,000
1,509 -
52,935 -
3,117 -
182 -




NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30t June 2021

37. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of persons employed by the Company as on the year end are 23 (2020: 25) and average number of
employees during the year are 24 (2020: 23).

38. GENERAL

38.1 Corresponding figures

Guarantee commission of Rs. 21.079 million for the year ended 30 June 2020 has been included in Operating
revenue in the Statement of profit or loss. Other than this, no material reclassifications have been made.

38.2 Date of authorisation for issue

These financial statements have been authorised for issue on 29 September 2021 by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

38.3 Non adjusting event after reporting date

The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed a cash dividend of Rs. 3.00 (2020: Rs. 1.50) per share
amounting to Rs. 1,225,125,000 (2020: Rs. 612,562,500) at its meeting held on 29 September 2021 for the
approval of the members at the annual general meeting to be held on 28 October 2021. These unconsolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 do not include the effect of the proposed final cash dividend
which will be accounted in the year ending 30 June 2022.

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT

To the members of Arif Habib Corporation Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Arif Habib Corporation Limited and its
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 30 June 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our

audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the Key audit matters

S No Key audit matters

How the matters were addressed in our audit

1. Valuation of equity investments

Refer notes 26 and 33 to the

We identified valuation of
investments in equity securities as
key audit matter because of its
significance to the Consolidated
Financial Statements as a whole
and involvement of management’s
judgment and use of assumptions
and estimates.

Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
equity investments, amongst others, included the
following:

. assessed the design and tested operating
effectiveness of the relevant controls in place
relating to valuation of equity investments;

compared and recalculated the fair valuation of
quoted equity investments with available
external quoted market prices;

. involved our own valuation specialist to assist us
in evaluating the valuation techniques,
assumptions and methodologies used by
management for valuation of unquoted equity
investments; and

. considered the Group’s disclosures of equity
investments in accordance with the
requirements of accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

We issued instructions to auditors of a subsidiary
company, highlighting ‘Valuation of equity
investments’ as a significant risk. The auditor of
the subsidiary company performed audit
procedures to address the above risk and
reported the results thereof to us. We, as auditors
of the Group, evaluated the work performed by the
component auditor and the results thereof.
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S No Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

2. Impairment assessment of Our audit procedures to assess the impairment

goodwill assessment of goodwill,
amongst others, included the following:
Refer notes 5.2.1 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements. . obtained management’s cash flow forecasts
and testing the mathematical accuracy of the
The Group has recognized goodwill underlying value-in-use calculations;
from past acquisitions. The Group is
required to, perform impairment . Involved our internal valuation specialist to
assessment of goodwill at least assist in evaluating the appropriateness of
annually. assumptions applied to key inputs such as
revenue, operating costs, discount rate and

We identified annual impairment terminal growth rate; and
testing of goodwill as a key audit
matter because significant judgment . Evaluated the adequacy of the financial
involved in determining the statements disclosures, including disclosures of
assumptions to be used in key assumptions, judgments and sensitivities.
forecasting and discounting future
cash flows.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2021 but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Amyn Pirani.

Date: 15t October 2021 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30t June 2021

Note 2021 2020
(Restated)
(Rupees)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorised share capital 6 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up

share capital 6 4,083,750,000 4,083,750,000
Surplus on revaluation 7 15,432,500 15,432,500
Other reserves 8 25,906,142,354 19,176,402,234
Equity attributable to owners of

the Parent Company 30,005,324,854 23,275,584,734
Non-controlling interest 9 2,885,565,940 2,086,717,522
Total Equity 32,890,890,794 25,362,302,256
Non-current liabilities
Long term loans - secured 10 7,437,261,481 9,834,371,868
Land lease liability 11 10,710,114 10,325,571
Lease liability against right-of-use assets 12 21,466,537 39,690,700
Loan under State Bank of

Pakistan scheme 13 9,476,424 10,719,803
Deferred liability - gratuity 14 23,064,751 19,043,769
Deferred taxation - net 15 1,808,391,130 1,508,687,660

9,310,370,437 11,422,839,371

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 2,150,650,604 1,009,462,430
Mark-up accrued on bank borrowings 79,028,184 180,310,125
Short term borrowings 17 3,437,053,359 3,436,903,268
Current portion of long term

loans - secured 10 1,583,000,000 1,854,166,667
Current portion of lease liability

against right-of-use assets 12 41,479,177 26,029,805
Current portion of loan under State

Bank of Pakistan Scheme 13 15,547,461 4,265,520
Subordinated loan 18 - 300,000,000
Current portion of land lease liability 11 1,360,000 1,360,000
Payable against purchase of

investment - net (listed shares) 53,758,623 -
Taxation - net 171,691,021 90,390,071
Unclaimed dividend 32,258,610 32,889,754

7,565,827,039 6,935,777,640

Contingencies and commitments 19

49,767,088,270

43,720,919,267
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30t June 2021
Note 2021 2020
(Restated)
(Rupees)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 20 13,925,492,267 15,599,224,795
Intangible assets 21 2,602,558 2,401,806
Goodwill 22 910,206,117 910,206,117
Trading right entitlement certificate,

membership card and offices 23 8,100,000 8,100,000
Investment properties 24 1,968,800,000 1,678,415,232
Equity accounted investees 25 14,581,256,714 13,404,127,610
Other long term investments 26 54,754,771 45,056,656
Long term loan to related party 27 134,970,641 134,970,641
Long term deposits and other receivables 28 35,083,233 34,136,280

31,621,266,301 31,816,639,137

Current assets
Trade debts 29 4,539,307,282 3,642,791,553
Loans and advances 30 913,450,854 56,148,802
Deposits and prepayments 31 164,004,678 135,448,245
Accrued mark-up and other receivables 32 606,648,024 162,207,359
Short term investments 33 8,008,666,359 6,460,545,435
Receivable against sale of investment -

net (on listed shares) 3 - 79,559,207
Cash and bank balances 34 3,913,744,772 1,367,579,529

18,145,821,969

11,904,280,130

49,767,088,270

43,720,919,267

The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

O* 0w,

Chief Executive Officer
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Director

m

—

Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 30t June 2021

Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)

Revenue
Operating revenue 35 5,523,602,476 5,048,651,312
Gain on remeasurement of investments - net 36 2,466,127,818 405,299,247
Gain on remeasurement of investment property 24 290,384,768 132,000,000
Gain / (loss) on sale of investments - net 1,277,600,167 (439,760,959)

9,557,715,229 5,146,189,600
Cost of energy sales 37 (1,300,817,991) (1,227,203,030)
Administrative expenses 38 (872,488,719) (541,992,241)
Other income 39 113,399,539 35,582,777
Finance cost 40 (781,263,678) (1,514,495,520)
Other charges 41 (24,568,948) (5,871,074)

6,691,975,432 1,892,210,512
Share of profit of equity accounted investees - net of tax 25.6 2,607,451,994 1,441,134,146
Profit before tax 9,299,427,426 3,333,344,658
Taxation 42 (904,108,787) (416,630,710)
Profit after tax 8,395,318,639 2,916,713,948
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company 7,486,464,100 2,638,518,628
Non-controlling interests 9.2 908,854,539 278,195,320

8,395,318,639 2,916,713,948
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 43 18.33 6.39

The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 30t June 2021

Profit after tax
Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to consolidated statement of profit or loss

Share of other comprehensive income of

Note

2021

2020
(Restated)

(Rupees)

8,395,318,639

2,916,713,948

equity accounted investees - net of tax 453,422 470,738
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to

consolidated statement of profit or loss
Share of other comprehensive income of

equity accounted investees - net of tax 2,219,867 2,969,037
(Loss) / surplus on Investment in equity securities at FVOCI - net (211,455,600) 524,910,190

(209,235,733) 527,879,227

Other comprehensive income for the year - net of tax (208,782,311) 528,349,965

Total comprehensive income

8,186,536,328

3,445,063,913

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests

7,342,302,620
844,233,708

3,019,394,644
425,669,269

8,186,536,328

3,445,063,913

The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30t June 2021

Eaquity attributable to owners of the Parent Companv Non-controlling Total equity
Issued. subscribed Revenue reser interecte
and paid-up Surnlus Fair value General Unappropriated Total
share capital on reserve * reserve profit
revaluation
(Rupees)
Balance as at 1 July 2019 4,537,500,000 15,432,500 (924,160) 4,019,567,665 12,957,205,428 21,528,781,433 1,777,221,910 23,306,003,343
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - - - 2,638,518,628 2,638,518,628 278,195,320 2,916,713,948
Other comprehensive income (restated) - 380,405,278 - 470,738 380,876,016 147,473,949 528,349,965
- - 380,405,278 - 2,638,989,366 3,019,394,644 425,669,269 3,445,063,913
Gain realised on disposal of equity
securities at FVOCI - - (101,571,490) - 101,571,490 - - -
- - 278,833,788 - 2,740,560,856 3,019,394,644 425,669,269 3,445,063,913
Transactions with owners recorded
directly in equity
Distributions
Buy-back of shares at Rs. 27 per share
(refer note 6.2.2) (453,750,000) - - - (771,375,000) (1,225,125,000) - (1,225,125,000)
(453,750,000) - - - (771,375,000) (1,225,125,000) - (1,225,125,000)
Buy-back of shares by Subsidiary
Company at Rs. 35 per share
(refer note 9.1) - - - - - (231,000,000) (231,000,000)
Disposal of subsidiary without
change in control - - - - (47,466,343) (47,466,343) 114,826,343 67,360,000
Balance as at 30 June 2020 - restated 4,083,750,000 15,432,500 277,909,628 4,019,567,665 14,878,924,941 23,275,584,734 2,086,717,522 25,362,302,256
Balance as at 1 July 2020 4,083,750,000 15,432,500 277,909,628 4,019,567,665 14,878,924,941 23,275,584,734 2,086,717,522 25,362,302,256
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Profit for the year = = = = 7,486,464,100 7,486,464,100 908,854,539 8,395,318,839
Other comprehensive income - (148,879,646) - 4,718,166 (144,161,480) (64,620,831) (208,782,311)
- - (148,879,646) - 7,491,182,266 7,342,302,620 844,233,708 8,186,536,328
Gain realised on disposal of equity
securities at FVOCI - - (109,625,123) - 109,625,123 - -
- - (258,504,769) - 7,600,807,389 7,342,302,620 844,233,708 8,186,536,328
Transactions with owners recorded
directly in equity
Distributions
Final cash dividend at the rate of Rs. 1.5 per
share for the year ended 30 June 2020 - - - - (612,562,500) (612,562,500) (612,562,500)
Distribution by a subsidiary (AHL) - - - - - (45,385,290) (45,385,290)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 4,083,750,000 15,432,500 19,404,859 4,019,567,665 21,867,169,830 30,005,324,854 2,885,565,940 32,890,890,794

* Fair value reserve comorises of the cumulative net chanae in the fair value of eauitv securities desianated at FVOCI.

The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

O* 300 |

Chief Executive Officer Director

Arif Habib Corporation Limited

— W-

—

Chief Financial Officer



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 45 5,300,851,496 4,601,471,673
Income taxes paid (523,104,367) (101,274,616)
Mark-up received 117,109,342 130,139,485
Finance cost paid (708,600,837) (1,451,807,328)
Land lease rent paid (1,360,000) (1,360,000)
Gratuity paid (2,629,441) (1,151,563)
Net cash from operating activities 4,182,266,193 3,176,017,651
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure incurred (28,217,414) (20,198,709)
Acquisition of intangible assets (618,990) (546,674)
Dividend from equity accounted investee 1,532,989,679 50,910,792
Acquisition of investment property (152,500,000) (11,943,765)
Investment in equity accounted investee (99,993,500) -
Proceeds from disposal of investment property 153,000,000 160,250,000
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,366,000 12,864,724
Disposal of equity interest in subsidiary without change in control - 67,360,000
Net cash from investing activities 1,406,025,775 258,696,368
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term loan (2,058,637,261) (1,578,500,000)
Loan repaid to sponsor (300,000,000) -
Proceeds from loan under State Bank of Pakistan scheme 15,754,164 14,985,323
Repayment of loan under State Bank of Pakistan scheme (5,715,602)
Distribution by subsidiary to non-controlling interest (45,385,290) -
Dividend paid (612,562,500) -
Lease rentals paid (35,730,327) (41,708,075)
Proceeds from long term loan - 499,987,261
Buy-back of shares by Subsidiary Company - (231,000,000)
Buy-back of shares by Parent Company - (1,225,125,000)
Loan received from sponsor - net - 300,000,000
Net cash used in financing activities (3,042,276,816) (2,261,360,491)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,546,015,152 1,173,353,528
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (2,069,323,739) (3,242,677,267)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 46 476,691,413 (2,069,323,739)

The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

o)
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Chief Executive Officer Director
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Chief Financial Officer
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STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Arif Habib Corporation Limited (“the Parent Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 14 November 1994 as a public limited
company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The Parent Company is listed on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activity of the Parent Company is to make strategic investments in subsidiary companies and
associates engaged in diversified sectors and investment in other securities. The Parent Company also extends loans, advances and
guarantees to its associated company / undertaking as allowed under Companies Act, 2017 as its principal business activity. The
registered office of the Parent Company is situated at 2nd Floor, 23, M. T. Khan Road, Karachi, Pakistan. The Parent Company is
domiciled in the province of Sindh.

These consolidated financial statements of Arif Habib Corporation Limited for the year ended 30 June 2021 comprise of the Parent
Company and following subsidiary companies (here-in-after referred to as “the Group"):

Name of Subsidiary Companies Effective holding
- Arif Habib Limited, a brokerage house 69.44%
- Arif Habib Commodities (Private) Limited, investment management of
commodities [wholly owned subsidiary of Arif Habib Limited] 69.44%
- Arif Habib 1857 (Private) Limited, investments and share brokerage company
[wholly owned subsidiary of Arif Habib Limited] 69.44%
- Sachal Energy Development (Private) Limited, a wind power generation company 85.83%
- Black Gold Power Limited, a coal power generation company 100%

Name of Associates

- MCB - Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited, a pension fund manager,

asset management company and investment advisor 30.09%
- Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited, a fertilizer company 15.19%
- Pakarab Fertilizers Limited, a fertilizer company 30.00%
- National Resources (Private) Limited, a mining company 9.57%

Arif Habib Limited (AHL) was incorporated in Pakistan on 07 September 2004 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now
Companies Act, 2017), as a public limited company. The shares of AHL are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The
registered office of AHL is situated at Arif Habib Centre, 23 M.T. Khan Road, Karachi, Pakistan. It is domiciled in the province of Sindh.
AHL holds Trading Right Entitlement Certificate of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activities of AHL are investments,
share brokerage, inter-bank brokerage, Initial Public Offer (IPO) underwriting, advisory and consultancy services.

Arif Habib Commodities (Private) Limited (AHCPL) was incorporated on 2 April 2012 as a private limited company under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The registered office of AHCPL is located at Arif Habib Centre, 23, M.T.
Khan Road, Karachi. The principal activity of AHCPL is to effectively manage investment portfolios in commodities. AHCPL is a wholly
owned subsidiarv of Arif Habib Limited. AHCPL holds license of Pakistan Mercantile Exchanae (PMEX).

Arif Habib 1857 (Private) Limited (AH1857) was incorporated on 17 July 2014 as a private limited company in Pakistan under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The registered office of the AH1857 is located at Arif Habib
Centre, 23, M.T. Khan Road, Karachi. The principal activities of AH1857 are investments and shares brokerage. AH1857 is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Arif Habib Limited. AH1857 holds Trading Right Entitlement Certificate (TREC).

Sachal Energy Development (Private) Limited (SEDPL) was incorporated in Pakistan on 20 November 2006 under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). SEDPL's registered office is located at Plot no 1, Ranjha Plaza, sector F-
10/2, Tariq Market, Islamabad, Pakistan. The principal activity of SEDPL upon commencement of commercial operation is to generate
and sell electricity upto 49.5 MW. SEDPL has achieved Commercial Operation Date ("COD") for its 49.5 MW wind power generation
facility on 11 April 2017. The wind power plant is located in Jhampir, district Thatta, Sindh for which Alternative Energy Development
Board ("AEDB") has allocated 680 acres of land to SEDPL under a sublease agreement.
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1.1.5 Black Gold Power Limited (BGPL) is a public unlisted limited company, incorporated on 8 December 2016 in Pakistan under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). BGPL's registered office is situated at Arif Habib Centre, 23, M.T
Khan Road, Karachi. The principal activity of BGPL is to carry on all or any of the business of generating, purchasing, importing,
transforming, converting, distributing, supplying, exporting and dealing in electricity and all other forms of energy products or
services.

As at 30 June 2021, the BGPL has reported accumulated losses of Rs. 54.79 million (2020: Rs. 53.98 million) and its total liabilities
exceeded its total assets by Rs. 4.79 million (2020: Rs. 3.98 million). BGPL is yet to start its operations and its management does not
intend to liquidate, cease operations or wind up said company.

1.1.6 MCB - Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited (MCB-AH) was incorporated in the name of Arif Habib Investment Management
Limited (AHIML) on 30 August 2000 as an unquoted public limited company under the requirements of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). MCB-AH is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. MCB-AH is registered as a
pension fund manager under the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 and as an Asset Management Company and an Investment
Advisor under the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003. MCB-AH's registered office is
situated at 2nd Floor, Adamjee House, I.I Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan. MCB-AH has been assigned an Asset Manager rating
of AM1 (2020: AM2++) by the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA). The rating was determined by PACRA on 6 October
2020. The fund under management is Rs. 155.4 billion (2020: Rs. 109.3 billion).

1.1.7 Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited (FFCL), was incorporated in Pakistan on 24 December 2003 as a public company under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). FFCL is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The principal activity
of FFCL is manufacturing, producing, buying, selling, importing and exporting fertilizers and chemicals. Registered office of the FFCL
is situated at E-110, Khayaban-e-Jinnah, Lahore Cantt. The manufacturing facilities of the FFCL is located at Mukhtargarh,
Sadigabad and near Chichoki Mallian, at Sheikhupura road, Pakistan.

1.1.8 Pakarab Fertilizers Limited (PFL) was incorporated as a private limited company in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 1913, (now
Companies Act, 2017). PFL changed to a non-listed public company from 7 June 2007. PFL Term Finance Certificates were listed at
the Karachi Stock Exchange Limited (now merged as Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited) during the period from March 2008 to March
2013. Thereafter PFL is a non-listed public company. PFL on 12 April 2011 incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary company, Fatima
Packaging Limited (FPL) (formerly Reliance Sacks Limited). PFL is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of chemical
fertilizers while the FPL is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of polypropylene sacks, cloth, liners and cement bags.
PFL's registered address is E-110, Khayaban-e-Jinnah, Lahore Cantt. Manufacturing facility of PFL is located in Multan while
manufacturing facility of FPL is located in Sadigabad, Rahim Yar Khan.

1.1.9 National Resources (Private) Limited (NRPL) was incorporated in Pakistan as a Private Limited Company, on 8th February 2019 in
Pakistan under Companies Act, 2017. The registered office of NRPL is situated at Flat No.1, Plot No. 34-C, Yousaf Homes, Essa
Khan Road, Quetta, Balochistan. The principal line of business of NRPL is to carry on the business of exploring, operating and
working on mines, quarries and other related activities. Currently, NPRL is in its pre-feasibility stage and has not yet commenced its
operations and has yet to apply for a mining license.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are notified
under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards or IFAS, the provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its notification reference S.R.O. 986 (I) / 2019 dated 02 September
2019 has exempted all the companies that have executed their power purchase agreements before 01 July 2019 from the
requirement of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 21 (Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates) to the extent of
the capitalisation of exchange differences and in case of the capitalisation of exchange differences as mentioned above, recognising
embedded derivative under IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) is not permissible. Further, SECP vide its another notification S.R.O. 985
() / 2019 of 02 September 2019 have also mentioned that in respect of the companies holding financial assets due from the
Government of Pakistan due to circular debt, the requirements contained in IFRS 9 with respect to the application of "Expected
Credit Losses Method", shall not be applicable till 30 June 2021, provided that IAS 39 shall continue to be applicable during the
exemption period. The requirement has been further extended till 30 June 2022 by SECP vide its S.R.O. 1177 () / 2021 of 13
September 2021. Accordingly the requirements of the above standards have not been considered in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its notification reference S.R.O. 986 (I) / 2019 dated 02 September
2019 has exempted all the companies that have executed their power purchase agreements before 01 July 2019 from the
requirement of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 21 (Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates) to the extent of
the capitalisation of exchange differences and in case of the capitalisation of exchange differences as mentioned above, recognising
embedded derivative under IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) is not permissible. Further, SECP vide its another notification S.R.O. 985
(I) / 2019 of 02 September 2019 have also mentioned that in respect of the companies holding financial assets due from the
Government of Pakistan due to circular debt, the requirements contained in IFRS 9 with respect to the application of "Expected Credit
Losses Method", shall not be applicable till 30 June 2021, provided that IAS 39 shall continue to be applicable during the exemption
period. The requirement has been further extended till 30 June 2022 by SECP vide its S.R.O. 1177 () / 2021 of 13 September 2021.
Accordingly the requirements of the above standards have not been considered in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the investment
properties, long term and short term investments and plant and machinery mentioned in note 20.1.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Group's functional and presentation
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise disclosed.

2.4 Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Group's accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively.

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements, and about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment to carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

- Classification of Investments (note 5.15.1)

- Fair value of investment (note 5.15)

- Derivate financial instruments (note 5.3)

- Impairment of non-financial assets (note 5.15.1.2)

- Staff retirement benefits (note 5.5)

- Taxation (note 5.6)

- Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment (note 5.7)
- Lease classification (note 5.1)

- Investment property (note 5.8)

- Useful lives and residual values of intangible assets (note 5.9)
- Provisions (note 5.14)

- Goodwill (note 5.2.2)

3. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the year, management of AHL, subsidiary company, restated its financial statements. AHL follows trade date accounting in
relation to its own propreitary investments. AHL's trade date accounting policy is in line with group accounting policy. However, sale
of 8,220,500 ordinary shares of an investee company (being carried at fair value through other comprehensive income) transacted on
29 June 2020 and 30 June 2020 were inadvertently, non accounted for as a disposal of the investment in AHL's financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020. Accordingly in AHL's financial statements, the above was corrected retrospectively in the manner
as explained below.

In these consolidated financial statements also, the above has been duly rectified retrospectively in accordance with the requirements
of the International Accounting Standards (IAS) 8 'Accounting Policies, changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' and the
corresponding figures impacted due to the above have been restated. The correction is in line with the correction made in the
financial statements of AHL for the year ended 30 June 2021. However, since these restatements had no effect on the statement of
financial position as at the beginning of the earliest period presented (i.e. July 01, 2019), the same has not been presented in these
consolidated financial statements.

The retrospective correction of the error has its effects on the corresponding figures presented in these consolidated financial
statements (and also in the financial statements of AHL). Details are as follows:
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4.1

Short term Receivable / Unappropriated Surplus on re-
investments (payable) profit measurement of
against sale / investments
purchase of FVCOI
securities-net
(Rupees)
Effects on statement of financial position
Balance as at 30 June 2020
(as previously reported) 6,563,712,710 (28,513,698) 14,813,598,636 339,708,544
Effect of disposal of shares:
Decrease in short term investments (103,167,275) - - -
Increase in receivable / (payable) against
sale securities - net - 108,072,905 - -
(103,167,275) 108,072,905 - -
Increase in other comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2020 - - - 3,527,389
Increase in gain realised on disposal of
equity securities at FVOCI - - 65,326,305 (65,326,305)
- - 65,326,305 (61,798,916)
Balance as at 30 June 2020 - as restated 6,460,545,435 79,559,207 14,878,924,941 277,909,628
Net impact due to the restatement of the corresponding equity balance is Rs. 3.527 million only.
Effects on Comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2020 (Rupees)

Total Comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2020 (as previously reported)
Increase in other comprehensive income for the year
Total Comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2020 (as restated)

Effects on Non-Controlling Interest (NCI) for the year ended 30 June 2020

Total NCI for the year ended 30 June 2020 (as previously reported)
NCI's share of gain realised on disposal of equity securities at FVOCI
Total Comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2020 (as restated)

3,440,158,283
4,905,630

3,445,063,913

2,085,339,281
1,378,241

2,086,717,522

In addition, surplus on investment in equity securities at FVOCI earlier reported in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive

income at Rs. 520,004,560 has now been restated to Rs. 524,910,190.

AMENDMENTS / INTERPRETATION TO EXISTING STANDARD AND FORTHCOMING REQUIREMENTS

New standards, amendments or interpretations which became effective during the year

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2020 are
considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Group’s financial statements and are therefore not stated in

these consolidated financial statements.
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4.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and the
amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2021:

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 which amended IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 is applicable for annual
financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with earlier application permitted. The amendments introduce a practical
expedient to account for modifications of financial assets or financial liabilities if a change results directly from IBOR reform and
occurs on an ‘economically equivalent’ basis. In these cases, changes will be accounted for by updating the effective interest rate.
A similar practical expedient will apply under IFRS 16 for lessees when accounting for lease modifications required by IBOR
reform. The amendments also allow a series of exemptions from the regular, strict rules around hedge accounting for hedging
relationships directly affected by the interest rate benchmark reforms. The amendments apply retrospectively with earlier
application permitted. Hedging relationships previously discontinued solely because of changes resulting from the reform will be
reinstated if certain conditions are met.

- COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16) — the International Accounting Standards Board (the Board) has
issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to provide practical relief for lessees in accounting for rent concessions. The
amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020, with earlier application permitted. Under the standard’s
previous requirements, lessees assess whether rent concessions are lease modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on
accounting for lease modifications. This generally involves remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease payments and a
revised discount rate. In light of the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the fact that many lessees are applying the standard
for the first time in their financial statements, the Board has provided an optional practical expedient for lessees. Under the
practical expedient, lessees are not required to assess whether eligible rent concessions are lease modifications, and instead are
permitted to account for them as if they were not lease modifications.

The practical expedient introduced in the 2020 amendments only applied to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease
payments affected payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021. In light of persistence of economic challenges posed by the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Board has extended the practical expedient for COVID-19 related rent concessions by one year i.e.
permitting lessees to apply it to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due
on or before 30 June 2022.

Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if they occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and if
all the following criteria are met:

- the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

- any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and
- there is no substantive change to the other terms and conditions of the lease.

- Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022 amends IAS 1 by mainly adding paragraphs which clarifies what comprises the cost of fulfilling a contract, Cost of
fulfilling a contract is relevant when determining whether a contract is onerous. An entity is required to apply the amendments to
contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of comparative information is not required, instead the amendments
require an entity to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application.

- As mentioned in note 2.1 to these consolidated financial statements, the requirement of IFRS 9 regarding the application of
Expected Credit Loss Method in respect of the financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan due to circular debt has been
extended till 30 June 2022. The Group management is in the process of determining the impact thereof.
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Annual Improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020:

The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022:

- IFRS 9 — The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf, when it applies the ‘10 per cent’
test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability.

- IFRS 16 — The amendment partially amends lllustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by excluding the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective of the amendment is to resolve any potential confusion
that might arise in lease incentives.

- IAS 41 — The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique.

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that sales proceeds and costs of items produced while bringing an item of property, plant
and equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management
e.g. when testing etc., are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with applicable Standards. The entity measures the cost of
those items applying the measurement requirements of IAS 2. The standard also removes the requirement of deducting the net
sales proceeds from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant
and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the entity
first applies the amendments. The entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that
earliest period presented.

- Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) - Reference to the Conceptual Framework, issued in May
2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 of and added paragraphs 21A, 21B, 21C and 23A to IFRS 3 . An entity shall
apply those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted if at the same time or earlier an entity also
applies all the amendments made by Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, issued in
March 2018.

- Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) amendments apply retrospectively for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. These amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify when a
liability is classified as current. The standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the
assessment of the entity’s right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.

- Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) — the Board has issued amendments

on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies and to help companies provide useful accounting policy
disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1 include:

- requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies;

- clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are themselves immaterial
and as such need not be disclosed; and

- clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are themselves
material to a company’s financial statements.
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The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional examples on the application of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 with earlier application permitted.

- Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) — The amendments introduce a new definition for accounting estimates
clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.

The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that a company
develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy. The amendments are effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, and will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company / Group applies
the amendments.

- Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12) — The amendments
narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and
offsetting temporary differences. As a result, companies will need to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising on initial recognition of a lease and a decommissioning provision. For leases and decommissioning
liabilities, the associated deferred tax asset and liabilities will need to be recognised from the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to retained earnings or other components of equity at
that date. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application
permitted.

- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) — The
amendment amends accounting treatment on loss of control of business or assets. The amendments also introduce new
accounting for less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained interests in assets that are not
businesses. The effective date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.

Above standards, interpretations and ammendments are not likely to have any material impact on the Group's financial statements,
other than effecting few disclosures in certain cases and except as mentioned above.

bt SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied for all periods presented in these financial statements.

[ Right of use assets and related lease liabilities
5.1.1 Right of use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets (ROU assets) at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). ROU assets are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, if any. The cost of ROU assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, if any, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised ROU
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

In respect of Sachal Energy Development (Private) Limited (SEDPL), a subsidiary company referred in note 1.1.4, on transition to IFRS
16, SEDPL elected to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. It applied IFRS 16
only to contracts that were previously identified as leases. Contracts that were not identified as leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were
not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a lease under IFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts entered into or changed on or
after January 01, 2019. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its notification dated 2 September 2019
has granted exemption from the requirement of IFRS 16 to extent the power purchase agreements were executed before 1 January
2019.
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5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

Lease Liabilities

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contain a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Group acts as a lessee and applies a single
recognition and measurement approach for all the leases except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. The Group
recognises lease liability to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. At the
commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e. those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option) for real estate. It also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low value.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in the in-substance fixed lease payment for a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods affected by an option to
extend or terminate the lease. After the commencement date, the Group reassess the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to excercise (or not to excercise) the option to renew the lease.
Any change is accounted for as a change in estimate and applied prospectively with corresponding change in right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities.

Basis of consolidation and equity accounting
Business Combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the Group. The consideration
transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired Goodwill arising on
acquisition date is measured as the excess of the purchase consideration, including the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree in case of step acquisition, over the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed including contingent liabilities less impairment losses, if any. Any goodwill that arises is not amortized and tested
annually for impairment. Any gain on bargain purchase is recognised immediately in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Transaction cost are expensed bargain purchase is recognised immediately in consolidated statement of profit or loss. Transaction
cost are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or equity securities. Any contingent consideration payable is
measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured and
settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Parent Company. Control exists when the Parent Company is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date on which control ceases.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for the like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances and the accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the
accounting policies adopted by the Parent Company. The assets and liabilities of subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a
line-by-line basis. The carrying value of investments held by the Parent Company is eliminated against the subsidiary's shareholders'
equity in these consolidated financial statements.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners.

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and other
components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Any retained interest in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value where control is lost.

The financial year of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries are the same and also audited.
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5.2.3 Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interest is that portion of equity in a subsidiary that is not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Parent
Company. Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the subsidiaries' identifiable net assets.
They are presented as a separate item in the consolidated financial statements.

5.2.4 Associates

The Parent Company considers its associates to be such entities in which the Group has ownership, of not less than
twenty percent but not more than fifty percent, of the voting power and / or has significant influence, but not control, over
the financial and operating policies.

Investments in associates are accounted for under the equity method, less impairment losses, if any. Such investments
are carried in consolidated statement of financial position at cost (including transaction cost), plus post-acquisition
changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate, less any impairment in value. The consolidated statement of
profit or loss reflects the Group's share of the results of its associate and consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income reflect Group's shares in other comprehensive income of equity accounted investee. The equity method for
investments in associates is applied from the date when significant influence commence until the date that significant
influence ceases. Dividends received or receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount
of investment. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

5:2.5 Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions,
are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

5.3 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value with resulting fair values changes recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss. All derivative financial instruments are carried as assets when fair value is positive and
liabilities when fair value is negative.

5.4 Purchase / Sold under resale / repurchase agreement

Transactions of purchase under resale (reverse-repo) of marketable securities are entered into at contracted rates for
specified periods of time. Securities purchased with a corresponding commitment to resale at a specified future date
(reverse-repo) are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position. Amounts paid under these
agreements in respect of reverse repurchase transactions are included in assets. The difference between purchase and
resale price is treated as income from reverse repurchase transactions in marketable securities and accrued on a time
proportion basis over the life of the reverse repo agreement.

Transactions of sale under repurchase (repo) of marketable securities are entered into at contracted rates for specified
periods of time. Securities sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repo) continue
to be recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and are measured in accordance with accounting
policies for investments. The counterparty liabilities for amounts received under these transactions are recorded as
liabilities. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as finance cost and accrued over the life of the
repo agreement.

@ Arif Habib Corporation Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30t June 2021

55 Staff retirement benefits
The Group operates following retirement and other benefit schemes:
55.1 Defined contribution plan

The Parent Company, AHL and AHCPL operate recognised provident fund schemes for all eligible permanent employees
for which their contributions are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss.

55.2 Gratuity

The subsidiary company, SEDPL, operates an unfunded gratuity scheme under which all employees are entitled to
gratuity payment at the time of completion of service or termination, equivalent to one last drawn salary for every one year
of service performed with SEDPL. For the purpose of any part of a completed year the gratuity payment will be calculated
on monthly prorate basis. The partial month will be deemed as full month if the number of days served are more than
fifteen and for any less number of days served that month will not be counted.

5.6 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current, prior year and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised in equity.

Current

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of prior years.

However, in case of SEDPL, a wind power generation company, the profits and gains of the Company derived from
electric power generation and sale of clean development mechanism credits are exempt from tax subject to the conditions
and limitations provided for in terms of clause (132) of Part | and clause (65) of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 respectively. However, full provision is made in the statement of profit or loss on Income
from sources not covered under the above clause at current rates of taxation after taking into account, tax credits and
rebates available, If any, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Further, the Company Is also
exempt from minimum tax on turnover.

Deferred

Deferred tax, except for those relating to SEDPL, is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all
temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax base and carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused
tax losses can be utilised. Carrying amount of all deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled.

However, in case of SEDPL, deferred tax has not been provided in these financial statements as the Group's
management believes that the temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future due to the fact that the
profits and gains of the said subsidiary company derived from electric power generation and sale of clean development
mechanism credits are exempt from tax subject to the conditions and limitations provided for In terms of clause (132) of
Part | and clause (65) of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001).
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587, Property, Plant and Equipment
Owned

Operating fixed assets, except capital work-in-progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. Cost
incurred to replace a component of an item of operating fixed assets is capitalized, the asset so replaced is retired from
use and its carrying amount is derecognised. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Further as mentioned in note 2.1 to the financial statements, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan have
granted exemption from the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards 21 (effects of changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates) to the extent of the capitalisation of exchange differences to all the companies that have executed their
power purchase agreements before 1 July 2019. Accordingly the exchange loss incurred by the group (represented by
the power purchase agreements executed before the above date) are also included in the cost of its plant and machinery
(refer note 20.1 for details).

Depreciation on all operating fixed assets are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss using the straight line
and reducing balance method over the asset's useful life at the rates specified in note 20.1. The depreciation is charged
full in the month of acquisition and no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal. Gains or losses on disposal of an
item of operating fixed assets are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. The assets' residual value
and useful life are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted if appropriate.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impairment and consists of expenditure incurred and advances made in
respect of assets in the course of their construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset's category as
and when assets are available for intended use.

Leased

Leases in terms of which the Group companies assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance lease. Asset acquired by way of finance lease is stated at an amount equal to the lower of its fair
value and the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as liabilities against assets subject to finance lease.

Leased assets which are obtained under ljarah agreement are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and are treated as operating lease based on Islamic Financial Accounting Standard (IFAS) 2 issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and notified by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide
S.R.0O. 43(1) / 2007 dated 22 May 2007. Payments made under operating lease are charged to consolidated statement of
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

5.8 Investment property

Investment property comprises land and building, held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the supply of services or for administrative purposes.

Investment property is initially measured at its cost, including related transaction costs and borrowing costs, if any and
subsequently carried at fair value with any change therein recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the fair value of the investment property is determined with sufficient
regularity based on available active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
valuers who hold recognised and relevant professional qualifications and have recent experience in the location and
category of the investment property being valued. These valuations form the basis for the carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements.
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An investment property is derecognised either when disposed and any gain / (loss) on disposal is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is remeasured to fair
value and reclassified accordingly. Any gain arising on this remeasurement is recognised in consolidated statement of
profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a previous impairment loss on the specific property, with any remaining gain
presented in the surplus on revaluation reserve. Any loss is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. When
investment property that was previously classified as property, plant and equipment is sold, any related amount included
in the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

5.9 Intangible assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is
capitalized only if when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific assets to which it relates. Other
expenditure is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. Amortisation is charged using the straight line and
reducing balance method over assets' estimated useful life at the rates stated in respective note, after taking into account
residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

Amortisation on additions is charged from the month the assets are put to use while no amortisation is charged in the
month in which the assets are disposed off. Gain and losses on disposal of such assets, if any, are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

5.9.1 Trading right entitlement certificate, membership card and offices
These are held by Arif Habib Limited (AHL), Arif Habib Commodities (Private) Limited (AHCPL) and Arif Habib 1857
(Private) Limited (AH1857) and are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. The carrying amount is reviewed at each

reporting date to assess whether it is in excess of its recoverable amount, and where the carrying value exceeds
estimated recoverable amount, it is written down to its estimated recoverable amount.

5.10 Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's business, the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which:

- represents a separate major line of business or geographic area of operations;

- is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographic area of operations;
or

- is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to re-sale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs at the earlier of disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held-for-sale.

5.11 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal group comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held-for-sale if it is highly
probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the remaining assets and liabilities
on pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit
assets, investment property or biological assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Group's other
accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-sale or held-for-distribution and subsequent
gains and losses on remeasurement are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale; intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortized or
depreciated and any equity accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.
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5.12 Borrowings

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference between cost and redemption
value being recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings on an effective
interest basis.

5.13 Revenue recognition

- Gain / loss on sale of investments are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the date of
transaction. All purchases and sales of securities that require delivery within the timeframe established by regulation
or market conventions such as 'T+2' purchases and sales are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the financial assets.

- Brokerage, consultancy and advisory fee, etc. are recognised as and when such services are provided.
- Rental income from investment property is recognised on accrual basis.
- Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive such dividend is established.

- Mark-up / interest income on bank deposits, loans, debt securities, exposure deposit and exposure against margin
trading system is recognised on a time proportion basis that take into account the effective yield.

- Putoption fee is recognised on time proportion basis over the period of its tenor.

- Unrealised capital gains / (losses) arising from mark to market of investments classified as ‘financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss - held for trading' are included in consolidated statement of profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

- Guarantee commission is recognised in income over the period of the guarantee.

- Reverse repo income is recorded on an accrual basis over the period of the deal under the effective interest rate
method.

- Revenue on the sale of energy represents fair value of the consideration received or receivable on account of
regular energy, shortfall energy, bonus energy, and also includes late payment charges to CPPA-G, net of sales tax.
Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue, and the associated cost incurred, or to be incurred, can be measured reliably.

Revenue is recognized when the Group satisfies the performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service to a customer. A good or service is transferred when the customer obtains control of that good or service.
The Group principally satisfies its performance obligation by ensuring availability of the complex for power
generation. Revenues from delivered energy, non-project missed volume ("NPMV'), shortfall energy and bonus
energy are recognized as per the mechanism specified in the Energy Purchase Agreement ("EPA"), however, tariffs
are determined by National Electric Power Regulatory Authority ("NEPRA").

Effect of adjustment, If any, arising from revision in sale price is reflected as and when the tariffs are approved by
NEPRA.

Revenue from late payments Is recorded as per the mechanism specified in the EPA, when due.

- Gold Standard Certified Emission Reductions (GSCERS) is recognised when virtually certain which generally is
when received.
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5.14 Provisions and contingencies

Provision is recognised when, as a result of past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation. Subsequently, provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. The un-winding of discount is recognized as finance cost, if any. Where it is not probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation can not
be measured with sufficient reliability, it is disclosed as contingent liability.

5.15 Financial instruments
5.15.1 Financial assets
5.15.1.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- atamortised cost;

- at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses, in case of
debt instruments;

- at FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition, in case of equity instruments; and

- atfair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

a) Atamortised cost

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if the financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance recognised
and measured as described in note 5.15.1.2. Gains and losses are recognised in the profit and loss account when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

b) At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and
losses in case of debt instruments

The Group measures financial assets at FVOCI if the financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income (OCI), except for
the recognition of impairment losses or reversals, recognised and measured as described in note 5.15.1.2, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on the instrument's amortised cost which are recognised in the
profit and loss account. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to the profit and loss account.

c) At FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition - equity instruments

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the profit and loss account. Dividends are
recognised in the profit and loss account when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.
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d) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for classification at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a financial asset that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and
is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the profit and loss account in the period in which it arises.

5.15.1.2 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its financial assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The Group recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The
measurement of ECL reflects:

- Anunbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

- The time value of money; and

- Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at The reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses for all of its financial assets
(receivables, advances, deposits, etc.). For all other financial assets, a life time ECL is recorded in which there has been
Significant Increase in Credit Risk (SICR) from the date of initial recognition and for financial assets which are credit
impaired as on reporting date. A 12 months ECL is recorded for all other financial assets which do not meet the criteria for
SICR or “credit impaired” as at reporting date.

5.15.1.3 Initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised at the time the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
These are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried at FVTPL. Financial
assets carried at FVTPL are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs associated with these financial assets
are taken directly to the profit and loss account.

5.15.1.4 Derecognition

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
assets have expired, or when they have been transferred and either:

(i) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership; or
(i) the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Group has not
retained control.

5.15.1.5 Business model

The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, whether the
objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and
cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading
purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured at FVTPL. Factors
considered by the Group in determining the business model for a Group of assets include past experience on how the
cash flows for these assets were collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to key management
personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are compensated.

5.15.1.6 Solely Payment of Principal And Interest

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and sell,
the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the
‘SPPI test’). In making this assessment, the Group considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a
basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic
lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms
introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is
classified and measured at FVTPL.
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5.15.1.7

5.15.1.8

5.15.1.9

5.15.2

5.15.3

5.15.3.1

5.15.3.2

Reclassifications
The Group reclassifies financial assets when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following the change. Such changes are expected to
be very infrequent and none occurred during the period.
Write-offs
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. Against each outstanding exposure which stands as
impaired, the Group makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on the expectation of
recovery. However, financial assets that are written off remain subject to legal enforcement activities for recovery of
amounts due.
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are valued as follows:
a) Financial assets at fair value
Financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' are marked to market using the closing market rates and are
carried on the balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair values of these financial
assets are taken to the profit and loss account in the period in which these arise.
Financial assets at fair value through '‘Other Comprehensive Income' are marked to market using the closing market
rates and are carried on the balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair values of

these financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Fair value of the investments in listed shares is determined on the basis of the trade rates quoted at the reporting
date.

b) Financial assets held at amortised cost

These are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amount and the Group intends to either settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
These are initially recognised at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost except for:

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss; and

- Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets which did not qualify for derecognition, whereby a
financial liability is recognised for the consideration received for the transfer.

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised at the time when these are extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the

contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is
taken to the profit and loss account.
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5.16 Impairment of Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than investment property
and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash generated units (CGU).

The Group considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both, an individual asset and a collective level. All
individually significant assets were individually assessed for impairment. Those found not to be impaired are then
collectively assessed for any impairment that had been incurred but not yet individually identified. Assets that were not
individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment. Collective assessment is carried out by grouping together
assets with similar risk characteristics.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in
use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

5.17 Off balance sheet obligations

The Group issues financial guarantee contracts in return for fees (i.e. commission on guarantee) to associated concerns.
Under a financial guarantee contract, the Group undertakes to meet counter party's obligations under the terms of a debt
instrument, if the counter party fails to do so.

5.18 Foreign currency transaction and foreign operations

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistan Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transactions. All the monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies, at the reporting date, are translated into Pakistan
Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on translation are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss except in case of SEDPL, subsidiary company, which has availed the
exemption as allowed by the SECP vide S.R.O 24(1)/2012 dated 16 January 2012 for the power sector companies, such
gain or loss to be capitalized as part of plant which is departure from the requirement of International Accounting
Standard (IAS) 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates'.

5.19 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred on short term and long term borrowings are recognised as an expense in the period in which
these are incurred, except that those which are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset (i.e. an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale)

are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

5.20 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of consolidated statement of cash flow comprises of cash in hand, share
transfer stamps, banking instruments, cash at bank and short term running finance.
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5.21 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. As per IFRS 8
'‘Operating Segment', Operating segment are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting used by the Chief
Operating Decision Makers. All operating segments’ results are reviewed regularly by the Group's management to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance.

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing related product or services and
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from thereof other segments. The Group's primary reporting segment is
based on business segments as the Group conduct its business in Pakistan only. Segment results that are reported to the Group's
management include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets.

5.22 Dividend and appropriation to reserve

Dividend distribution to shareholders and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
period in which these are approved.

6 SHARE CAPITAL
6.1 Authorised share capital
2021 2020 2021 2020
(Number of shares) (Rupees)
1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000
6.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
5,000,000 5,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid in cash 50,000,000 50,000,000
450,750,000 450,750,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
issued as fully paid bonus shares 4,507,500,000 4,507,500,000
455,750,000 455,750,000 4,557,500,000 4,557,500,000
(2,000,000) (2,000,000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
bought back at Rs. 360 per
share 6.2.1 (20,000,000) (20,000,000)
(45,375,000) (45,375,000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
bought back at Rs. 27 per share 6.2.2 (453,750,000) (453,750,000)
408,375,000 408,375,000 4,083,750,000 4,083,750,000

6.2.1 During financial year 2005-2006, the Parent Company bought back two million shares of Rs. 10 each from its shareholders through
tender notice at a price of Rs. 360 per share in accordance with section 95-A of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and
Companies (Buy-back of shares) Rules, 1999. The acquisition resulted in reduction of capital and unappropriated profit by Rs. 20
million and Rs. 700 million respectively, in the relevant year.

6.2.2 During the financial year 2019-2020, the Parent Company purchased and cancelled 45,375,000 ordinary shares (10% of existing
shares i.e. 453,750,000). The buy-back and cancellation of shares were approved by shareholders at the extra ordinary general
meeting held on 3rd July 2019. The shares were acquired at a purchase price of Rs. 27 per share. The purchase of shares were
made in cash out of the distributable profits as required under Section 88(8) of the Companies Act, 2017 read with the Listed
Companies (Buy-Back of Shares) Regulations, 2019. Pursuant to buy-back of shares the ordinary share capital of the Parent
Company has been reduced by 45,375,000 ordinary shares amounting to Rs. 453,750,000.
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6.2.3 At year end, Mr. Arif Habib (Chief Executive Officer of the Parent Company) held 80.54% (2020: 78.84%) of ordinary shares in the
Parent Company.

7. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION
In the year 2015, Arif Habib Limited (AHL), a subsidiary company, had reclassified Leasehold Land and Offices to Investment

Property. Immediately before transfer, AHL re-measured the said assets on respective fair values and recognised surplus in
revaluation reserve as per the requirement of IAS 40 'Investment Property'.

8. OTHER RESERVES 2021 2020
(Restated)
(Rupees)
Fair value reserve 19,404,859 277,909,628
General reserve 4,019,567,665 4,019,567,665
Unappropriated profit 21,867,169,830 14,878,924,941
25,906,142,354 19,176,402,234
9. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (NCI)

Following are the share of non-controlling interests in respective companies of the group:

Note 2021 2020
(Restated)
(Rupees)
Subsidiary Companies
Arif Habib Limited 9.1 1,578,137,320 1,051,380,758
Arif Habib Commodities (Private) Limited 9.1 30,391,856 24,503,842
Arif Habib 1857 (Private) Limited 9.1 15,981,932 15,431,924
1,624,511,108 1,091,316,524
Sachal Energy Development (Private) Limited 9.1 1,261,054,832 995,400,998
2,885,565,940 2,086,717,522
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9.1

The following table summarises the information relating to each of the Group's subsidiaries that has NCI, before any intra

group eliminations.

NCI Percentage

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net assets

Net assets attributable to NCI
Revenue

Profit

Total comprehensive income
Profit allocated to NCI

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash

equivalents

Dividend paid to NCI

30 June 2021

Arif Habib
Limited

30.56%

2,221,558,829
6,249,943,330

3,525,415
3,472,593,374

Sachal Energy

Development
(Private)
Limited

14.17%

13,759,891,110
5,588,249,913
7,480,512,770
2,988,217,836

4,995,383,370

8,879,410,417

1,578,137,320

1,261,054,832

2,828,756,364

2,084,005,193

3,862,936,450

1,864,137,972

2,084,005,193

1,864,137,972

636,762,683

265,653,834

3,306,205,926
(9,486,413)
(962,092,124)

2,467,517,207
(1,973,308)
(2,044,445,723)

2,334,627,389

Arif Habib Arif Habib
Commodities 1857
(Private) (Private)
Limited Limited
30.56% 30.56%
(Rupees)
13,327,335 19,007,500
97,325,384 28,634,796
18,239,781 643,196
92,412,938 46,999,100
30,391,856 15,981,932
34,685,656 1,673,066
18,518,515 1,799,766
18,518,515 1,799,766
5,888,014 550,008
41,824,882 1,854,257
(31,527,035) -
(15,102,687) -
(4,804,840) 1,854,257

421,098,176

45,385,290
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9.2

NCI Percentage

Non-current assets

Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Net assets

Net assets attributable to NCI

Revenue

Profit

Total comprehensive income

Profit allocated to NCI

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Buy-back from NCI

Profit allocated to NCI

Arif Habib Limited - Standalone
Arif Habib 1857 (Private) Limited

Arif Habib Commodities (Private) Limited

30 June 2020

Sachal Energy Development (Private) Limited

@ Arif Habib Corporation Limited

Arif Habib Arif Habib Arif Habib Sachal Energy
Limited Commodities 1857 Development
(Restated) (Private) (Private) (Private)
Limited Limited Limited
30.56% 30.56% 30.56% 14.17%
(Rupees)
1,924,961,388 13,224,143 19,007,500 15,429,573,686
4,944,092,603 82,301,322 26,833,987 4,061,155,236
358,429,181 - - 9,545,405,937
3,239,291,033 21,631,042 642,152 2,930,050,540
3,271,333,777 73,894,423 45,199,335 7,015,272,445
1,051,380,758 24,503,842 15,431,924 995,400,998
687,563,691 25,969,213 1,695,112 4,098,604,448
59,856,433 4,469,183 2,393,248 1,830,985,197
59,856,433 4,469,183 2,393,248 1,830,985,197
16,816,713 1,255,620 672,385 259,450,602
(434,205,201) (6,555,315) (22,133,918) 2,616,748,329
141,813,538 6,323,737 - 11,998,715
544,275,763 165,187 - (2,495,791,632)
251,884,100 (66,391) (22,133,918) 132,955,412
231,000,000 - - -
2021 2020
(Rupees)
636,762,683 16,816,713
550,008 672,385
5,888,014 1,255,620
265,653,834 259,450,602
908,854,539 278,195,320
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10. LONG TERM LOANS - secured Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)

Term finance loan - ICBC 10.1
Less: Current portion

9,498,000,000 11,812,500,000
(1,583,000,000)  (1,687,500,000)
7,915,000,000 10,125,000,000

Transaction cost

Balance at 1 July (623,948,726) (786,428,982)
Less: Amortisation during the year 146,210,207 162,480,256
(477,738,519) (623,948,726)

7,437,261,481 9,501,051,274

Term finance loan - ABL 10.2 - 499,987,261
Less: Current portion - (166,666,667)
- 333,320,594

7,437,261,481 9,834,371,868

10.1  This represent long term loan facility of USD 100 million (currently outstanding USD 60 million) availed by subsidiary
company, SEDPL from Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (ICBC) under facility agreement dated 15 February
2015. The facility agreement has been registered with the State Bank of Pakistan on 29 May 2015. The loan carries
mark-up at the rate of six months LIBOR plus 3.75% payable in arrears on semi annual basis. Principal is repayable in
20 bi-annual instalments with a grace period of two years. During the year, 2 semi annual installments of USD 5 million
each (2019: 2 semi-annual installment of USD 5 million) was repaid.

This loan has been secured against first charge of USD 107,134,400 duly registered with Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan, over all present and future current and operating fixed assets, pledge of all shares of the

SEDPL in favour of ICBC and corporate guarantee issued by the Parent Company in the favour of ICBC.

Following are the key conditions as per the facility agreement which can create lender's right to demand payment of all
or part of the outstanding loan:

- non payment of any due amount in pursuant to facility agreement;

- failure to comply with the terms of facility agreement related to purpose, security, non-disposal, SINOSURE
'insurance policy, negative pledge and financial covenants of the guarantee;

- any material misrepresentation given in relation to the facility agreement ;
- in case of insolvency of SEDPL or insolvency legal proceedings against SEDPL;

- in case of material adverse effect due to modification, revocation, suspension, termination or expiry of license
or authority;

- SINOSURE insurance policy is terminated, repudiated, invalid or ineffective in any other way; and
- SEDPL suspends or ceases to carry on all or a material part of its business.

10.2  On 30 June 2020, subsidiary company, AHL, had signed a facility letter with Allied Bank Limited (ABL) whereby the
outstanding running finance facility amounting to Rs. 499.99 million had been converted into a long term loan under
markup arrangement at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 1% to be charged on quarterly basis. The loan was repayable in
twelve quarterly installments ending on 30 June 2023. However, during the year, AHL settled the term loan in full due to
availability of sufficient liquidity.

11. LAND LEASE LIABILITY 2021 2020
(Rupees)

Balance at 1 July 11,685,571 11,296,248
Charge for the year 1,744,543 1,749,323
Paid during the year (1,360,000) (1,360,000)
Balance at 30 June 12,070,114 11,685,571
Current portion shown under current liabilities (1,360,000) (1,360,000)

10,710,114 10,325,571
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111

12.

121

12.2

113

This represents lease rental liability against 680 acres of land in Jhimpir Area, District Thatta of the
Province of Sindh acquired by SEDPL, subsidiary company, under a sub lease agreement dated 20
October 2014 of master lease agreement dated 11 February 2008. Under the terms of the sub-lease
deed, SEDPL has paid lease rental and incidental expenses amounting to Rs. 5,905,000 for 10 years.
SEDPL is required to pay lease rental amounting to Rs. 1,360,000 yearly for ten years (from 1 February
2018 to 31 January 2028), and Rs. 3,145,000 yearly for the next ten years (from 1 February 2028 to 31
January 2038). The lease rentals are being amortized on straight line basis over the useful life of the

project.

LEASE LIABILITY AGAINST RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

This represent lease liability of Parent Company and AHL, subsidiary company.

2021 2020
(Rupees)

As at 1 July 65,720,505 -
Effect of lease modification 18,141,316 -
Additions during the year 6,540,869 97,113,193
Interest accrued 8,273,351 10,315,387
Payments (35,730,327) (41,708,075)
As at 30 June 62,945,714 65,720,505
Lease liability 62,945,714 65,720,505
Less: Current portion of lease liability (41,479,177) (26,029,805)

21,466,537 39,690,700
Lease liability is payable as follows: 2021

Less than one Between one Total
year and two years
(Rupees)

Future minimum lease payments 43,457,394 22,069,705 65,527,099
less: Interest (1,978,216) (603,169) (2,581,385)
Present value of minimum lease payment 41,479,178 21,466,536 62,945,714

2020

Less than one Between one Total
year and two years
(Rupees)

Future minimum lease payments 28,601,260 40,434,447 69,035,707
less: Interest (2,571,455) (743,747) (3,315,202)
Present value of minimum lease payment 26,029,805 39,690,700 65,720,505

The remaining lease term is ranging from 12 to 41 months and the present value has been discounted at

rates ranging from 9% to 15% per annum.

LOAN UNDER STATE BANK OF PAKISTAN SCHEME

Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Loan under State Bank of Pakistan scheme 13.1 25,023,885 14,985,323
Less: Amount Payable within next twelve months (15,547,461) (4,265,520)
9,476,424 10,719,803
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14.

14.1

15.

The subsidiary company, SEDPL, has availed the concessional loan from Faysal Bank Limited at the mark
up rate of 3% payable quarterly in arrears under the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) incentive scheme -
Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries to the Workers and Employees of Business
Concerns. The scheme was availed as sub-limit of the existing finance facility of SEDPL of Rs. 1,000
million (mentioned in note 17.2) and it is repayable over a period of two years with a grace period of six
months. The above loan has not been discounted to fair value, as the impact is not considered to be
material.

DEFERRED LIABILITY - GRATUITY

This represents deferred liability for employees' gratuity obligation of SEDPL (subsidiary company):

2021 2020
(Rupees)
Balance at beginning of the year 19,043,769 14,056,165
Provision for the year 6,650,423 6,139,167
Gratuity paid during the year (2,629,441) (1,151,563)
Balance at end of the year 23,064,751 19,043,769

This include provision for gratuity of Rs. 15.074 million (2020: Rs. 13.893 million) payable to key
management personnel of SEDPL. The acturial valuation in respect of provision for gratuity as not been
carried out since the management believes that the impact is not material.

DEFERRED TAXATION - net Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)

Taxable temporary differences

- Accelerated tax depreciation 11,386,042 13,041,743
- Investment in equity accounted associates 1,573,010,106 1,413,711,170
- Unrealised gain on investments 337,917,598 45,578,682
- Right-of-use assets - net = 653,474
- Dividend receivable - 95,700,062

Deductible temporary differences

Allowance for impairment loss on trade debts
Intangible assets

Lease liability against right of use assets - net
Accelerated tax depreciation

Unrealised gain on investments

Long term investments

Impairment loss on other 'long term investment'

Unused tax losses

Deferred tax asset not recognised
Deferred tax liability

1,922,313,746

1,568,685,131

(268,015,283) (274,905,787)
(6,815,000) (6,815,000)
(1,252,701) -

- (264,692)
- (157,461,327)
- (49,598)
- (435,000)
(276,082,984) (439,931,404)

1,646,230,762

(196,706,850)

1,128,753,727

(160,757,551)

1,449,523,912

358,867,218

967,996,176

540,691,484

1,808,391,130

1,508,687,660
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15.1

15.2

16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

17.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items, because it is not probable
that future taxable profits under normal tax regime will be available against which the respective
companies can use the benefits therefrom. This includes deferred tax asset not recognised an unused tax
losses of Rs. 196.71 million (2020: Rs. 160.758 million).

Net difference of Rs. 299.703 million has been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Creditors 16.1 1,561,332,395 747,901,751
Commission payable 16.2 102,628,722 19,605,841
Operating and maintenance payable 16.3 116,759,966 179,722,969
Indirect taxes payable 167,558,320 30,788,463
Workers' Profit Participation Fund Payable 93,695,690 -
Loan from a Director 16.4 3,862,500 3,862,500
Other accrued expenses 16.5 37,840,476 13,990,050
Other liabilities 16.6 66,972,535 13,590,856
2,150,650,604 1,009,462,430

This includes amount of Rs. 126.10 million (2020: Rs. 6 million) payable to related parties by AHL. The
balance is unsecured and interest free.

This includes amount of Rs. 49.15 million (2020: Rs. 8.50 million) payable to related parties by AHL. The
balance is unsecured and interest free.

This amount represents payable by SEDPL (a subsidiary company) to Hydrochina International
Engineering Company Limited on account of operations and maintenance of plant.

The said loan was provided by the Chief Executive Officer of the subsidiary Company to meet working
capital requirements of AHCPL (a subsidiary company). It carries no mark-up, repayable on demand and is
unsecured.

This includes Rs. 1.19 million (2020: Rs. 0.098 million) payable to Rotocast Engineering Co. (Pvt) Limited a
related party, on account of monthly expense contribution of utilities and maintenance charges.

This includes Rs. 45 million payable to the Chief Executive Officer of SEDPL on account of bonus for the
year ended 30 June 2021.

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Secured - from banking companies
- Running finance from banks 17.1 2,472,056,459 2,506,903,268
- Running Musharka 17.2 964,996,900 930,000,000
3,437,053,359 3,436,903,268
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17.1 Short term running finance facilities are available to Parent Company and its subsidiary company, AHL,
from various commercial banks, under mark-up arrangements, amounting to Rs. 8,700 million (2020: Rs.
8,600 million). These facilities have various maturity dates up to 30 September 2024 and need to be
renewed after that. These arrangements are secured against the pledge of marketable securities valued
at Rs.10,723 million (2020: Rs. 8,785 million) and the corporate guarantee by the parent company.

These running finance facilities carry mark-up ranging from 1 month KIBOR + 0.5% to 1% and 3 'months
KIBOR + 0.5% to 1.75% (2020: 1 month KIBOR + 0.75% to 1.%, 3 months KIBOR + 0.55% to 1.75%)
calculated on a daily product basis, and is payable quarterly. The aggregate amount of these facilities
which have not been availed at the reporting date amounts to Rs. 6,228 million (2020: Rs. 6,093 million).

17.2 This represents short term Running Musharka ("RM") facility of Rs. 1,000 million (2020: 1,000 million
short term Running Finance ("RF")) obtained from Faysal Bank Limited ("FBL") by SEDPL, against
following securities and is repayable as per the terms of RM over a period of one year. These are
secured against the following:

- Ranking charge over all present and future current and fixed assets of SEDPL.
- personal guarantee of director Mr. Arif Habib.

This RM facility is further divided into two limits as below:

- Rs. 975 million at target profit rate of 3M KIBOR plus 2.25% (2020: Rs. 985 million at interest rate of
3M KIBOR plus 2.5% as per RF) payable on a quarterly basis.

- Rs. 25 million at fixed markup rate of 3% (2020: Rs. 15 million at fixed markup of 3%) payable on
quarterly basis as disclosed in note 13.1.

18. SUBORDINATED LOAN

During the year ended June 30, 2020. AHL, subsidiary company, had obtained subordinated loan
amounting to Rs. 1,100 million from the sponsor (Mr. Arif Habib). The details of the loan obtained are as
follows:

a. Short term, unsecured, subordinate, interest free loan of Rs. 800 million payable on demand and
which had been repaid on 11 May 2020.

b. Long term unsecured, subordinate loan of Rs 300,000,000 which was payable after 13 months of
disbursement of loan amount. The interest rate was 6 month KIBOR + 2% payable semi-annually.

However, during the year, in August 2020, AHL repaid the loan as substantial cash flows had become
available.

19. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
19.1 Contingencies
Parent Company

19.1.1 During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
issued an order under Section 22 of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 ("the Ordinance")
regarding non-compliance of orders passed by it under Section 18A of the Ordinance for depositing
confiscated subscription money amounting to Rs. 3.14 million relating to fictitious applications received by
the Parent Company for subscription of shares of Summit Bank Limited that were offered to general
public by the Parent Company in 2007. On 2 November 2012, Appellate bench of the SECP dismissed
the appeal filed by the Parent Company against the order. The Parent Company has filed a constitutional
petition challenging the orders passed by the SECP before Honourable High Court of Sindh which has
granted ad interim stay. The petition is being contested vigorously and management is confident that the

petition will be decided in the Parent Company's favour.
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19.1.2 The Parent Company has issued Corporate Guarantee, on behalf of a subsidiary company, namely
Sachal Energy Development (Private) Limited (SEDPL), amounting to USD 100 million (current
outstanding: USD 60 million) to Industrial Commercial Bank of China in relation to financing agreement of
SEDPL.

19.1.3 The Parent Company has issued guarantee of Rs. 677.45 million on behalf of Aisha Steel Mills Limited
(ASML) - a related party to secure the financing arrangement. The Parent Company has also pledged
24.5 million ordinary shares of Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited valued at Rs. 704.38 million as at year
end to a commercial bank for financing facility availed by ASML.

19.1.4 The Parent Company has issued Corporate Guarantee on behalf of an associated concern, Power
Cement Limited (PCL), to the extent of USD 10.127 million. During the year, exposure on this guarantee
has been reduced to USD 1.16 million. Further, the Parent Company had also issued Corporate
Guarantee on behalf of PCL to the extent of Rs. 847.68 million, issued in favour of Tianjin Electric Power
Construction Co. Ltd, to secure payment obligations of PCL.

19.1.5 The Parent Company has pledged 120.35 million shares of Fatima Fertilizers Limited with various banks
for running finance facilities amounting to Rs. 2,172 million obtained by Arif Habib Limited, a subsidiary
company. The fair value of these shares at the year end amounts to Rs. 3,460 million.

19.1.6 The Parent Company has obtained letters of indemnity from respective related parties.

19.1.7 For tax related matters, refer note 42 to these financial statements.

AHL, Subsidiary Company

19.1.8 AHL is contesting a demand of Rs. 45.42 million raised against its non taxable services vide order issued
on 12 September 2014 by the Assistant Commissioner, Sindh Revenue Board. AHL has filed an appeal
against the impugned order in the appropriate forum and accordingly a stay was granted against the
impugned order. During the previous year, Appellate Tribunal of Sindh Revenue Board has remanded the
case to the learned Commissioner (Appeals) for decision denovo on merits in terms of note / opinion
recorded by the Member Technical. AHL's legal counsel is of the view that the AHL has a favourable
case based on merit. Accordingly no provision of the said amount has been made in these consolidated
financial statements.

SEDPL and BGPL . Subsidiarv Companies
19.1.9 There are no contingencies as on 30 June 2021.

Associates

19.1.10 The Group's share of associates' contingent liabilities is Rs. 3,524 million (2020: 2,809 million).

19.2 Commitments

19.2.1 Parent Company

The Parent Company holds 2.56 million shares (2020: 2.56 million) of Silk Bank Limited in its CDC
account. During financial year 2020, Silkbank Limited’s sponsor had exercised the option granted to him
to purchase the Company’s entire investment in Silkbank Limited. Accordingly, the Parent Company had
derecognised its investment in Silkbank Limited and had also set off relevant deposits and margin
against this investment. However, shares will be transferred as per the option agreement in due course in
line with regulatory approvals.

The legal advisor of the Company also agrees with the above point of view.
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19.2.2

19.2.3

19.2.4

19.2.5

AHL., Subsidiary Companyv 2021 2020

(Rupees)
Followina commitments are outstandina as at the vear end:

- Outstanding settlements against marginal trading
contracts 788,579,531 112,323,212

- Outstandina settlements against sale/purchase of
securities in regular market 34,264,836 53,073,167

- Financial quarantee aiven by a commercial bank on
behalf of AHL 750,000,000 250,000,000

SEDPL. Subsidiary Company

The Subsidiary Company has entered into Service and Availability Agreement with Goldwind Pakistan
(Private) Limited on 1 July 2019 for a period of three (03) years against a fee of USD 978,000 per year to
be escalated according to yearly Consumer Price Index fluctuation released by U.S. Bureau of Labor
Statistics.

Associates

The Group's share of associates' commitments is Rs. 1,394 million (2020: 471 million).
Significant contracts of SEDPL
(@) Energy Purchase Agreement (EPA)

SEDPL has entered into Energy Purchase Agreement (EPA) on 27 February 2014 with National
Transmission and Despatch Company Limited (through its Central Power Purchasing Agency) on
behalf of ex- WAPDA Distribution Companies ("the Power Purchaser") for the sale of its entire
energy. The term of EPA is 20 years.

(b) Implementation Agreement (I1A)

SEDPL has entered into Implementation Agreement (IA) with Government of Pakistan on 11 August
2014 to install wind turbines, generate and sell electricity up to 49.5 MW in Sindh Province, Pakistan.

(c) Facility Agreement

SEDPL has entered into Facility Agreement of USD 100 Million with Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China (ICBC) on 15 February 2015.

(d) Short Term Finance Facility

SEDPL has entered into short term running finance facility (revolving) of Rs. 1,000 million obtained
from Faysal Bank Limited on 9 November 2019 renewed on 9 November 2020 and subsequently
converted to Running Musharka ("RM") on 18 February 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Operating fixed assets 20.1 13,925,492,267 15,599,224,795
20.1 Operating fixed assets
Right-of-use Leasehold Furniture, Vehicles Plant and Office Computer Total
asset buildings and fixtures Owned machinery equipment and allied
improvements  and fittings equipment
(Rupees)

COosT
Balance as at 01 July 2020 100,944,658 202,708,984 8,630,124 62,788,701 17,894,182,345 7,706,654 39,218,804 18,316,180,270
Additions during the year 6,540,869 = 8,984,521 463,900 = 757,368 18,011,625 34,758,283
Effect of lease modification 18,141,316 - - - - - - 18,141,316
Disposals / exchange gain = = (2,233,987) (477,500) (755,850,000) (843,170) (520,353) (759,925,010)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 125,626,843 202,708,984 15,380,658 62,775,101 17,138,332,345 7,620,852 56,710,076 17,609,154,859
DEPRECIATION
Balance as at 01 July 2020 32,970,794 139,395,881 2,572,167 32,763,107 2,476,076,721 3,258,817 29,917,988 2,716,955,475
Charge for the year 34,029,987 8,979,895 1,416,547 6,016,275 911,507,581 717,750 5,767,698 968,435,733
Disposals / transfers - - (560,148) (80,900) - (604,679) (482,889) (1,728,616)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 67,000,781 148,375,776 3,428,566 38,698,482 3,387,584,302 3,371,888 35,202,797 3,683,662,592
Written down value as

at 30 June 2021 58,626,062 54,333,208 11,952,092 24,076,619 13,750,748,043 4,248,964 21,507,279 13,925,492,267
COSsT
Balance as at 01 July 2019 - 170,235,651 6,731,170 47,242,953 17,677,729,387 8,013,946 37,805,788 17,947,758,895
Additions during the year /

exchange loss capitalised 100,944,658 - 2,173,170 15,717,281 231,000,000 267,435 2,040,823 352,143,367
Transfer from investment
property (Note 24) 32,473,333 - - - - - 32,473,333
Disposals - - (274,216) (171,533) (14,547,042) (574,727) (627,807) (16,195,325)
Balance as at 30 June 2020 100,944,658 202,708,984 8,630,124 62,788,701 17,894,182,345 7,706,654 39,218,804 18,316,180,270
DEPRECIATION
Balance as at 01 July 2019 - 133,953,568 1,827,959 28,316,629 1,596,143,599 2,850,367 26,267,920 1,789,360,042
Charge for the year 32,970,795 5,442,313 847,562 4,560,385 881,751,501 860,347 4,222,513 930,655,416
Disposals / transfers - - (103,354) (113,907) (1,818,380) (451,897) (572,445) (3,059,983)
Balance as at 30 June 2020 32,970,795 139,395,881 2,572,167 32,763,107 2,476,076,720 3,258,817 29,917,988 2,716,955,475
Written down value as

at 30 June 2020 67,973,863 63,313,103 6,057,957 30,025,594 15,418,105,625 4,447,837 9,300,816 15,599,224,795
Rates of depreciation (%) 33 5-15 10-15 20 5 15- 20 33

Carrying value of plant and machinery at 30 June 2021 includes foreign exchange loss of Rs. 3.927 billion (2020: Rs. 4.969 billion). Exchange gain of Rs. 755.85 million have been
recorded in the carrying value of plant and machinery in the current year (2020: Loss of Rs. 231 million). The exchange difference has been included in the carrying value of plant
machinery in view of the exemption available vide SECP's notification reference SRO 980(1)/2019 of 2 September 2019 under which all companies that have executed their power

purchase agreements before 01 January 2019 are entitled to that exemption.

yalk, INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer Software
Cost
Opening balance
Additions during the year
Closing balance
Amortisation
Opening balance
Amortisation for the year
Closing balance
Written down value as at 30 June

Rates of amortisation (%)

21.1 The amortisation charge has been allocated to and administrative expenses (note 38).

| W4 Aif Habib Corporation Limited

2021 2020
(Rupees)

9,654,921 9,108,247
618,990 546,674
10,273,911 9,654,921
7,253,115 | 6,695,973
418,238 557,142
7,671,353 7,253,115
2,602,558 2,401,806

25% & 33%

25% & 33%




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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22.

22.1

22.2

GOODWILL

Goodwill is monitored by the management at individual entity level which are considered cash generating units. The
carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the individual cash generating units (CGUSs) is as follows:

Arif Habib Limited

Sachal Energy Development (Private) Limited

Note

22.1
22.2

Impairment testing of Goodwill relating to Arif Habib Limited (AHL)

2021 2020
(Rupees)
838,683,576 838,683,576
71,522,541 71,522,541
910,206,117 910,206,117

The calculation of recoverable amount of Goodwill for the purpose of impairment testing was based on value in use,
estimated using discounted cash flows. Key assumptions used in determining the value in use calculation were as

follows:

Type Date of

valuation

Subsidiary - Arif Habib
Limited

30 June 2021

Valuation approach and
assumnotions

Free cash flows:

The valuation model considers the
present value of free cash flow of
subsidiary company discounted

using a risk-adjusted discount rate.

The cash flow projection include
specific estimates for 4 years.

Inputs used:

Lona term arowth rate
Lona term return on equity
Risk premium

Inter-relationship between
significant unobservable Inputs
and fair value measurement

The estimated fair value would
increase / (decrease) if:

- the annual growth rate were higher

or lower
- the EBITDA margin were higher or

lower

Generally, a change in the annual
growth rate is accompanied by a
directionally similar change in
EBITDA margin.

4%
15.71%
7.04%

Impairment testing of goodwill relating to Sachal Energy Development (Private) Limited (SEDPL)

The calculation of recoverable amount of Goodwill for the purpose of impairment testing was based on value in use,
estimated using discounted cash flows. Key assumptions used in determining the value in use calculation were as

follows:

Date of
valuation

Type

Subsidiary - Sachal Energy 30 June 2021
Development (Private)

Limited (SEDPL)

Other matters

Valuation approach and
assumnotions

Discounted cash flows:

The valuation model considers the
present value of future cash flow
of subsidiary company discounted

using a risk-adjusted discount rate.

The cash flow projection include
specific estimates for 16 years.

Inputs used:

Beta

Lona term return on equity
Risk premium

Inter-relationship between
significant unobservable Inputs
and fair value measurement

The estimated fair value would
increase / (decrease) if:

- the annual growth rate were higher
or lower
- the EBITDA margin were higher or

lower

Generally, a change in the annual
growth rate is accompanied by a
directionally similar change in
EBITDA margin.

1
15.00%
6.00%

In addition to be above, the Group has also prepared its projections on a dividend growth model, based on which also the
management is of a view that no impairment of goodwill is required.
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23. TRADING RIGHT ENTITLEMENT CERTIFICATE, Note 2021 2020
MEMBERSHIP CARD AND OFFICES (Rupees)

Trading right entitlement certificate

Cost 35,500,000 35,500,000

Impairment (30,500,000) (30,500,000)
23.1 5,000,000 5,000,000

Membership cards

- Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited 1,000,000 1,000,000

Booths

- Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited - three booths 2,100,000 2,100,000

8,100,000 8,100,000

23.1 This represents TREC received by Subsidiary Companies, Arif Habib Limited and M/s. Arif Habib 1857 (Private) Limited,
in accordance with the Stock Exchanges (Corporatization, Demutualization and Integration) Act 2012. These are carried
at cost less impairment.

23.2 PSX vide notice no. PSX/N-225 dated 16 February 2021 have notified the notional fees of Trading Right Entitlement
Certificates which amounts to Rs. 2.5 million.

24. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)

Opening balance 1,678,415,232 1,726,419,800
Additions during the year 152,500,000 -
Development charges / additions during the year = 11,943,765
Disposal during the year (152,500,000) (159,475,000)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment - (32,473,333)

24.1 1,678,415,232 1,546,415,232
Changes in fair value - net 290,384,768 132,000,000

1,968,800,000 1,678,415,232

24.1 This represents investment in plots of land and residential bungalows (valued at Rs. 1.907 billion) situated at Naya
Nazimabad, Deh Mangohpir, Gadap Town, Karachi owned by, a subsidiary company, AHL. Further, this includes
investment in the offices located in the building complex of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and LSE Financial Services
Limited (respectively valued at Rs. 32.5 million and Rs. 29.5 million) owned by AHL. The Naya Nazimabad Project is
owned and managed by Javedan Corporation Limited (a related party of the Group). As of the reporting date, the fair
value of such investment properties were determined by an independent external property valuer having appropriate
recognised qualification and relevant experience according to which there was an increase of Rs. 290.384 million (2020:
132 million) in the fair value of the properties and forced sales value of these investment properties are Rs. 1,673.48
million (2020: Rs. 1,456.4 million).
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25.

25.1

25.2

25.3

25.4

EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited (FFCL) 25.1 13,999,653,270 12,937,523,356
MCB - Arif Habib Savings and Investments
Limited (MCB-AH) 25.2 482,381,693 466,604,254
National Resources (Private) Limited (NRPL) 25.3 99,221,751 -
Pakarab Fertilizers Limited (PFL) 25.4 - -

14,581,256,714 13,404,127,610

Investment in FFCL (quoted) represents 319 million (2020: 319 million) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each,
representing 15.19% (2020: 15.19%) of FFCL's paid up share capital as at 30 June 2021. Fair value per share as at 30
June 2021 is Rs. 28.75 (2020: Rs. 26.73) which is based on quoted share price on stock exchange at reporting date.

Investment in MCB-AH (quoted) represents 21.66 million (2019: 21.66 million) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each,
representing 30.09% (2020: 30.09%) of MCB-AH's paid up share capital as at 30 June 2021. Market value per share as
at 30 June 2021 was Rs. 36.75 (2020: Rs. 22.84) which is based on quoted share price on stock exchange at reporting
date.

On 22nd June 2021, the parent company had subscribed 9,999,350 ordinary shares of NRPL having face value of Rs. 10
each. The Company holds 9.57% of NRPL's paid up share capital as at 30 June 2021. NRPL is in its pre-feasibility stage
and has not yet commenced its operations and has yet to apply for a mining license. NRPL intends to carry on the
business of exploring, operating and working on mines, quarries and other related activities. The investment is under a
joint venture agreement dated 20 November 2020 between sponsors (Y.B Pakistan Ltd, Arif Habib Equity (Private)
Limited, Liberty Mills Limited, Reliance Commodities (Private) Limited and Mari Petroleum Company Limited). The
Company has one director on the Board of the company and has the capacity to nominate one such director. All other
investors too can appoint one director each.

Investment in PFL (unquoted) represents 135 million (2020: 135 million) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each,
representing 30% (2020: 30%) of PFL's paid up share capital as at 30 June 2021, having cost of Rs. 1,324.33 million
(2020: Rs. 1,324.33 million). The group has not recognised loss amounting to Rs. 661.11 million (2020: Rs.1.22 billion) in
relation to it interest in PFL, because the Group has no obligation in respect of this loss.
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255

Summarized financial information of the associates of the Group is as follows:

Percentage ownership interest

As per the consistent accounting policies

Non-current assets

Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Net assets

Group's interest in net assets of investee company

Goodwill

Restricting share of loss to carrying amount (refer note 25.4)

Carrying amount of equity accounted investee *

Revenue

Profit / (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Group's share of total comprehensive income in equity
accounted investee

Dividends received by the Group

Percentage ownership interest

As per the consistent accounting policies
Non-current assets

Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Net assets

Elimination of unpaid dividend

Net assets of equity accounted investee (adjusted)
Group's interest in net assets of investee company
Restricting share of loss to carrying amount (refer note 25.3)

Carrying amount of equity accounted investee *

Revenue

Profit / (loss) from continuing operations for the year
Loss from discontinuing operations

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income / (loss)

Group's share of total comprehensive income in equity
accounted investee

Dividends received by the Group

2021
MCB - Arif Habib Pakarab Fatima Fertilizer National
Savings and Fertilizers Company Resources
Investments Limited Limited (Private)
Limited Limited
(Rupees in '000)

30.09% 30.00% 15.19% 9.57%
1,016,543 11,424,945 116,380,929 3,448
1,358,968 17,558,073 56,062,063 602,801

85,178 7,946,061 28,335,501 1,528
687,203 23,240,650 51,943,875 9,382
1,603,130 (2,203,693) 92,163,616 595,339
482,382 (661,108) 13,999,653 56,974
- - - 42,248
- 661,108 -
482,382 - 13,999,653 99,222
482,382 - 13,999,653 99,222
993,695 19,729 93,742,567 -
376,434 1,225,713 15,428,442 (327,050)
- 3,289,139 17,599 -
376,434 4,514,852 15,446,041 (327,050)
113,266 - 2,497,631 (772)
97,489 - 1,435,501 -
2020
MCB - Arif Habib Pakarab Fatima Fertilizer
Savings and Fertilizers Company
Investments Limited Limited
Limited
—————————————————————————— (Rupees in '000) -----=-======nnmmmmmmmmnns
30.09% 30.00% 15.19%
947,663 9,794,649 111,268,224
1,317,910 24,155,324 40,458,761
89,423 7,401,743 25,279,073
625,454 30,604,158 45,476,593
1,550,696 (4,055,928) 80,971,319
- - 4,200,000
1,550,696 (4,055,928) 85,171,319
466,604 (1,216,778) 12,937,523
- 1,216,778 -
466,604 - 12,937,523
466,604 - _
835,520 12,334 65,783,770
257,669 (1,357,421) 12,173,454
- (1,003,934) -
- 19,645 22,645
257,669 (2,341,710) 12,196,099
75,430 - 1,369,144
50,910,792 - -

* Group's share of net assets equal the carrying amount of equity accounted investees as per the consistent accounting policies.
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25.6 Group's share of total comprehensive income / (loss) in 2021 2020
equity accounted investee (Rupees)
Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited (FFCL) 2,497,630,841 1,369,144,283
MCB - Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited (MCB-AH) 113,266,191 75,429,638
Pakarab Fertilizers Limited (PFL) - -
National Resources (Private) Limited (NRPL) (771,749) -
2,610,125,283 1,444,573,921
Less: Other comprehensive income (2,673,289) (3,439,775)
Taken to statement of profit or loss 2,607,451,994 1,441,134,146
25.7 Financial statements of MCB-AH, FFCL and PFL have been audited by their independent auditors.
26. OTHER LONG TERM INVESTMENTS Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Equity securities - at FVOCI 26.1 - -
Equity securities - designated at FVTPL 26.2 54,754,771 45,056,656
54,754,771 45,056,656
26.1 Equity securities - at FVOCI Note 2021
Shares Fair value
(Number) (Rupees)
Sun Biz (Private) Limited (SBL) 26.1.2 & 26.1.3 10,000 -
Al-Khabeer Financial Services (Private) Limited (AKFS) 26.1.2&26.1.4 5,000 -
Note 2020
Shares Fair value
(Number) (Rupees)
Sun Biz (Private) Limited (SBL) 26.1.2 & 26.1.3 10,000 -
Al-Khabeer Financial Services (Private) Limited (AKFS) 26.1.2&26.1.4 5,000 -
26.1.1 Investment in SBL (unquoted) and AKFS (unquoted) were fully impaired in previous years and no change in fair value
is recognised in current year's financial statements.
26.1.2 Investmentin SBL (unquoted) represents 10,000 (2020:10,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each.
26.1.3 Investment in AKFS (unquoted) represents 5,000 (2020:5,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 200 each.
26.2 Equity securities - designated at FVTPL Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
ISE Towers REIT Management Company Limited 26.2.1 37,841,512 31,620,574
LSE Financial Services Limited 26.2.1 16,913,259 13,436,082
54,754,771 45,056,656
26.2.1 This represents the investment in 3,304,604 (2020: 3,304,604) unquoted ordinary shares of M/s. ISE Towers REIT

Management Company Limited and 843,975 (2020: 843,975) unquoted ordinary shares of M/s. LSE Financial Services
Limited. Management of the subsidiary company has carried out the valuation of the aforementioned investments. In
this connection, Discounted Free Cash Flow to Equity model for business valuation was used to determine fair value of
respective investee companies. Assumptions and inputs used in the valuation technique mainly include risk-free rate,
equity risk premium, long term growth rate and projected rates of increase in revenues, other income and expenses.
Principal assumptions used in the valuation of above unquoted investments described in note 48 to these consolidated
financial statements.
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26.2.2 Reconciliation of (loss) / gain on remeasurement of
long term investments at FVTPL
Cost of investment
Unrealised (loss) / gain:
Balance as at 1 July
Unrealised loss on PSX shares reclassified to short term investments
Unrealised gain / (loss) for the year
Balance as at 30 June
27. LONG TERM LOAN TO RELATED PARTY Note
Secured
Aisha Steel Mills Limited
Less: Current portion of long term loan 30

2021
(Rupees)

58,586,933

2020

58,586,933

(13,530,277)

(20,642,185)

- 15,077,782
9,698,115 (7,965,874)
(3,832,162) (13,530,277)
54,754,771 45,056,656
2021 2020
(Rupees)
163,404,133 163,404,133
(28,433,492) (28,433,492)
134,970,641 134,970,641

27.1 This represents long term loan secured against first charge on all present and future fixed assets, accounts receivables
and interest in any insurance claim and equitable mortgage of land and building. The mark-up rate in the said loan is 6-
month KIBOR plus 3.25% per annum (2020: 6-months KIBOR plus 3.25% per annum). The rate of mark-up on the loan
during the period ranged between 10.49% to 10.60% (2020: ranged between 16.38% to 16.74%) per annum. Mark-up

is payable on a semi-annual basis.

The repayment terms of the above loan was rescheduled during the year due to the impact of COVID-19 and now the
balance is repayable in semi-annually instalments of Rs. 14.216 million effective 19 July 2021. However, markup for
the extended period continued to be recovered. The loan is repayable by January 2025. The repayment period due to
above deferment has been extended by one year and has been approved by the shareholders of the parent company

in their Annual General Meeting. No other terms have been revised.

27.2 Maximum balance due from related party as at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 163.4 million (2020: Rs.

149.19 million).

28. LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Note

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited

Receivable from employees against leased vehicles 28.1
Pakistan Mercantile Exchange deposit

Other deposits

2021 2020
(Rupees)

17,207,961 17,207,961
2,279,393 2,173,138
2,825,138 2,397,440

11,507,205 11,507,205
1,263,536 850,536

35,083,233 34,136,280

28.1 This represents security deposits paid by the Parent Company on behalf of employees for leased vehicle and is
secured against respective employees' provident fund balances. It will be recovered from the respective employees

from their final settlement or on the termination of lease agreement.
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20.

291

29.2

TRADE DEBTS Note

Trade debts - secured 29.1&29.2
- unsecured

Less: Allowance for impairment of trade debts 29.3

Unbilled receivable

Regular energy
Shortfall energy
Bonus energy
Delayed payment

2021

2020

(Rupees)

4,263,651,340
922,272,883

3,243,404,339
979,683,581

5,185,924,223
(922,272,883)

4,223,087,920
(906,321,587)

4,263,651,340

3,316,766,333

73,961,976 63,101,553
22,973,485 18,779,880
11,105,839 11,105,839
167,614,642 233,037,948
275,655,942 326,025,220

4,539,307,282

3,642,791,553

This includes trade debts of Rs. 4.023 billion of SEDPL, subsidiary company, due from Central Power Purchasing
Agency (CPPA-G) which are secured by a guarantee from the Government of Pakistan (GoP) under the Implementation
Agreement (IA) dated 11 August 2014. As referred in note 2.7, SECP has exempted the applicability of expected credit
loss allowance on trade debts due directly / ultimately from GoP. Further, these are subject to mark-up on delay
payments under EPA dated 27 February 2014 at the rate of 3 month KIBOR plus 4.5% per annum.

These trade debts includes amount of Rs. 86.921 million at 30 June 2021 (2020 : Rs. 43.910 million) invoiced on
account of NPMV which has been disallowed by CPPA-G due to revised mechanism for NPMV calculation in draft
Operating Procedures. The Operating Procedures are under discussion between the Company and CPPA-G and yet to
be finalized. The Company believes that the submitted invoices are in accordance with the EPA and the disallowed units
will be allowed under NPMV or compensated in the form of shortfall energy and there will be no impact on recognized
revenue. Therefore, no provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements in this respect.

Age analysis of the above debts are as follows:

Not yet due
Past due

0- 30 days

31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
Above 90 days

2021

2020

(Rupees)

1,167,523,746

323,588,653
194,085,555
162,448,665
2,175,718,930

1,155,091,869

357,932,664
208,524,055
181,299,250
1,257,060,078

4,023,365,549

3,159,907,916

These also includes brokerage and operating fee of Rs. 120.088 million (2020: Rs. 83.571 million) and Advisory and
Consultancy fee of Rs. 120.23 million (2020: Rs. 73.32 million). The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at any
time during the year amounts to Rs. 331.8 million (2020: Rs. 34.4 million). AHL holds capital securities having fair value

of Rs. 59,277 million (2020: Rs. 38,874 million) owned by its clients, as collateral against trade debts.

This include Rs. 4.3 million (2020: Rs. 1.7 million) due from related parties.
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29.3 Movement in allowance for impairment of trade debts during the year was as follows:

2021 2020
(Rupees)
Balance as at 1 July 906,321,587 902,969,044
Provision during the year 15,951,296 3,352,543
Balance as at 30 June 922,272,883 906,321,587

Provision has been made against brokerage and operations and advisory and consultancy fees relating to AHL.

29.4 Refer note 47.1 for the age analysis of total trade debts.

30. LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)

Unsecured

Advance:

- for expenses 1,420,968 889,667

- to consultant 30.1 9,293,760 9,393,760

10,714,728 10,283,427

Secured

Receivable against reverse repo arrangements 30.2 268,568,516 52,152,387

Less: Allowance for impairment 30.3 - (39,711,656)
268,568,516 12,440,731

Advances / loan to employees 30.4 5,734,118 4,991,152

Advance for investment in Silk Islamic Development REIT 30.5 600,000,000 -

Loans to related parties:
Aisha Steel Mills Limited (ASML) - current portion 27 28,433,492 28,433,492
913,450,854 56,148,802

30.1 This represents advance payment made to consultant by AHL, a subsidiary company, in respect of consultancy
services on corporate finance projects.

30.2 This represents amount receivable against reverse repo arrangements and are due for maturity on 30 June 2022 . This
balance carries interest ranging from 12% to 15% and is secured against shares carrying 30% margin.

30.3 Movement in allowance for impairment relating to Receivable against reverse repo agreement is as follows:

2021 2020
(Rupees)
Balance as at 1 July 39,711,656 39,711,656
Reversal during the year (39,711,656) -
Balance as at 30 June - 39,711,656
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30.4 This includes unsecured advance and loans provided to a key management person amounting to Rs. 4 million (2020: Rs.
4.028 million). Except for the above, the loan and advances are secured against the retirement benefits of respective
employees.

30.5 This represent advance paid for equity investment in a Sharia Compliant Apartment Development REIT by the Parent
Company. The said REIT is in the process of acquiring the land from a commercial bank. Thereafter units of the REIT shall
be issued to the subscribers. If the units are not issued to the subscribers, including to the Parent Company, within 240
days of the subscription (i.e. from 30 June 2021 in the Parent Company's case), the same would need to be refunded.

30.6 Maximum balance due from related parties in respect of loans and advances as at the end of any month during the year
was Rs. 922.5 million (2020: Rs. 790 million).

31 DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Deposits 1,151,009 1,151,009
Prepayments 311 57,087,154 60,155,069
Marginal trading system - exposure deposits 31.2 104,272,293 69,536,251
Others 1,494,222 4,605,916
164,004,678 135,448,245

31.1 This amount include prepayments on account of operational insurance made by SEDPL, subsidiary company, amounting to
Rs. 52.5 million (2020: Rs. 46.8 million).

31.2 This represent amounts of deposits held at the year end against exposure arising out of the trading in securities by AHL
and AHCPL, subsidiary companies, in accordance with the regulations of National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited.

32. ACCRUED MARK-UP AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Mark-up receivable
From related parties:

Aisha Steel Mills Limited 27.1 8,589,238 21,441,982
Javedan Corporation Limited (JCL) 32.1 2,722,849 147,616
32.2 11,312,087 21,589,598
Others 32.4 7,653,086 2,766,237
18,965,173 24,355,835
Receivable against margin financing 325 278,740,032 39,672,373
Less: Allowance for impairment 32.6 (1,917,749) (1,917,749)
276,822,283 37,754,624
Guarantee commission receivable 32.7
Aisha Steel Mills Limited 1,051,623 1,095,427
Power Cement Limited 376,575 445,884
1,428,198 1,541,311
Other receivables
Recoverable from CPPA-G 32.8 292,793,753 o
Others 32.9 16,638,617 7,328,589
Dividend receivable - 91,227,000
309,432,370 98,555,589
606,648,024 162,207,359
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Represents the markup receivable on an unsecured loan of Rs. 250 million given to JCL, which was repaid during the
period. The rate of mark-up on the principal balance was 3 month KIBOR plus 2.25% (2020: 3 month KIBOR plus 2.25%)
and was payable quarterly.

The Group timely received the above markup subsequent to the year end.

The maximum amount due from related parties in respect of mark-up receivable as at the end of any month during the year
was Rs. 11.3 million (2020: Rs.36.32 million). Further, the said receivable from related parties are on account of loans
provided to them which are current and not past due.

This includes Rs. 7.65 million (2020: Rs. 2.712 million) due on margin financing.

Margin financing facility is provided to clients on mark-up basis ranging from 12% to 15% (2020: 12% to 18%) per annum.
These are due between 1 to 365 days and are secured against collateral in the form of cash and shares.

Movement in allowance for impairment relating to receivable against margin financing is as follows:

2021 2020
(Rupees)
Balance as at 1 July 1,917,749 1,917,749
Provision during the year = -
Balance as at 30 June 1,917,749 1,917,749

The maximum amount due from related party in respect of guarantee commission as at the end of any month during the
year was Rs. 4.05 million (2020: Rs. 1.79 million).

This includes Rs. 199.1 million paid by SEDPL, subsidiary company, on account of WPPF during the year in respect of
financial years 2017 to 2020 and invoiced to Central Power Purchasing Agency (CPPA-G) being pass through item as per
the terms of EPA based on discussions with CPPA-G. WPPF being pass through item has no impact on the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

This includes Rs. 8.814 million inadvertently deducted by a bank from the Parent Company's bank account on account of
the charges due by a related party to the said Bank. Arrangements have been made for the reversal of the deduction from

the Parent Company's bank account.

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS Note
Equity securities - at FVTPL 33.1
Equity securities - at FVOCI 33.2
Corporate debt securities - at FVTPL 33.3
Equity securities - at FVTPL
Investment in quoted equity securities
- Investment in ordinary shares of related parties 33.1.1
- Investment in preference shares of related parties 33.1.2

- Others

2021

2020

(Rupees)

7,632,492,911
206,907,980
169,265,468

5,483,967,779
724,411,100
252,166,556

8,008,666,359

6,460,545,435

3,286,748,289
854,461,693
3,491,282,929

2,424,528,620

3,059,439,159

7,632,492 911

5,483,967,779

These represents investments in the shares of related parties, namely, in Aisha Steel Mills Limited, Power Cement Limited

and Javedan Corporation Limited.

These represents investments in the preference shares of Power Cement Limited and Aisha Steel Mills Limited.
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33.1.3

33.2

33.3

33.3.1

Reconciliation of (loss) / gain on remeasurement of 2021 2020
equity investments at FVTPL (Rupees)
Cost of investment 6,050,526,378 6,354,150,788

Unrealised (loss) / gain:

Balance as at 1 July (870,183,009) (1,275,482,256)
Unrealised gain for the year 2,452,149,542 405,299,247

1,581,966,533 (870,183,009)
Balance as at 30 June 7,632,492 911 5,483,967,779

Equity securities - at FVOCI

These represents investments by AHL, a subsidiary company in the ordinary shares of Hum Network Limited (HUMNL) listed
on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

2021 2020 2021 2020
(Restated) (Restated)
(Number of shares) Investment in quoted equity ~ cmemeemeeeees (Rupees) -------------

securities - at fair value through
other comprehensive income

57,722,000 - Opening investment (at cost) 301,072,400 -
10,908,000 69,736,000 Investment made during the year 100,785,445 363,545,200
(42,831,000) (12,014,000) Investment disposed of
during the year (222,894,650) (62,472,800)

25,799,000 57,722,000  Closing investment (at cost) 178,963,195 301,072,400

Unrealized gain on remeasurement of

investment 27,944,785 423,338,700

Closing investment (at fair value) 206,907,980 724,411,100

Restated as mentioned above is due to be reason given in note 3 to these financial statements.

Corporate debt securities - at FVTPL Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Term Finance Certificates 33.3.1&33.3.2 169,265,468 252,166,556

This includes Term Finance Certificate (TFCs) amounting to Rs. 145.68 million (2020: 228.53 million) held by subsidiary
company, AHL, under Market Making agreements. AHL has entered into Market Marking agreement in accordance with
Chapter 12 of PSX Rule Book with various Financial and Corporate Institution. Under market making arrangements, AHL has
to maintain minimum inventory of TFC's and Sukuk's to place bid and offer on daily basis, These TFCs and Sukuks carry
coupon rate ranging from 3 month KIBOR + 0.9% to 1.9%, 6 month KIBOR + 0.50% to 2.25% (2020: 3 month KIBOR + 0.9%
to 1.9%, 6 month KIBOR + 0.5% to 2.25%) calculated on the face value of the respective TFCs and Sukuks that is payable
quarterly / semi annually.
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34.1

34.2

34.3

35.

35.1

35.2

35.3

This includes Term Finance Certificates (TFC) of Habib Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 23.59 million (2020: Rs. 23.64

million) under market making arrangements. These TFC carry coupon rate at 3 month KIBOR + 1.6% (2020: 3 month

KIBOR + 1.6%) calculated on the face value of the respective TFC that is payable quarterly.

This includes fair value gain of Rs. 4.28 million (2020: 7.96 million) recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or

Loss.

Fair value of short term investments pledged with banking companies against various financing facilities availed by the

company amounts to Rs. 1,498 million (2020: Rs. 306.66 million).

CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note 2021 2020

(Rupees)

With banks in:

Current accounts

- In local currency 34.1 181,516,593 68,876,464

- In foreign currency 6,327,874 6,768,178

187,844,467 75,644,642

Deposit accounts 34.2 3,724,868,957 1,291,291,355
3,912,713,424 1,366,935,997

Cash in hand (in local and foreign currency) 1,031,348 643,532
3,913,744,772 1,367,579,529

This includes unclaimed dividend deposited in separate dividend account amounting to Rs. 32.26 million (2020: Rs. 32.89

million).

Mark-up on deposit accounts carries profit rates ranging between 2.5% to 7.75% (2020: 4% to 14%) per annum.

Bank balances include customers' bank balances held in designated bank accounts by AHL, subsidiary company,

amounting to Rs. 1,563 million (2020: Rs. 777.251 million) maintained on behalf of the clients.

OPERATING REVENUE Note 2021 2020

(Rupees)

Dividend income 156,361,946 239,287,448

Mark-up income on loans and advances 35.1 25,394,988 75,808,975

Mark-up income on term finance certificates 21,326,778 54,447,908

Brokerage income 734,357,160 346,852,997

Mark-up income on bank deposits 64,996,914 76,415,349

Guarantee commission income 35.2 6,378,166 6,681,530

Underwriting, consultancy and placement commission 671,628,116 155,244,981

Revenue from sale of energy - net 35.3 3,829,226,691 4,054,698,111

Income from reverse repo transaction 13,931,717 39,214,013
5,523,602,476 5,048,651,312

This represents mark-up income on loans extended to related parties, namely Aisha Steel Mills Limited, Power Cement

Limited and Javedan Corporation Limited.
This pertains to guarantees issued to related parties namely, Aisha Steel Mills Limited and Power Cement Limited.

Revenue from sale of energy - net 2021 2020
(Rupees)

Regular energy 2,958,625,633 3,455,699,953

Short fall energy 980,380,416 767,400,760
Less: Sales tax (422,663,092) (496,107,422)

3,516,342,957 3,726,993,291
Late payment charges 312,883,734 327,704,820

3,829,226,691 4,054,698,111
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37.

38.

38.1

38.1.1

Note 2021 2020

GAIN / (LOSS) ON REMEASUREMENT OF INVESTMENTS - NET (Rupees)
Long Term Investment - at fair value through profit and loss 26.2.2 9,698,115 (7,965,874)
Short Term Investments - at fair value through profit and loss 33.1.3&33.3.3 2,456,429,703 413,265,121

2,466,127,818 405,299,247
COST OF ENERGY SALES
Salaries, wages and benefits 78,420,052 58,289,058
Operations and maintenance 180,446,847 165,900,824
Travelling and transportation 11,280,789 12,551,887
Land lease rent 1,744,543 1,749,323
Import energy cost 9,838,630 7,569,342
Consultancy services 3,670,655 4,731,034
Legal and professional charges - 126,000
Communication 4,227,132 4,072,512
Operational insurance 61,028,050 57,186,127
Fee and subscription 1,462,795 1,382,544
Security services 26,287,480 21,696,000
Depreciation 911,507,581 879,933,121
Water charges 6,439,654 7,908,431
Other expenses 4,463,783 4,106,827
Cost of energy's sales 1,300,817,991 1,227,203,030

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 38.1 311,989,689 227,372,775
Printing and stationery 7,626,652 4,420,004
Communication 24,377,785 17,965,411
Rent, rates and taxes 12,521,301 12,999,680
Utilities 5,921,306 5,551,068
Legal and professional charges 15,167,619 14,512,110
Central Depository Company and clearing house charges 31,009,857 26,256,659
Entertainment 3,226,945 1,378,360
Travel and conveyance 45,359,011 38,738,874
Depreciation 20 56,928,152 48,903,914
Amortisation of intangible assets 418,238 557,142
Repairs and maintenance 41,852,956 33,129,573
Insurance 11,973,246 8,517,501
Fees and subscription 17,465,833 13,240,754
Advertisement, business promotion and research 25,099,945 16,910,713
Meeting expenses 1,075,000 959,829
Auditors' remuneration 38.2 5,875,536 5,813,976
Technical assistance / commission and advisory fee 220,638,503 55,420,466
Man Power Services 38.3 22,800,000 -
Others 11,161,145 9,343,432
872,488,719 541,992,241

This includes the Group's contribution to staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 17.25 million (2020: Rs. 14.91 million).

Parent Company, AHL and AHCPL have set up provident fund for its employees. All investments out of provident fund have been
made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.
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38.1.1 Parent Company, AHL and AHCPL have set up provident fund for its employees. All investments out of provident fund have been
made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.
2021 2020
38.2  Auditors' remuneration (Rupees)
Audit fee 3,824,000 3,662,000
Interim 760,000 450,000
Other services (certifications) 625,000 1,198,512
Out of pocket 470,536 278,500
Sales tax 196,000 224,964
5,875,536 5,813,976
38.3  These represent charges paid by the Subsidiary Company, AHL to M/s. Arif Habib Consultancy (Private) Limited, its related party, in
respect of recruitment services obtained for providing senior and highly qualified consultants to lead the Subsidiary Company's
investment banking department.
39. OTHER INCOME Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Profit on exposure deposit 6,840,462 5,017,256
Sale of GSCERs (Carbon Credits) 36,633,209 -
Mark-up on Margin Trading System 32,966,903 23,091,097
Gain on settlement of reverse repo transaction 39.1 24,783,996 -
Exchange gain 9,931,353 5,977,941
Gain on sale of investment property 500,000 775,000
Others 1,743,616 721,483
113,399,539 35,582,777
39.1 Gain on settlement of reverse repo transaction
Reversal of provision for expected credit losses on other
receivables previously recognized 39,711,656 -
Less: Loss on disposal of shares held as collateral (14,927,660) -
24,783,996 -
40. FINANCE COST Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Mark-up on long term loans 452,332,249 722,452,393
Mark-up on short term borrowings 146,292,105 612,490,449
Interest expense on lease 8,273,351 10,315,387
Bank charges 19,461,224 5,955,960
Amortisation of transaction cost 40.1 146,210,207 162,480,256
Mark-up on Loan from Sponsor 40.2 4,355,592 -
Mark-up on loan under State Bank of Pakistan scheme 799,288 25,798
Mark-up on Margin Trading System securities 3,539,662 775,277
781,263,678 1,514,495,520
40.1 Relates to a long term loan obtained by SEDPL, a subsidiary company as mentioned in note 10.1.
40.2  During the year, the Parent Company availed unsecured finance facility from its major shareholder, Mr. Arif Habib, amounting to Rs.

541 million (2020: Rs Nil) which was repaid during the year. This financing facility carried markup at 3 month KIBOR plus 1.75%

calculated on daily product basis. The agreement had expired on 30 June 2021.
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41. OTHER CHARGES Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Donations 41.1 5,025,000 223,000
Impairment loss on other receivables 15,951,296 5,377,456
Other receivables written-off 2,612,258 -
Loss on disposal of fixed / scrap assets 980,394 270,618
24,568,948 5,871,074

41.1  This include donations paid to following donees:

Donees

Habib University Foundation 5,000,000 -
Saylani Welfare Trust 25,000 23,000
Karachi Union of Journalists - 200,000

5,025,000 223,000

There are no donations to any person, institution or organisation in which a director or his spouse had any interest.

42. TAXATION Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)

For the year

- Current 585,489,294 113,749,759

- Prior year 18,916,023 1,809,246
604,405,317 115,559,005

Deferred 15.2 299,703,470 301,071,705
904,108,787 416,630,710

42.1  Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Profit before taxation 9,299,427,426 3,333,344,658
Tax at the applicable tax rate at 29% (2020: 29%) 2,696,802,486 966,669,951
Tax effect of income under final tax regime (150,171,479) (227,261,285)
Tax effect of income taxed at lower rate (1,007,920,822) (88,803,625)
Tax effect of minimum tax 837,240 54,620,892
Prior year tax effect 18,916,023 1,809,245
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 643,498,327 20,897,389
Tax effect of exempt income / permanent difference (1,269,398,452) (297,061,306)
Others (28,454,536) (14,240,551)

904,108,787 416,630,710

Parent Company

42.2  The provision for current year tax represents tax on taxable income at the rate of 29% (2020: 29%) per annum or minimum tax per
annum, whichever is higher. The rate of tax imposed on the taxable income of a Parent Company for the tax year 2021 and onwards
is 29%. The Parent Company computes current tax expense based on the generally accepted interpretation of the tax laws to ensure
that sufficient provision for the purpose of taxation is available. According to management, the tax provision made in these
consolidated financial statements is sufficient.

423 During the period, the petition filed by the Parent Company against the imposition of super tax for rehabilitation of temporarily
displaced persons under section 4B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax years 2015 to 2019 in the Honourable High Court
of Sindh was rejected vide order dated 21 July 2020. The Parent Company, in consultation with its legal and tax advisors, has filed an
appeal against the decision of the Honourable High Court of Sindh in the Supreme Court of Pakistan.
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Consequent to the High Court judgement, the tax authorities issued notices to the Parent Company and
subsequently framed orders for the recovery of super tax for the relevant tax years. An appeal has been filed
against these orders with the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) along with stay against recovery of
demand based on certain contentious and factual grounds. Further, through an interim order dated 26
November 2020, the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan has ordered for no coercive action against the
petitioners who deposit 50% of outstanding tax demand, accordingly the Parent Company has made the
required deposit. The management has assessed the sufficiency of tax provision on account of super tax and
considers that these sufficient for the purpose.

Further, the deemed assessments for the tax years 2016 to 2019 were subsequently modified by the
Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue by issuing amended assessment orders (Orders), mainly attempting
to reclassify company's normal business income to income from other sources. The Parent Company had filed
appeal before the CIR (Appeals) against the Orders, who remanded back the liability raised through the Order
for tax year 2019. Appeals for remaining tax years are pending for adjudication before CIR (Appeals), while
the Parent Company has sought stay on payment of demand from the Honourable High Court of Sindh
against the remaining Orders. The legal advisor of the Parent Company is of the opinion that there are
reasonable grounds for a favourable decision.

42.4 In addition to the above certain other appeals are also pending. However adequate provisions are held by the
Parent Company.

AHL, Subsidiary Company

42,5 Income tax assessments of the Company are deemed to be finalized as per tax returns file up to tax year
2020. Tax returns are subject to further assessment under provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
("the Ordinance") unless selected for an audit by the taxation authorities. The Commissioner of Income Tax
may, at any time during a period of five years from date of filing of return, select a deemed assessment order
for audit.

42.6 AHL had been contesting Civil Suit No. 284/2016 against levy of “Super Tax” u/s 4B of the Income Tax
‘Ordinance, 2001 introduced through Finance Act, 2015 in the High Court of Sindh and had not paid the Super
‘Tax accordingly. During the year, all the petitions pertaining to "Super Tax" u/s 4B which were filed at branch
‘registries were now to be heard by the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan as per it's direction. During the
'vear, the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan directed petitioner taxpayers to deposit 50% of their
respective impugned outstanding tax amounts pertaining to super tax u/s 4B with the respondent authorities,
no coercive action for recovery shall be taken against such tax payers in the meanwhile.

Therefore, as per the directive of Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan the AHL has deposited 50% of their
outstanding tax amounts, amounting to Rs. 31.162 million. On a prudent basis, provision continues to be
recognized for the remaining 50% of the amount of tax in these consolidated financial statements.

SEDPL, Subsidiary Company

42.7 Provision for taxation has been booked on interest income at the corporate tax rate of 29% applicable for the
tax year 2021. The subsidiary company's income derived from electric power generation and sale of GSCERs
is exempt from tax under clause (132) of Part | and clause (65) of Part IV of Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 respectively.
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BGPL, Subsidiary Company

The income tax assessments of BGPL are deemed to have been assessed up to and including the tax year
2020.

Deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 15,670,858 (2020: Rs. 15,670,858) in respect of unused tax losses has
not been recognised in these financial statements as management of BGPL is of the view that it is not
probable at this stage that sufficient taxable profits under normal tax regime will be available in the
foreseeable future against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Basic earnings per share

Profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders 7,486,464,100 2,638,518,628
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 408,375,000 413,210,041
Earnings per share 18.33 6.39

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as there is no convertible instruments in issue as at 30
June 2021 and 30 June 2020 which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to convert is
exercised.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND OTHER EXECUTIVES

For the purpose of disclosure, those employees are considered as executives whose basic salary exceeds
twelve hundred thousand rupees in a financial year.

The aggregate amounts charged in these consolidated financial statements in respect of remuneration
including benefits to the Chief Executive Officer of the parent company, Directors and other Executives of the
Parent and respective subsidiaries are given below:

Chief Executive Officer Executive employees
2021 2020 2021 2020
(Rupees)

Managerial remuneration 12,000,000 10,200,000 126,701,888 165,089,294
Retirement benefits 967,740 822,582 9,558,568 11,259,882
Commission and bonus 3,000,000 700,000 152,082,609 36,541,559
Other allowances 600,000 780,000 7,111,925 7,103,890
Total 16,567,740 12,502,582 295,454,990 219,994,625
Number of person(s) 1 1 38 41

The Chief Executive Officer draws salary on account of managerial remuneration.

Besides above, group insurance and medical facilities under insurance coverage were provided to the above

mentioned personnel.
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44.6

44.7

44.8

45.

The Chief Executive Officer has been provided with free use of Parent Company's maintained vehicles in
accordance with the policy. The net book value of these vehicles provided to chief executive officer are Rs.

17.24 million (2020: Rs. 21.56 million).

Executives as mentioned above include Chief Executive Officers of subsidiary companies.

Meeting fees paid to the Directors during the year amounted to Rs. 0.9 million (2020: Rs. 0.75 million).

All above are the key management personnel of the Group.

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Mark-up income

Share of profit of equity-accounted
investees - net of tax

Unrealised gain on investment property

Gain on sale of investment property

Provision for gratuity

Unrealised (gain) / loss on remeasurement of other long
term investment

Unrealised gain on remeasurement of short
term investment

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss on trade debts

Other receivables written-off

Amortisation of land lease rent

Amortisation of transaction cost

Interest expense on lease
Finance cost

Changes in working capital:
Decrease / (increase) in current assets

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Deposits and prepayments

Receivable from Sale of securities
Accrued mark-up and other receivables
Short term investments

Long term deposits and other receivables
Advance sales tax

(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Payable against purchase of investment - net
Unclaimed dividend

Cash generated from operations

m Arif Habib Corporation Limited

2021

2020

(Rupees)

9,299,427,426

3,333,344,658

968,435,733
418,238
(111,718,680)

(2,607,451,994)
(290,384,768)

930,655,416
557,142
(75,808,975)

(1,441,134,146)
(132,000,000)

(500,000) (775,000)
6,650,423 6,139,167
(9,698,115) 20,989,872
(2,456,429,703) (405,299,247)
980,394 270,618
15,951,296 5,377,456
(2,612,258) -
1,744,543 1,749,323
146,210,207 162,480,256
8,273,351 10,315,387
607,318,896 1,341,699,877
(3,722,812,437) 425,217,146

5,576,614,989

3,758,561,804

(912,467,025)
(857,302,052)
(28,556,433)
79,559,207
(447,219,069)
696,853,179
(946,953)

(980,039,126)
19,621,721
259,979,058

32,598,714
6,335,728,930
854,440
20,654,047

(1,470,079,146)

5,689,397,784

1,141,188,174
53,758,623
(631,144)

(4,830,754,740)

(2,456,621)
(13.276.554)

1,194,315,653

(4,846,487,915)

5,300,851,496

4,601,471,673
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46. CASH AND CASH EOQUIVALENTS Note 2021 2020
(Rupees)
Cash and bank balances 34 3,913,744,772 1,367,579,529
Short term borrowings 17 (3,437,053,359) (3,436,903,268)
476,691,413 (2,069,323,739)

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group has exposures to the following risks from the use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Group’s risk management framework. The Board
is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies.

47.1 Credit risk

Credit risk reported the financial loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counterparties fail to meet its contractual
obligations. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar
economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual obligation to be similarly affected by the changes in economic,
political or other conditions. The Group believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting

date is:
2021 2020
(Rupees)

Trade debts 4,539,307,282 3,642,791,553
Long term deposits 32,258,095 31,738,840
Loans 297,002,008 175,844,864
Accrued mark-up and other receivables 609,473,162 164,604,799
Deposits 106,917,524 75,293,176
Investments in corporate debt securities 169,265,465 252,166,556
Bank balances 3,912,713,424 1,366,935,997

9,666,936,960 5,709,375,785

Trade debts

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the reporting date by geographic region were as follows:

2021 2020
(Rupees)
Domestic (Pakistan) 4,539,307,282 3,642,791,553
At 30 June, the age analysis of trade debts was as follows:
2021 2020
Gross Impairment loss Gross Impairment loss
(Rupees)

Neither past due nor impaired 1,447,708,609 - 1,194,683,765 -
Past due 1 - 30 days 506,320,031 - 401,889,106 -
Past due 31 - 180 days 390,325,782 (5,904,661) 1,662,240,775 (5,102,760)
More than 180 days 3,117,225,743 (916,368,222) 964,274,274 (901,218,827)

5,461,580,165 (922,272,883) 4,223,087,920 (906,321,587)

Based on the historical expenses and the assessment of the credit worthiness of the debtors, the Group management is of the view that
no provision in addition to the above impairment loss, as recorded, needs to be so recorded. Apart from the above past due balances,
none of the other financial assets are past due / overdue.

Credit ratings of the bank balances

As at 30 June 2021 the Group has placed funds with banks having good credit ratings. The credit ratings to respective banks have been
assigned by independent credit rating agencies. At reporting date credit ratings of respective banks were as follows:

Short term Long term
PACRA Alto Al+ AA- to AAA+
JCR-VIS A3 to Al+ BBB- to AAA
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47.2  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset or that such obligations will have to be settled in a
manner disadvantageous to the Group. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities and the availability of adequate funds through committed credit facilities. The Group finances
its operations through equity, borrowings and working capital with a view of maintaining an appropriate mix between
various sources of finance to minimize risk. Management aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping regular
committed credit lines.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flow basis:

Financial liabilities
Long term loans

2021
Carrying Contractual Upto one More than
amount cash flows year one year
(Rupees)

9,045,285,366

10,759,082,283

1,598,547,461

9,160,534,822

Land lease liability 12,070,114 39,610,000 1,360,000 38,250,000
Lease liability against right
of use assets 62,945,714 65,527,099 43,457,394 22,069,705
Trade and other payables 1,889,396,594 1,889,396,594 1,889,396,594 =
Payable against purchase of
investment - net 53,758,623 53,758,623 53,758,623 =
Unclaimed dividend 32,258,610 32,258,610 32,258,610 =
Short term borrowings 3,437,053,359 3,437,053,359 3,437,053,359 -
Mark-up payable 79,028,184 79,028,184 - -
14,611,796,564 16,355,714,752 7,055,832,041 9,220,854,527
2020
Carrying Contractual Upto one More than
amount cash flows year one year
(Rupees)

Financial liabilities
Long term loans

11,703,523,858

14,502,417,111

2,154,166,667

12,348,250,444

Subordinated loan 300,000,000 300,000,000 - -
Land lease liability 11,685,571 41,774,822 1,360,000 40,414,822
Lease liability against right

of use assets 65,720,505 83,460,789 26,029,805 57,430,984
Trade and other payables 978,673,967 978,673,967 978,673,967 -
Unclaimed dividend 32,889,754 32,889,754 32,889,754 -
Short term borrowings 3,436,903,268 3,436,903,268 3,436,903,268 -
Mark-up payable 180,310,125 180,310,125 - -

@ Arif Habib Corporation Limited

16,709,707,048

19,556,429,836

6,630,023,461

12,446,096,250
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47.3

a)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return. The Group is exposed to currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Foreign exchange risk management

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.
Currently, the Group's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to cash and bank balances which is denominated
in foreign currency. The Group's management believes that the Group's exposure emanating from any fluctuations in
the foreign currencies is not required to be hedged.

Financial assets 2021 2020

Rupees US Dollars Rupees US Dollars
Cash in hand 6,312 40 6,751 40
Bank balances 6,327,874 40,101 6,768,178 40,101

The following significant exchange rates were applicable during the year:

Average rates Reporting date rate
2021 2020 2021 2020
US Dollars to
Pakistan Rupee 163.29 158.48 157.80 168.77

Sensitivity analysis of above financial assets

A 10 percent strengthening / (weakening) of the Pakistan Rupee against various foreign currencies at 30 June would
have (decreased) / increased the consolidated profit by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for
2020.

Effect on profit and loss
2021 2020
(Rupees)
As at 30 June
Effect in US Dollars 633,419 677,493

Sachal Energy Development (Private) Limited (SEDPL) - subsidiary company

The potential currency exposures are discussed below:

i)  Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary items
Monetary items, including financial assets and liabilities, denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of SEDPL are periodically translated to PKR equivalent, and the associated gain or loss is capitalized
based on SECP's S.R.0. 986/(1)/2019 dated September 02, 2019. The foreign currency risk related to monetary
items is managed as part of the risk management strategy. SEDPL is also covered under the EPA to recover the
forex loss under the tariff.

i) Transactional exposure In respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues
Certain operating and capital expenditure is incurred by SEDPL in currencies other than the functional currency.

Certain receipts are received in currency other than the functional currency of SEDPL. These currency risks are
managed as a part of overall risk management strategy. SEDPL does not enter into forward exchange contracts.
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iii) Exposure to foreign currency risk

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

SEDPL is not exposed to currency risk due to the mechanism for indexation of tariff available to it. Had this
mechanism been not available to SEDPL, then its exposure to currency risk would have been as follows based

on notional amount:

Long term loan

Accrued markup

Operational and maintenance payable
Net exposure

Sensitivity

2021 2020
(US Dollar)

60,000,000 70,000,000
328,563 440,734
471,500 942,500

60,800,063 71,383,234

Had the mechanism for Indexation of tariff not been available to SEDPL, then an increase of 1% in exchange
rate at the reporting date would have decreased the consolidated profit or loss by the amounts shown below.

US Dollar balances

Profit or loss

2021

2020

(Rupees)

96,246,499

120,459,208

A 1% decrease in exchange rate would have had an equal but opposite effect to the amount shown above.

b) Interest / mark-up rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The majority of the interest rate exposure arises from financial assets and financial

liabilities as stated below.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Group's significant interest-bearing financial instruments was as

follows:

Financial assets - variable rate instruments

Long term loan to a related party
Receivable against reverse repo
Bank balances

Corporate debt securities

Financial liabilities

Variable rate instruments
Long term loans

Short term finances
Sub-ordinated loan

Fixed rate instruments
Loan under State Bank of Pakistan scheme
Lease liability against right of use assets

@ Arif Habib Corporation Limited

Note

27
30.2
34.2
33.3

10
17
18

13
12.2

2021

2020

Carrying amounts (in Rupees)

163,404,133 163,404,133
268,568,516 12,440,731
3,724,868,957 1,291,291,355
169,265,468 252,166,556
9,020,261,481 11,688,538,535
3,437,053,359 3,436,903,268
- 300,000,000
25,023,885 14,985,323
62,945,714 65,720,505
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Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

For cash flow sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments a hypothetical change of 100 basis points in interest
rates would have decreased / (increased) profit for the year by the amounts shown below.

Profit and loss 100 bps

Increase Decrease
(Rupees)

As at 30 June 2021

Variable rate financial liabilities (124,573,148) 124,573,148
Variable rate financial assets 41,568,416 (41,568,416)
As at 30 June 2020

Variable rate financial liabilities (151,254,418) 151,254,418
Variable rate financial assets 14,671,362 (14,671,362)

The above sensitivity is not necessarily indicative of the actual effect of changes in interest rate as those are based
on management's best estimate of possible change of interest rate in future.

Price risk

(¢
~

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the
market prices (other than those arising from interest/mark-up rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar financial
instruments traded in the market. The Group is exposed to equity price risk since it has investments in are quoted
equity securities.

The carrying value of investments subject to equity price risk are, in almost all instances, based on quoted market
prices as of the reporting date except for unquoted securities which are carried at fair value determined through
valuation techniques. Market prices are subject to fluctuation and consequently the amount realised in the
subsequent sale of an investment may significantly differ from the reported market value. Fluctuation in the market
price of a security may result from perceived changes in the underlying economic characteristics of the investee, the
relative price of alternative investments and general market conditions. Furthermore, amount realised in the sale of a
particular security may be affected by the relative quantity of the security being sold.

In addition to the above, the Group also has investments in unquoted securities, values of which are determined as
mentioned in note 26.2.

Sensitivity analysis

The table below summarizes the Group's equity price risk as of 30 June 2021 and 2020 and shows the effects of a
hypothetical 30% increase and a 30% decrease in market prices as at the year end. The selected hypothetical
change does not reflect what could be considered to be the best or worst case scenarios. Accordingly, the sensitivity
analysis prepared is not necessarily indication of the effect on Group's net assets of future movement in the level of
PSX 100 index / trade rates.
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Details of the financial instruments exposed to price risk are as follows:

Investments in unquoted equity shares

Investments in listed shares

2021
Note (Rupees)

26.2 54,754,771

2020

45,056,656

7,839,400,891

6,208,378,879

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Long term loans

Land lease liability

Lease liability against right
of use assets

Trade and other payables

Payable against purchase of
investment - net

Unclaimed dividend

Short term borrowings

Mark-up payable

@ Arif Habib Corporation Limited

Fair value Hypothetical Estimated fair Hypothetical Hypothetical
at the year price change value after increase / increase /
end hypothetical (decrease) in (decrease) in
change in prices shareholders' profit / (loss)
equity before tax
(Rupees in million)
30 June 2021 7,894 30% increase 10,262.40 268.98 2,099.27
30% decrease 5,525.91 (268.98) (2,099.27)
30 June 2020 6,253 30% increase 8,263.58 1,075.85 831.13
30% decrease 4,449.62 (1,075.85) (831.13)
47.4  Financial instruments by categories
The following table shows the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities.
Mandatorily FVOCI - Designated Financial
at FVTPL Equity at FVTPL assets/liabilities
Instruments at amortized
cost
(Rupees)
30 June 2021
Financial assets measured at fair value
Equity securities 7,632,492,911 206,907,980 54,754,771 -
Corporate debt securities - - 169,265,468 -
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Cash and bank balances - = = 3,913,744,772
Trade debts - - - 4,539,307,282
Long term deposits - - - 32,258,095
Loans = = - 297,002,008
Accrued mark-up and other receivables = = - 609,473,162
Deposits = - - 106,917,524
7,632,492,911 206,907,980 224,020,239 9,498,702,843

9,045,285,366
12,070,114

62,945,714
1,889,396,594

53,758,623
32,258,610
3,437,053,359
79,028,184

14,611,796,564




30 June 2020

Financial assets measured at fair value
Equity securities

Corporate debt securities

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Cash and bank balances

Trade debts

Long term deposits

Loans

Accrued mark-up and other receivables
Deposits

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Long term loans
Subordinated loan
Land lease liability
Lease liability against right
of use assets
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Short term borrowings
Mark-up payable

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30t June 2021

Mandatorily FVOCI - Designated Financial
at FVTPL - Equity at FVTPL assets at
Others Instruments amortized
cost
(Rupees)
5,483,967,779 827,578,375 45,056,656 -
- - 252,166,556 -
B - - 1,367,579,529
- - - 3,642,791,553
- - - 31,738,840
B, - - 175,844,864
- - - 164,604,799
B - - 75,293,176
5,483,967,779 827,578,375 297,223,212 5,457,852,761

11,703,523,858
300,000,000
11,685,571

65,720,505
978,673,967
32,889,754
3,436,903,268
180,310,125

16,709,707,048
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Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Balance as at 1 July 2020
Changes from financing cash flows

Repayment of loan

Proceeds from loan under SBP scheme

Repayment of loan under SBP scheme

Lease rentals paid

Dividend paid

Distribution by subsidiary to
non-controlling interest

Total changes from financing activities

Other changes

Interest expense

Interest paid

Additions / modifications to lease liabilities
Amortisation of land lease rent

Land lease rent paid

Transaction cost relating to long term loan
Impact of revaluation of foreign liability
Changes in running finance - net

Total loan related other changes

Total equity related other changes
Balance as at 30 June 2021

Difference
Principal
Mark-up
Equity

Balance as at 1 July 2019
Changes from financing cash flows

Repayment of long term Loan

Proceed from long term loan

Loan under State Bank of Pakistan scheme
Loan received from sponsor - net

Lease rentals paid

Buy-back of shares by Parent Company
Buy-back of shares by Subsidiary Company
Total changes from financing activities

Other changes

Interest expense

Interest paid

Additions to lease liabilities

Amortisation of land lease rent

Land lease rent paid

Transaction cost relating to long term loan
Impact of revaluation of foreign liability
Changes in running finance - net

Total loan related other changes

Total equity related other changes
Balance as at 30 June 2020
Difference

Principal

Mark-up
Equity

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Liability Equity Total
Short term Long term Lease Land Reserves Unappropriated Non
borrowing: loan il ing liabilities lease profit (reserve) controlling
used for cash related accrued against liability interests
management mark-up right-of-use
purpose assets
including
related accrued
mark-up
3.830,530,276 11,790,206,975 65,720,505 11,685,571 4,312,909,793 14,878,924,941 2,086,717,522 36.976,695,583
(300,000,000)|| (2,058,637,261) - - - - - (2,358,637,261)
- 15,754,164 - - - - - 15,754,164
= (5.715,602) > o o ] o (5.715,602)
- - (35.730,327) - - - - (35,730,327)
o = = o = (612.562.500) = (612,562,500)
- = = - - =l (45,385,290) (45,385.290)
(300,000,000)  (2,048,598.699) (35.,730.327) = = (612,562,500) (45,385,290) (3.042,276,816)
172,465,939 434,852,957 8,273,351 - - - - 615,592,247
(239.121,325) (469,479,512) = o = = = (708.600.837)
- - 24,682,185 - - - - 24,682,185
- - - 1,744,543 = = - 1,744,543
- - - (1,360,000) o a = (1,360,000)
- 146,210,207 - - - - = 146,210,207
- (755,850,000) - - = - - (755.850.000)
150,091 - - - - - - 150,091
(66.505.295) (644.266.348) 32,955,536 384,543 - - - (677.431.564)
- - - - (258,504,769) 7.600,807,389 844,233,708 8,186,536.328

3,437,053,359

9,045,285,366

62,945,714 12,070,114 - - - -
26,971,622 52,056.562 - - - - - -
- - - - __4.054.405.024 21.867.169.830 2,885.565.940
3.464.024.981 9.097.341.928 62.945.714 12.070.114 4.054,405.024 21.867.169.830 2.885.565.940 41.443,523.531
Liability Equity Total
Short term Long term Lease Land Reserves Unappropriated Non
borrowinas loan including liabilities lease profit (reserve) controlling
used for cash related accrued against liability interests
management mark-up right-of-use
purpose assets
including
related accrued
mark-up
(Rupees)
4,883,687,402 12,492,059,288 - 11,296,248 4,034,076,005 12,957,205,428 1,777,221,910 36.155,546,281
- (1,578,500,000) - - - - - (1,578,500,000)
- 499,987,261 - - - - - 499,987,261
- 14,985,323 - - - - - 14,985,323
300,000,000 - - - - - - 300,000,000
- - (41,708,075) - - - - -
- - - - - (771,375,000) - (771,375,000)
_ - - - - - (231.000.000) (231,000.000)
300,000,000 (1,063,527,416) (41,708,075) - - (771,375,000) (231,000,000) (1,765,902,416)
619,247,484 722,452,393 10,315,387 - - - - 1,352,015,264
(697,549,782) (754,257,546) - - - - - (1,451,807,328)
- - 97,113,193 - - - - 97,113,193
- - - 1,749,323 - - - 1,749,323
- - - (1,360,000) - - - (1,360,000)
- 162,480,256 - - - - - 162,480,256
- 231,000,000 - - - - - 231,000,000
(1,274,854,828) - - - - - - (1,274,854,828)
(1,353,157,126) 361,675,103 107,428,580 389,323 - - - (883,664,120)
- - - - 278,833,788 2,693,094,513 540,495,612 3.512,423,913
3.830.530.276 11.790.206.975 65.720.505 11,685,571 4.312.909.793 14.878.924 941 2.086.717.522 37.018.403.658
3,736,903,268 11,703,523,858 65,720,505 11,685,571 - - - 15,517,833,202
93,627,008 86,683,117 - - - - - 180,310,125
- - - - 4,312,909,793 14,878,924,941 2,086,717,522 21,278,552,256
3.830.530.276 11,790.206.975 65.720.505 11,685,571 4.312.909.793 14,878,924 941 2.086.717.522 36.976.695.583
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48. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosure require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial, if any and non-financial assets and financial liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Group management engage independent external experts / valuers to carry out valuation of its
non-financial assets (i.e. Investment Property) and financial assets where prices are not quoted or
readily available in the market. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon by management.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, relevant experience, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are
categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2. inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Fair values of financial assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices.
For all other financial instruments the Group determines fair values using valuation techniques unless
the instruments do not have a market / quoted price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured.

Valuation techniques used by the Group include discounted cash flow model for valuation of unquoted
equity securities. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free rates, bond
and equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity and equity index prices. The objective of
valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price of the financial
instrument at the balance sheet date that would have been determined by market participants acting at
arm’s length.

Valuation models for valuing securities for which there is no active market requires significant
unobservable inputs and a higher degree of management judgement and estimation in the
determination of fair value. Management judgement and estimation are usually required for selection
of the appropriate valuation model to be used, determination of expected future cash flows on the
financial instrument being valued and selection of appropriate discount rates, etc.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements at fair value on a

recurring basis, the management recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the
end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred. There were no transfers between

different levels of fair values mentioned above.
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The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, are as follows:

Financial assets
measured at fair value

Equity securities

Debt securities

Financial assets not
measured at fair value
Cash and bank balances
Trade debts
Deposits
Loans (long term and short term)
Accrued mark-up and
other receivables

Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value

Long term loans

Land lease liability

Lease liability against right
of use assets

Trade and other payables

Payable against purchase of
investment - net

Unclaimed dividend

Short term borrowings

Mark-up payable

Financial assets
measured at fair value

Equity securities

Debt securities

Financial assets not
measured at fair value
Cash and bank balances
Trade debts
Deposits
Loans (long term and short term)
Accrued mark-up and
other receivables

Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value

Long term loans

Subordinated loan

Land lease liability

Lease liability against right
of use assets

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Short term borrowings

Mark-up payable

Arif Habib Corporation Limited

30 June 2021

11,703,523,858
300,000,000
11,685,571

65,720,505
978,673,967
32,889,754
3,436,903,268
180,310,125

16,709,707,048

Carrying amount Fair value
Mandatorily/ FVOCI - Equity Financial Other Other
designated Instruments assets at financial financial Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
at FVTPL amortized cost assets liabilities
(Rupees)
7,687,247,682 206,907,980 S - - 7,839,400,891 - 54,754,771
169,265,468 - - - - - 169,265,468 -
- - 3,913,744,772 - - - = =
- - 4,539,307,282 - - - = =
- - 139,175,619 - - - - =
- - 297,002,008 - - - = =
- - 609,473,162 - - - = =
7,856,513,150 206,907,980 9,498,702,843 - -
- - - - 9,045,285,366 - - -
- - - - 12,070,114 - - -
= - - - 62,945,714 - - -
- - - - 1,889,396,594 - - -
- - - - 53,758,623 - - -
- - - - 32,258,610 - - =
- - - - 3,437,053,359 - - -
- - - - 79,028,184 - = S
- - - - 14,611,796,564
30 June 2020
Carrying amount Fair value
Mandatorily/ FVOCI - Equity Financial Other Other
designated Instruments assets at financial financial Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
at FVTPL amortized cost assets liabilities
(Rupees)
5,529,024,435 827,578,375 - - - 6,208,378,879 - 45,056,656
252,166,556 - - - - - 252,166,556
- - 1,367,579,529 - - - - -
- - 3,642,791,553 - - - - -
- - 107,032,016 - - - - -
- - 175,844,864 - - - - -
- - 164,604,799 - - - - -
5,781,190,991 827,578,375 5,457,852,761 - -
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The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of

the fair value hierarchy:

Unlisted equity instruments

Balance at 1 July

Total gains recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss on

remeasurement of investment
Balance at 30 June

2021 2020
(Rupees)
45,056,656 53,022,530
9,698,115 (7,965,874)
54,754,771 45,056,656

Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair values have not been disclosed as these are either short term in nature or repriced
periodically. Accordingly, the management is of the view that the carrying amount of these instruments approximate their fair values.

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values for financial instruments measured at
fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Assets measured at Date of
fair value valuation
Non-financial assets
at fair value
Investment Properties 30 June
(refer note 24) 2021
Level 3
Financial assets
at fair value
Equity securities - unquoted 30 June
(refer note 26.2) 2021
Level 3
Term Finance Certificates 30 June
(TFCs) (refer note 33.3) 2021

Level 2

Valuation approach and input used

The valuation approach is based on the
rates per square yard on which the
properties would be sold on the date of
valuation. In determining the valuation,
development progress, market condition,
sale price, potential future value, location,
identification of plot, approach to area,
utilities / services, size of plots and other
factors have been considered. Potential
values was mainly considered due to
inherent value of land which may enhance
with passage of time or in some alternative
use within sight. Further, the inherent
quality of the property itself create
condition for its particular suitability for
such better use. The consideration of
potential value becomes relevant in such
situation.

Discounted cash flows:

The valuation model considers the present
value of future cash flow of investee
company discounted using a risk-adjusted
discount rate. The cash flow projection
include specific estimates for 5 years.

Inputs used:
Long term growth rate

Long term return on equity

Market comparison
The fair value is determined considering
trade notes quoted by MUFAP.

Inter-relationship between
significant unobservable Inputs
and fair value measurement

The fair value are subjected to change
owing to change in input. However,
management does not expect material
sensitivity to the fair values arising
from non-observable inputs.

The estimated fair value would
increase / (decrease) if:

- number of operating days
increase / (decrease)
- the annual growth rate were

higher or lower
- the EBITDA margin were higher
or lower

Generally, a change in the annual
growth rate is accompanied by a
directionally similar change in EBITDA
margin.

Not applicable

The reconciliation of investment property has been disclosed in respective note; hence not disclosed separately. The fair value of
investment property amounting to Rs. 1,968.8 million (2020: Rs. 1,678.4 million) has been classified under level 3 in fair value hierarchy.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

49.

49.1

49.2

49.3

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence, sustain future development of the
business, safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns to shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Group
defines as net profit after taxation divided by total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary
shareholders. There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the year. The Group is not exposed to externally
imposed capital requirements, except as follows:

The Capital adequacy level of AHL and AH 1857 as required by CDC is calculated as follows;

2021 2020
(Restated)
(Rupees)
Total assets 8,519,144,455 6,914,895,478
Less: Total liabilities (3,476,761,985) (3,598,362,366)
Less: Revaluation Reserves (created upon revaluation of fixed assets) (15,432,500) (15,432,500)
Capital adequacy level 5,026,949,970 3,301,100,612

While determining the value of the total assets of the TREC Holder, Notional value of the TRE certificate as at year ended as determined by Pakistan
Stock Exchange has been considered.

NET CAPITAL BALANCE

Net capital requirements of AHL and AH1857 are set and regulated by Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. These requirements are put in place to
ensure sufficient solvency margins and are based on excess of current assets over current liabilities.

The Net Capital Balance of AHL and AH1857 as required under Third Schedule of Securities and Exchange Rules, 1971 read with the SECP
guidelines is calculated as follows;

Description Valuation Note (Rupees)
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Bank Balances As per Book Value 49.4(i) 2,723,530,837
Trade Receivables Book Value less overdue for more than 14 days 49 .4(ii) 156,191,039
Investment in listed securities in the Securities marked to market less 15% discount 49.4(iii) 2,210,877,692
name of broker.
Securities purchased for client Securities purchased for the client and held by the

member where the payment has not been received

within 14 days. 49.4(iv) 181,417,592
Listed TFCs/Corporate Bonds of not less Marked to market less 10% discount. 49.4(v) 152,338,921

than BBB grade assigned by a credit
rating company in Pakistan -

FIBs Marked to market less 5% discount. -
Treasury Bill At market value -
Any other current asset specified by the As per the valuation basis determined

customer by the commission

5,424,356,081
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade Payables Book value less overdue for more than 30 days 49.4(vi) 1,485,408,156
Other Liabilities As per Book values 49.4(vii) 1,987,828,413
3,473,236,569

Net capital balance as at 30 June 2021 1,951,119,512

Arif Habib Corporation Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30t June 2021

49.4

0)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

Notes to the net capital balance of AHL

Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand

Exposure margin deposited to NCCPL

Bank balance pertaining to clients

Bank balance pertaining to brokerage house

Trade receivables

Gross value-Trade debts
Gross value-Margin Financing

less: Provision for doubtful debts

Book value

Overdue for more than 14 days - Trade Debts
less: Provision for doubtful debts

Overdue for more than 14 days - book value

Balance against unsettled trade

Investment in Listed Securities in the name of broker

Securities marked to market
Less 15% discount

Securities purchased for client

Overdue balance for more than 14 days - gross value
Lower of overdue balance and securities held against such balance

Listed TFCs/Corporate Bonds/ Others of not less than BBB grade assigned

by a credit rating company in Pakistan

Securities marked to market
less: 10% discount

Trade payables

Book value
Less: overdue for more than 30 days

Other liabilities

Creditors overdue for more than 30 days
Commission payable

Accrued expenses

Withholding tax payable

Advance from related party

Other liabilities

Short term borrowings- secured

Current portion of lease liability

10 Unclaimed dividend

11 Payable against purchase of securities-net
12 Accrued markup on short term borrowings
13 Taxation - net

14 Accrued liability and other payable

© 00N O OB WNBRE

= O

Sindh sales tax and federal excise duty payable

(Rupees)

650,596
45,509,466
2,603,660,561
73,710,214
2,723,530,837

965,131,291
247,573,495
1,212,704,786

(891,047,114)

(170,188,952)
151,468,720

4,722,319
156,191,039

2,601,032,579
(390,154,887)
2,210,877,692

1,061,236,066
181,417,592

169,265,468
(16,926,547)
152,338,921

1,554,805,839
(69,397,683)
1,485,408,156

69,397,683
102,628,722
19,968,931
71,302,613
22,809,898
6,743,695
11,735,305
1,369,369,349
26,696,871
14,920,013
53,758,623
18,639,958
199,213,556
643,196
1,987,828,413
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

49.5 Liquid Capital of AHL
S No. Head of Account Value in Pak Rupees H_a|r cut/ Net Adjusted Value
Adjustments
1. Assets
1.1 |Property & Equipment 2,072,558,817 100% -
1.2 |Intangible Assets 9,083,336 100% -
1.3 |Investment in Govt. Securities (150,000%99) - - -
Investment in Debt. Securities
If listed than:
i. 5% of the balance sheet value in the case of tenure upto 1 year. 38,155,343 5% 36,247,576
ii. 7.5% of the balance sheet value, in the case of tenure from 1-3 years. - 7.5% -
1.4 |iii. 10% of the balance sheet value, in the case of tenure of more than 3 years. - 10% -
If unlisted than:
i. 10% of the balance sheet value in the case of tenure upto 1 year. - 10% -
ii. 12.5% of the balance sheet value, in the case of tenure from 1-3 years. - 12.5% -
ii. 15% of the balance sheet value, in the case of tenure of more than 3 years. - 15% -
Investment in Equity Securities
i. If listed 15% or VaR of each securities on the cutoff date as computed by the Securities
Exchange for respective securities whichever is higher. 2,542,614,467 389,562,733 2,158,051,734
ii. If unlisted, 100% of carrying value. 54,754,771 100% -
iii. Subscription money against Investment in IPO/offer for Sale: Amount paid as subscription
money provided that shares have not been allotted or are not included in the investments of - - -
securities broker.
1.5 ]iv.100% Haircut shall be applied to Value of Investment in any asset including shares of listed
securities that are in Block, Freeze or Pledge status as on reporting date. (19 July 2017)
Provided that 100% haircut shall not be applied in case of investment in those securities which
are Pledged in favour of Stock Exchange / Clearing House against Margin Financing
requirements or pledged in favour of Banks against Short Term financing arrangements. In N - N
such cases, the haircut as provided in schedule Ill of the Regulations in respect of investment
in securities shall be applicable (25 August 2017)
1.6 [Investment in subsidiaries 81,558,105 100% -
Investment in associated companies/undertaking
17 i If Iisteld 20% orl YaR of each sgcurities as computed by the Securitas Exchange for 58,418,112 14,590,280 43,827,832
respective securities whichever is higher.
ii. If unlisted, 100% of net value. - 100% -
1.8 |i. If listed 15% or VaR of each §§curltlgs on thg cqtoff date as computed by the Securities 2.979.854 100% .
Exchange for respective securities whichever is higher.
1.9 |Margin deposits with exchange and clearing house. 45,509,466 - 45,509,466
1.10 |Deposit with authorized intermediary against borrowed securities under SLB. - - -
1.11 |[Other deposits and prepayments 14,874,558 100% -
1.12 |Statutory or regulatory deposit /basic deposit with exchanges,clearing house or
central c{eposit%ry or iny gther entity " ’ ’ 16,507,500 100% )
Accrued interest, profit or mark-up on amounts placed with financial institutions or debt . . )
securities etc.(Nil)
1.12
100% in respect of markup accrued on loans to directors, subsidiaries and other related parties - 100% -
1.13 [Dividends receivables. - - -
Amounts receivable against Repo financing.
1.14 |Amount paid as purchaser under the REPO agreement. (Securities purchased under repo 268,568,516 - 268,568,516
arrangement shall not be included in the investments.)
Advacnes and receivable other than Trade receivable
1)No haircut may be applied on short term loan to employees provided these loans are secured
and due for repayment within 12 months.
1.15 2)No haircut may be applied to the advance tax to the extent it is netted with provision of 13,733,165 100% -
taxation.
3) In all other cases, 100% of net value
i. Short Term Loan To Employees: Loans are Secured and Due for repayment within 12
1.15 |months i ) i
Receivables other than trade receivables 100% -

Arif Habib Corporation Limited




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30t June 2021

S.No. Head of Account Value in Pak Rupees H.alr cut/ Net Adjusted Value
Adjustments
1. Assets
Receivables from clearing house or securities exchange(s)
I 100% value»of cla|.ms other th_an those on account of entittements against trading of securities 4.722,319 . 4.722,319
1.16 |in all markets including MtM gains.
ii. Receivable on entitlements against trading of securities in all markets including MtM gains. - - -
Receivables from customers
i. In case receivables are against margin financing, the aggregate if (i) value of securities held in
the blocked account after applying VAR based Haircut, (i) cash deposited as collateral by the
financee (i) market value of any securities deposited as collateral after applying VaR based 245,655,746 8,099,720 237,556,026
haircut.
i. Lower of net balance sheet value or value determined through adjustments
ii. Incase receivables are against margin trading, 5% of the net balance sheet value. . 5% .
ii. Net amount after deducting haircut
iii. Incase receivables are against securities borrowings under SLB, the amount paid to NCCPL
117 as collateral upon entering into contract, - - -
’ iii. Net amount after deducting haircut
iv. Incase of other trade receivables not more than 5 days overdue, 0% of the net balance sheet
value. 187,536,573 - 187,536,573
iv. Balance sheet value
v. Incase of other trade receivables are overdue, or 5 days or more, the aggregate of (i) the
market value of securities purchased for customers and held in sub-accounts after applying VAR
based haircuts, (ii) cash deposited as collateral by the respective customer and (iii) the market 48,427,889 31,888,522 16,539,367
value of securities held as collateral after applying VaR based haircuts.
v. Lower of net balance sheet value or value determined through adjustments
vi. 100% haircut in the case of amount receivable form related parties. 4,354,422 100% -
Cash and Bank balances
118 |. Bank Balance-proprietory accounts 73,710,214 - 73,710,214
ii. Bank balance-customer accounts 2,603,660,551 - 2,603,660,551
iii. Cash in hand 650,596 - 650,596
1.19 |Total Assets 8,388,034,320 5,671,580,770
2. Liabilities
Trade Payables
21 i. Payable to exchanges and clearing house 53,758,623 - 53,758,623
’ ii. Payable against leveraged market products - - -
ii. Payable to customers 1,554,805,840 - 1,554,805,840
Current Liabilities
i. Statutory and regulatory dues 94,112,511 - 94,112,511
ii. Accruals and other payables 175,179,124 - 175,179,124
iii. Short-term borrowings 1,369,369,349 - 1,369,369,349
iv. Current portion of subordinated loans - - -
2.2 |v. Current portion of long term liabilities 26,696,871 - 26,696,871
vi. Deferred Liabilities - - -
vii. Provision for bad debts - - -
viii. Provision for taxation 199,314,252 - 199,314,252
ix. Other liabilities as per accounting principles and included in the financial statements - - -
2. Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
i. Long-Term financing - - -
a. Long-Term financing obtained from financial institution: Long term portion of financing
obtained from R R R
a financial institution including amount due against finance lease
b. Other long-term financing - - -
ii. Staff retirement benefits - - -
ii. Advance against shares for Increase in Capital of Securities broker: 100% haircut may be
allowed in
2.3 |respect of advance against shares if:
a. The existing authorized share capital allows the proposed enhanced share capital
b. Board of Directors of the company has approved the increase in capital
c. Relevant Regulatory approvals have been obtained - - 3
d. There is no unreasonable delay in issue of shares against advance and all regulatory
requirements
relating to the increase in paid up capital have been completed.
e. Auditor is satisfied that such advance is against the increase of capital.
iv. Other liabilities as per accounting principles and included in the financial statements 3,625,415 - 3,525,415
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30t June 2021

S.No. Head of Account Value in Pak Rupees H.a” cut/ Net Adjusted Value
Adjustments
Subordinated Loans
i. 100% of Subordinated loans which fulfil the conditions specified by SECP are allowed to be
deducted:
The Schedule Il provides that 100% haircut will be allowed against subordinated Loans which
fulfil the
conditions specified by SECP. In this regard, following conditions are specified:
a. Loan agreement must be executed on stamp paper and must clearly reflect the amount to be
2.4 repaid - - N
after 12 months of reporting period
b. No haircut will be allowed against short term portion which is repayable within next 12 months.
c. In case of early repayment of loan, adjustment shall be made to the Liquid Capital and revised
Liquid
Capital statement must be submitted to exchange..
ii. Subordinated loans which do not fulfil the conditions specified by SECP - - -
2.5 [Total Liabilities 3,476,761,985 3,476,761,985
3. Ranking Liabilities Relating to:
Concentration in Margin Financing
3.1 The amount calculated client-to- client basis by which any amount recelvgble from any of the . 138,875.247 138,875,247
financees exceed 10% of the aggregate of amounts receivable from total financees.
Concentration in securities lending and borrowing
The amount by which the aggregate of:
(i) Amount deposited by the borrower with NCCPL
5.2 (li) Cash margins paid and - - -
(iii) The market value of securities pledged as margins exceed the 110% of the market value of
shares borrowed
Net underwriting Commitments
(a) in the case of right issues : if the market value of securities is less than or equal to the
subscription price;
the aggregate of:
(i) the 50% of Haircut multiplied by the underwriting commitments and
= (ii) the value by which the underwriting commitments exceeds the market price of the securities. : : )
In the case of rights issues where the market price of securities is greater than the subscription
price, 5% of the Haircut multiplied by the net underwriting
(b) in any other case : 12.5% of the net underwriting commitments - - N
Negative equity of subsidiary
3.4 |The amount by which the total assets of the subsidiary ( excluding any amount due from the
subsidiary) exceed the total liabilities of the subsidiary B B .
Foreign exchange agreements and foreign currency positions
5% of the net position in foreign currency.Net position in foreign currency means the difference
35 ) . . o ) . )
of total assets denominated in foreign currency less total liabilities denominated in foreign - - -
currency
3.6__|Investment in subsidiaries - - -
Repo adjustment
In the case of financier/purchaser the total amount receivable under Repo less the 110% of
the market value of underlying securities.
3.7 |in the case of financee/seller the market value of underlying securities after applying haircut _ 84,285,277 84,285,277
less the total amount received ,less value of any securities deposited as collateral by the
purchaser after applying haircut less any cash deposited by the purchaser.
3. Ranking Liabilities Relating to:
Concentrated proprietary positions
28 If the market value of any security is between 25% and 51% of the total proprietary positions
; then 5% of the value of such security .If the market of a security exceeds 51% of the proprietary - 43,239,281 43,239,281
position, then 10% of the value of such security
Opening Positions in futures and options
i. In case of customer positions, the total margin requirements in respect of open positions less
the amount of cash deposited by the customer and the value of securities held as collateral/ R R ;
3.9 |pledged with securities exchange after applying VaR haircuts
ii. In case of proprietary positions , the total margin requirements in respect of open positions to R R )
the extent not already met
Short sell positions
i. Incase of customer positions, the market value of shares sold short in ready market on behalf
of customers after increasing the same with the VaR based haircuts less the cash deposited by R R ;
3.10 the customer as collateral and the value of securities held as collateral after applying VAR
Ibased Haircuts
ii. Incase of proprietory positions, the market value of shares sold short in ready market and not
yet settled increased by the amount of VAR based haircut less the value of securities pledged - - -
as collateral after applying haircuts
3.11 |Total Ranking Liabilities 266,399,805 266,399,805

Arif Habib Corporation Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30t June 2021

50.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprises of the Group companies, directors and their close family members, major shareholders of the Group, key
management personnel and staff provident fund. Transactions with related parties are carried out at rates agreed under the agreement

/ contract.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity. The Group considers its Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Non-executive Director and Departmental Heads to be its key
management personnel. Remuneration and benefits to executives of the Group are in accordance with the terms of the employment
while contribution to the provident fund is in accordance with staff service rules. Remuneration of chief executive, directors and
executives (key management personnel) are disclosed in note 44 to these consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with related parties during the year other than those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements are

given below:

Name of the related party Transactions during the year

Associates
Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited

MCB - Arif Habib Savings and
Investments Limited

Dividend received

Dividend received

Associated companies by virtue of common
directorshio and other related parties

Aisha Steel Mills Limited Mark-up on loan

Mark-up received

Loan extended

Loan repaid

Guarantee commission income

Guarantee commission received

Guarantee commission income
Guarantee commission received
Loan extended

Loan repaid

Markup on loan

Markup received

Power Cement Limited

Javedan Corporation Limited Mark-up on loan and advance

Mark-up received

Loan / advance extended

Loan and advances repaid

Purchase of Plots

Brokerage commission on sale of securities

Development Charges Paid

Balance receivable at year end

Arif Habib Dolmen REIT
Management Limited

Brokeraae commission on sale of securities
Receipt aaainst transfer of security deposit
and disposal of fixed assets

Rotocast Engineering
Company (Private) Limited

Payment of rent and sharing of utilities,
insurance and maintenance charges

Brokerage Commission Earned
Trade Receivable
Arif Habib Securities Limited -

Employees Provident Fund Contribution paid

Sale of Plot
Brokerage Commission Earned

Loan Obtained
Loan Repaid
Markup charged
Trade Receivable

Arif Habib Equity (Private) Limited

Arif Habib Limited -

Provident Fund Contribution paid

2021 2020
(Rupees)
1,435,500,927 B
97,488,752 50,910,792
20,504,114 83,097,142
33,356,858 97,007,387

1,630,000,000

2,075,000,000

1,630,000,000

2,093,955,660

4,409,707 5,023,384
4,453,511 4,915,446
1,968,459 1,658,146
2,037,768 1,632,800
462,000,000 416,000,000
462,000,000 416,000,000
922,124 14,441,538
922,124 14,441,538
3,968,751 772,103
1,393,518 41,192,368
450,000,000 173,000,000
450,000,000 183,067,474
152,500,000 B
322,500 B
= 11,934,765
5,126,734 5,126,734
232,000 250,600
- 527,006
61,130,366 65,484,973
2,078,345 -
31,083 B
2,811,526 2,468,699
153,000,000 ~
21,425 -
55,000,000 .
55,000,000 .
112,712 .
156,484 5
7,794,550 6,298,569
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Name of the related party
Key management personnel

Mr. Arif Habib
(CEO of the Parent Company)

Mr. Asadullah Khawaja
(Director of Parent Company)

Mr. Sirajuddin Cassim
(Director of Parent Company)

Mr. Khawaja Jalaluddin Roomi
(Director of Parent Company)

Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
(Director of Parent Company)

Zafar Alam (Chairman
of subsidiary company)

Muhammad Shahid Ali
(CEO of Subsidiary
Company)

Muhammad Haroon
(Director of subsidiary
company)

Sharmin Shahid
(Director of subsidiary
company)

Nida Ahsan
(Director of subsidiary
company)

Mohsin Madni
(CFO Parent Company
& Director Subsidiary Company)

Samad A. Habib
(Director of Parent Company)

Kashif A. Habib
(Director of Parent Company)

Mr. Nasim Beg (Director of
Parent Company)

Mr. Muhammad Ejaz (Director
of Parent Company)

Ahsan Mehnti

(Director of Subsidiary Company)

Arif Habib Corporation Limited

Transactions during the year

Dividend paid

Brokerage commission earned
Loan obtained

Loan repaid

Markup on loan charged / Paid
Markup payable

Loan Payable

Trade Receivable

Meeting fee paid
Dividend Paid

Meeting fee paid
Dividend Paid

Meeting fee paid

Meeting fee paid
Dividend Paid

Brokerage Commission earned
Meeting fee paid

Meeting Fee Payable

Balance payable at year end

Brokerage commission earned
Balance payable at year end

Brokerage commission earned
Balance payable at year end
Meeting Fee Payable

Meeting fee paid

Brokerage commission earned
Dividend paid

Meeting Fee Paid

Balance receivable at year end

Brokerage commission earned
Meeting Fee Paid

Meeting Fee Payable

Balance payable at year end
Balance receivable at year end

Brokerage commission earned

Balance payable at year end

Brokerage commission earned
Dividend paid

Balance payable at year end
Balance receivable at year end

Brokerage commission earned
Balance receivable at year end

Dividend paid

Dividend paid

Dividend paid

Balance payable at year end

2021 2020
(Rupees)
482,924,951 -
7,292,830 6,563,516
2,051,000,000 1,100,000,000
2,351,000,000 800,000,000
18,074,328 12,283,397
- 12,737,772
- 300,000,000
49,556 42,574
200,000 200,000
121,509 -
225,000 -
344,840 -
- 50,000
200,000 200,000
150 -
1,644,264 10,590
75,000 100,000
25,000 -
1129484 2,148,473
16,731,270 7,866,015
112,754,445 3,150,901
400,987 139,235
29,147 700,697
25,000 -
75,000 100,000
2,690,583 728,673
25,000 -
75,000 100,000
8,340 50,302
520,335 1,730,920
50,000 -
25,000 -
9,346,762 -
65,419
22,519 2,936
191,512 175
1,786,631 409,718
1,509 -
872,251 -
- 1,451,078
4,000 6,363
4,075,266 19,630
52,935 -
3,117 -
182 -
3,862,500 3,862,500
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51. SEGMENT INFORMATION
51.1 For management purposes, the Group is organized into following major business segments:
Capital market operations

Principally engaged in trading of equity securities and maintaining strategic and trading portfolios.

Brokerage Principally engaged in brokerage, underwriting, corporate consultancy, research and
corporate finance services.

Energy Development Principally engaged in energy development.

Others Others includes assets of AHCPL
2021
Capital Brokerage Energy Others Consolidated
market Development
operations
(Rupees)
Revenues
Operating revenue 78,170,633 1,547,428,183 3,862,989,166 35,014,494 5,523,602,476
Loss on remeasurement of
investments - net 2,243,239,101 222,888,717 2,466,127,818
Unrealised gain on remeasurement
of investment property - 290,384,768 S - 290,384,768
Gain on sale of securities - net 210,549,439 1,052,956,982 - 14,093,746 1,277,600,167
2,5631,959,173 3,113,658,650 3,862,989,166 49,108,240 9,657,715,229
Cost of energy sales - - (1,300,817,991) - (1,300,817,991)
Administrative expenses (120,143,129) (633,677,610) (88,246,027) (30,421,953) (872,488,719)
2,411,816,044 2,479,981,040 2,473,925,148 18,686,287 7,384,408,519
Other income (440,744) 64,046,125 47,005,306 2,788,852 113,399,539
2,411,375,300 2,544,027,165 2,520,930,454 21,475,139 7,497,808,058
Finance cost and other charges (19,683,694) (148,945,102) (637,180,499) (23,331) (805,832,626)
2,391,691,606 2,395,082,063 1,883,749,955 21,451,808 6,691,975,432
Share of profit from equity accounted
associates - net of tax 2,607,451,994 - - - 2,607,451,994
Segment results 4,999,143,600 2,395,082,063 1,883,749,955 21,451,808 9,299,427,426
Taxation (582,498,149) (309,634,773) (9,791,118) (2,184,747) (904,108,787)
Profit after tax 4,416,645,451 2,085,447,290 1,873,958,837 19,267,061 8,395,318,639
2020
Capital Brokerage Energy Others Consolidated
market Development
operations
(Rupees)
Revenues
Operating revenue 167,106,664 756,585,746 4,098,604,448 26,354,454 5,048,651,312
Loss on remeasurement of
investments - net 203,699,665 201,599,582 405,299,247
Unrealised gain on remeasurement
of investment property - 132,000,000 - - 132,000,000
Gain on sale of securities - net (206,234,813) (233,526,146) - - (439,760,959)
164,571,516 856,659,182 4,098,604,448 26,354,454 5,146,189,600

Cost of energy sales
Administrative expenses

(115,248,011)

(344,592,310)

(1,227,203,030)
(62,762,241)

(19,389,679)

(1,227,203,030)
(541,992,241)

49,323,505 512,066,872 2,808,639,177 6,964,775 3,376,994,329
Other income 191,872 29,501,572 5,786,069 103,264 35,582,777
49,515,377 541,568,444 2,814,425,246 7,068,039 3,412,577,106
Finance cost and other charges (196,105,764) (363,251,124) (958,800,388) (2,209,318) (1,520,366,594)
(146,590,387) 178,317,320 1,855,624,858 4,858,721 1,892,210,512

Share of profit from equity accounted
associates - net of tax 1,441,134,146 - - - 1,441,134,146
Segment results 1,294,543,759 178,317,320 1,855,624,858 4,858,721 3,333,344,658
Taxation (333,435,252) (70,143,598) (12,662,322) (389,538) (416,630,710)
Profit after tax 961,108,507 108,173,722 1,842,962,536 4,469,183 2,916,713,948
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

51.2

Other information

Segment assets

Investment in equity accounted
associates

Segment liabilities

Capital expenditure
Depreciation and amortisation

Expenses other than depreciation
and amortisation

Other information

Segment assets

Investment in equity
accounted associates

Segment liabilities

Capital expenditure

Depreciation and amortisation

Expenses other than depreciation
and amortisation

2021
Capital Brokerage Energy Others Consolidated
market Development
operations
(Rupees)
7,297,698,491 8,435,550,384 19,348,929,962 103,652,719 35,185,831,556
14,581,256,714 - - - 14,581,256,714
21,878,955,205 8,435,550,384 19,348,929,962 103,652,719 49,767,088,270
2,924,567,588 3,465,103,402 10,468,543,010 17,983,476 16,876,197,476
1,416,450 24,467,158 1,973,308 360,498 28,217,414
19,727,851 35,012,724 913,856,090 257,306 968,853,971
(100,415,278) (598,664,886) 825,610,063 (30,164,647) 96,365,252
2020
Capital Brokerage Energy Others Consolidated
market Development
operations
(Rupees)
3,915,561,699 6,839,503,098 19,492,309,463 93,025,465 30,340,399,725
13,404,127,610 - - - 13,404,127,610
17,319,689,309 6,839,503,098 19,492,309,463 93,025,465 43,744,527,335
2,282,314,124 3,623,918,821 12,474,625,714 6,272,050 18,387,130,709
16,096,482 1,500,400 2,546,827 55,000 20,198,709
18,150,563 28,291,598 884,529,601 240,796 931,212,558

(97,097,448)

(316,300,712)

(405,435,670)

(19,148,883)

(837,982,713)

Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenues, profit or loss and assets and liabilities

Operating revenues

Total revenue for reportable segments
Elimination of inter-segment revenue
Consolidated revenue

Profit or loss

Total profit or loss before tax for reportable segments
Elimination of inter-segment revenue / expense
Consolidated profit before tax

CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

Sachal Enerqy Development (Private) Limited
Annual benchmark energy
Actual energy delivered

m Arif Habib Corporation Limited

2021

2020

(Rupees)

5,644,413,925
(120,811,449)

5,011,393,854
37,257,458

5,523,602,476

5,048,651,312

9,352,542,136
(53,114,710)

3,289,645,305
43,699,353

9,299,427,426 3,333,344,658
2021 2020
(Megawatt hours)
136,500 136,500
110,704 142,360




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30t June 2021

52.

53.

53.1

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2021 2020

Parent Company:
Number of employees as at 30 June 23 25
Average number of employees 24 23

Subsidiary Company, AHL.:
Number of employees as at 30 June 182 126
Average number of employees 154 123

Subsidiary Company, AHCPL:
Number of employees as at 30 June 17 13
Average number of employees 15 13

Subsidiary Company, AH1857:
Number of employees as at 30 June = -
Average number of employees - -

Subsidiary Company, BGPL:

Number of employees as at 30 June 3 3
Average number of employees 3 3
Subsidiary Company, SEDPL.:

Number of employees as at 30 June 54 52
Average number of employees 52 44

GENERAL
Corresponding figures

During the year, following reclassifications of the corresponding figures have been made in these
consolidated financial for a better presentation:

0] Guarantee commission of Rs. 6.68 million for the year ended 30 June 2020 has been included in
Operating revenue in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(ii) Loan under State Bank of Pakistan scheme payable in the next 12 months amounting to Rs 4.26
million under non-current liabilities has been reclassified from non-current liabilities to current
liabilities.

(iii) Cost of energy sales amounting to Rs. 1,227.203 million have been segregated from Administrative
Expenses and separately presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

5352 Date of authorisation for issue

These consolidated financial statements have been authorised for issue on 29 September 2021 by the
Board of Directors of the Parent Company.

53.3 Non adjusting event after reporting date

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company has proposed a cash dividend of Rs. 3.00 (2020: Rs. 1.50)
per share amounting to Rs. 1,255,125,000 (2020: Rs. 612,562,500) at its meeting held on 29 September
2021 for the approval of the members at the annual general meeting to be held on 28 October 2021. These
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 do not include the effect of the
proposed final cash dividend which will be accounted in the year ending 30 June 2022.

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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CORPORATE CALENDAR

OF MAJOR EVENTS

RESULTS

The Company follows the period of 1% July to 30" June as the Financial Year.

For the Financial Year ending on 30" June 2022, Financial Results will be announced as per the following

tentative schedule:

Last Week
of October,
2021

1st quarter 30t
ending September
2021

Last Week
of April,
2022

31 quarter
ending

e ISSUANCE OF ANNUAL REPORT
21 days before AGM i.e. on or before date.

e 27t ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

2" quarter
ending

31$t
December
2021

30th
June 2022

Last Week
of February,
2022

Last Week of
September,
2022

The 27t Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Arif Habib Corporation Limited (“the
Company”) will be held on Thursday 28 October, 2021 on 03:30 P.M at the PSX Auditorium, Stock

Exchange Building, Stock Exchange Road, Karachi.

e CASH DIVIDEND

A final Cash Dividend for the year ended 30" June 2021 at Rs.3.00 per share i.e. 30% is recommended
by the Board of Directors. Subject to the approval by members in the Annual General Meeting, the date
of entitlement of cash dividend shall be day end of 215t October 2021, and the company expects to pay
the final dividend on or before 18" November 2021, being the statutory limit of 15 working days from the
date of General Meeting in which the dividend is approved.
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SHAREHOLDERS'’
INFORMATION

REGISTERED & CORPORATE OFFICE

Arif Habib Centre

23, M.T. Khan Road

Karachi-74000

Tel: (021) 32460717-9 Fax No: (021) 32429653, 32468117
Email: info@arifhabibcorp.com

Website: www.arifhabibcorp.com

SHARE REGISTRAR OFFICE

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi
Tel: (021) 111-111-500 Toll Free:0800-23275

Fax: (021) 34326053

URL: www.cdcrsl.com

Email: info@cdcrsl.com

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES

AHCL equity shares are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX).

STOCK CODE

The stock code for dealing in equity shares of the Company at the stock exchanges is AHCL.
INVESTOR SERVICE CENTRE

AHCL share department is operated by CDC Share Registrar Services Limited. It also functions as an
Investor Service Centre managed by a well-experienced team of professionals and is equipped with the
necessary infrastructure in terms of computer facilities and comprehensive set of systems and procedures
for conducting the Registration function. Team is headed by Mr. Abdus Samad at Registrar office and
Company Secretary at AHCL Registered office. For assistance, queries, complaints and redressal of
grievances, shareholders may contact either the registered office or the Share Registrar office.

CONTACT PERSONS:

Mr. Manzoor Raza Mr. Mohsin Rajab Ali

Tel: (021) 32467456 Tel: (021) 111-111-500

Email: manzoor.raza@arifthabibcorp.com Email: mohsin_rajabali@cdcrsl.com
STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

During the year the Company has complied with all applicable provisions, filed all returns/forms and
furnished all the relevant information as required under the Companies Act, 2017 and allied laws and rules,
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) Regulations and the Listing Regulations.
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BOOK CLOSURE DATES

The Share transfer books of the company will remain closed from 22nd October 2021 to 28" October 2021
(both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of our registrar: M/s. CDC Share Registrar
Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, by the close of
business on Thursday, 215t October 2021 will be treated in time for the determination of entitlement of
shareholders to attend and vote at the meeting.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
No case has been filed by shareholders against the Company for non-receipt of share / dividend.
GENERAL MEETINGS & VOTING RIGHTS

Pursuant to Section 132 of the Companies Act, 2017 AHCL holds a General Meeting of Shareholders at
least once a year. Every shareholder has a right to attend the General Meeting. The notice of such meeting
is sent to all the shareholders at least 21 days before the meeting and also published in at least one English
and one Urdu newspaper having circulation in all provinces.

PROXIES

Pursuant to Section 137 of the Companies Act, 2017 and according to the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company, every shareholder of the Company who is entitled to attend and vote at
General Meeting of the Company can appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend and vote at the
meeting.

Every notice calling a General Meeting of the Company contains a statement that shareholder entitled to
attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy. The instrument appointing proxy, duly signed by the
shareholder should be deposited at the office of the Share Registrar of the Company not less than 48 hours
before the meeting.

WEB PRESENCE

The website of the company has been redesigned to give an investor friendly look. Further, the website has
been updated in accordance with statutory guidelines issued by regulator from time to time. Updated
information about the Company and its affiliates can be accessed at AHCL web site,
www.arifhabibcorp.com

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

The shareholding pattern of the equity share capital of the Company as on 30t June 2021 along with
categories of shareholders are given on page 34 to 36 of this report.
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NOTICE OF TWENTY SEVENTH
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Arif Habib
Corporation Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Thursday, 28" October, 2021 at 3:30 p.m. at PSX
Auditorium, Stock Exchange Building, Stock Exchange Road, Karachi to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business
1) To confirm minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on 28t October 2020.

2) To receive, consider and adopt annual audited financial statements of the Company together with the
Directors' and the Auditors’ Reports thereon for the year ended 30" June 2021 together with the Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and the Auditors’ Reports thereon for the year ended
30" June 2021.

3) To appoint the Auditors for the year ending 30th June 2022 and fix their remuneration. The Board of
Directors has recommended appointment of M/s. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants in place
of retiring auditors M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants as external auditors.

4) To consider and approve final Cash Dividend for the year ended 30t June 2021 at Rs.3.00 per share i.e.
30% as recommended by the Board of Directors.

Special Business

5) To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to approve those transactions with related parties (if
executed) during the financial year ending 30th June 2022 which require approval of shareholders u/s
207 and / or 208 of the Companies Act, 2017, by passing the following special resolutions with or without
modification:

“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to approve the
transactions to be conducted with Related Parties on case to case basis for the financial year ending 30t
June 2022

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the transactions approved by the Board shall be deemed to have been
approved by the shareholders u/s 207 and / or 208 of the Companies Act, 2017 (if triggered) and shall be
placed before the shareholders in the next Annual General Meeting for their formal ratification/approval
u/s 207 and / or 208 of the Companies Act, 2017 (if required).”

6) To consider and if deemed fit, to pass the following Special Resolutions with or without
modification(s):

Investment in Associated Companies & Associated Undertakings

“RESOLVED THAT the consent and approval be and is hereby accorded under Section 199 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated
Undertakings) Regulations, 2017, for the following limits of investments / additional investments in
associated companies and associated undertakings for a period upto next annual general meeting, and
subject to the terms and conditions as mentioned in the Annexure-B of Statement under Section 134(3).”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the consent and approval be and is hereby accorded under Section 199
of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated
Undertakings) Regulations, 2017 for renewal of following equity investments limits in associated
companies and associated undertakings as are also mentioned in the Annexure-C of Statement under
Section 134(3) against which approval had been sought in previous general meeting(s), upto unutilized
amount, and for a period upto next annual general meeting, which shall be renewable in next general
meeting(s) for further period(s).”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the consent and approval be and is hereby accorded under Section 199
of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated
Undertakings) Regulations, 2017 for renewal of following sanctioned limits of loans / advances /
guarantees in associated companies and associated undertakings, for which approval has been sought
in previous general meeting(s), as mentioned in detail in the Annexure-C of statement under Section
134(3), whereas the renewal of limits will be in the nature of loan and/or running finance and/or corporate
guarantee for a period upto next annual general meeting, unless specifically approved for a longer period,
and shall be renewable in next general meeting(s) for further period(s) as specified.”
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Amount in million

Proposed Fresh Investment Renewal Requested
Name of Associated Companies & Roan Unutilized T
Undertakings Equity Advance/ Equity
A Advance/ Guarantee
Guarantee Portion
PKR PKR PKR PKR /USD
1 | Javedan Corporation Ltd. - 700 375 PKR 2,432
2 | Arif Habib Ltd. - 1,000 490 PKR 4,500
3 MCB -Arif Habib Savings and 399
Investments Ltd. . . )
4 Pakarab Fertilizers Ltd. - - 1,000 PKR 1,000
5 Fatima Fertilizer Company Ltd. - - 1,800 PKR 1,000
Rotocast Engineering Co.
6 (Pvt.) Ltd. - - 300 PKR 500
Arif Habib Dolmen REIT
! Management Ltd. ) ) 1,000 PKR 500
8 | Aisha Steel Mills Ltd. 500 - 494 pTuléRU%%Ogo
PKR 1
9 | Power Cement Ltd. 500 - 553 plus Us’gofg
Sachal Energy Development (Pvt.) PKR 1,000
101 - - 754 plus USD 100
11 | Safe Mix Concrete Ltd. - - 150 PKR 150
12 | Dolmen City REIT - - 799 -
13 | National Resources (Pvt.) Ltd. 500 - 50 -

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive and/or any two directors jointly and/or any one director and
Chief Financial Officer / Company Secretary jointly, be and are hereby authorized to take and do, and/or cause to
be taken or done, any/all necessary actions, deeds and things which are or may be necessary for giving effect to
the aforesaid resolutions and to do all acts, matters, deeds, and things which are necessary, incidental and/or
consequential to the investment of the Company’s funds as above, as and when required at the time of investment,
including but not limited to negotiating and executing any necessary agreements/documents, and any ancillary

matters thereto.”

Any Other Business

7) To consider any other business with the permission of the Chair.

A Statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2017 pertaining to the special business is being sent

to the shareholders along with this notice.

Karachi: 7th October 2021

By order of the Board

Manzoor Raza
Company Secretary
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Notes:

1. Share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 22nd October 2021 to 28™ October 2021
(both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of our registrar: M/s. CDC Share Registrar
Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi [ AHCLs
Share Registrar (CDCSRSL) ], by the close of business on Thursday, 215t October 2021 will be treated in
time for the determination of entitlement of shareholders to cash dividend and to attend and vote at the
meeting.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as his / her proxy who
shall have such rights as respects attending, speaking and voting at the meeting as are available to a
member.

3. Procedure including the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. |- Reference No. 3(5-A) Misc/ARO/LES/96
dated 26t January 2000 issued by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

i. Members, proxies or nominees shall authenticate their identity by showing their original national
identity card or original passport and bring their folio numbers at the time of attending the meeting.

ii. Inthe case of corporate entity, Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney and attested copy of
the CNIC or passport of the nominee shall also be produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of
meeting.

iii. In order to be effective, the proxy forms must be received at the office of AHCL's Share Registrar
(CDCSRSL) not later than 48 hours before the meeting, duly signed and stamped and witnessed by
two persons with their names, address, CNIC numbers and signatures.

iv. Inthe case of individuals, attested copies of CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy
shall be furnished with the proxy form.

v. In the case of proxy by a corporate entity, Board of Directors resolution/power of attorney and
attested copy of the CNIC or passport of the proxy shall be submitted along with proxy form.

4. Members are requested to submit copies of their CNICs and promptly notify any change in address by
writing to the office of AHCL's Share Registrar (CDCSRSL).

5.  Online Participation in the Annual General Meeting

In the wake of prevailing situation due to pandemic, SECP has instructed listed companies to modify their
usual planning for General Meetings for the safety and wellbeing of the shareholders and public at large.
Accordingly, the Company intends to convene this AGM with minimal physical interaction with
shareholders while ensuring compliance with quorum requirements and requests the Members to
consolidate their attendance and voting at the AGM through proxies.

The Company has therefore made arrangements to ensure that all participants, including shareholders,
can also participate in the AGM proceeding via video link. Accordingly, those members who desire online
participation in the AGM are requested to register themselves by sending an email along with following
particulars and valid copy of both sides of their CNIC at corporate.affairs@arifhabibcorp.com with subject
of ‘Registration for AHCL AGM 2021’ not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting:

Name of CNIC No. Folio No. / Cell No. Email Address
Shareholder CDC Account No.

Video Link to join the AGM will be shared with only those Members whose emails, containing all the
required and correct particulars, are received at corporate.affairs@arifhabibcorp.com. The Shareholders
can also provide their comments and questions for the agenda items of the AGM on this email address
and WhatsApp Number 0311-2706624.

6. Provision of Video Link Facility:

If the Company receives a demand (at least 7 days before the date of meeting) from shareholder(s)
holding an aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing in any other city, to participate in the meeting
through video link, the Company will arrange video link facility in that city.

Shareholders, who wish to participate through video-link facility, are requested to fill in Video Link Facility
Form available at Company's website and send a duly signed copy to the Registered Address of the
Company. It may be noted that no person other than the member or proxy holder can attend the meeting
through video link facility.
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10.

11.

12.

E-Voting

Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements of Section 143 - 145 of
Companies Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018.

Notice to Shareholders for provision of CNIC and other details

Individual Members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid Computerized National Identity Card
(CNIC) to the Company / Share Registrar, are once again reminded to send the same at the earliest directly
to AHCLs Share Registrar (CDCSRSL). The Corporate Entities are requested to provide their National Tax
Number (NTN). Please provide Folio Number with the copy of CNIC / NTN details.

CNIC/Passport#/NTN/Exemption/Zakat Declaration

Shareholders are advised to ensure that they have provided their Passport#/NTN/CNIC/Tax exemption
certificates (for tax exemption, where applicable) and valid Zakat Declaration (for Zakat Exemption) to their
respective Participant/CDC Investor Account Services/ AHCLs Share Registrar (CDCSRSL).

Payment of Cash Dividend through Electronic Mode (Mandatory):

Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed Company to pay
cash dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the
entitled shareholders.

In order to receive dividend directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to provide their IBAN
by filling the Electronic Mode Dividend Form available at Company's website containing prescribed details and
send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to AHCLs Share Registrar (CDCSRSL), in case of physical
shares. In case of book-entry securities, respective shareholders must get their respective records including
IBAN updated as per the Electronic Mode Dividend Form with their Broker/Participant/CDC account services.

In the absence of a members’ valid bank account details and / or IBAN, the Company will be constrained to
withhold the payment of dividend to such members in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
(Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017 read with Section 243(2)(a) of the Companies Act, 2017, till
provision of prescribed details.

Withholding Tax on Dividend

Dividend income on shares is liable to deduction of withholding tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of
dividend paid by the companies. These tax rates are as under:

- For Filers [persons whose names are appearing in Active Taxpayers List (ATL)] 1 15%
- For Non-filers [persons whose names are not appearing in ATL] 1 30%

Shareholders are advised to make sure that their names (and/or the name of their joint holders) are appearing
in latest ATL provided on the website of FBR, otherwise they (and/or joint holders) shall be treated as
non-filers and tax on their cash dividend income will be deducted at the rate of 30% instead of 15%.

Withholding Tax on Dividend in Case of Joint Account Holders
In order to enable the Company to follow the directives of the regulators to determine shareholding proportion
in case of Joint account, all shareholders who hold shares with Joint shareholders, are requested to provide

shareholding proportions of Principal shareholder and Joint Holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to
AHCLs Share Registrar (CDCSRSL), in writing, as follows:
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Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder

FOliO / TOtaI ) ]
CDS Shares Name and Sgareho![mng Shareholding
Account # CNIC # roportion Name and CNIC # Proportion

(%) (%)

NOTE: In the event of non-receipt of the information by 21st October 2021, each shareholder will be
assumed to have equal proportion of shares and the tax will be deducted accordingly.

13. Unclaimed dividends

Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their previous dividends are advised to contact AHCLs
Share Registrar (CDCSRSL) to collect/enquire about their unclaimed dividend, if any. The details of the
dividend declared by the Company which have remained due for more than three years are available on
the Company’s website.

14. Distribution of Annual Report

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30th June 2021 (Annual Report) have
been made available on the Company’s website (http://www.arifhabibcorp.com) in addition to annual and
quarterly financial statements for the prior years.

Further, Annual Report is dispatched to the shareholders through CD. However, if a shareholder, in
addition, requests for hard copy of Annual Audited Financial Statements, the same shall be provided free
of cost within seven days of receipt of such request. For convenience of shareholders, a “Standard
Request Form for provision of Annual Audited Accounts” has also been made available on the Company’s
website (http://arifhabibcorp.com/contact.php).

15. Deposit of Physical Shares in CDC Accounts

As per section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing Company shall be required to replace its
physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the
SECP, within a period not exceeding four years from the commencement of the Companies Act, 2017, i.e
30th May 2017. The shareholders having physical shareholding are once again requested to open CDC
sub-account with any of the brokers or investors account directly with CDC to place their physical shares
into scrip less form. Conversion of physical shares into scrip less form will facilitate the shareholders in
many ways, including safe custody, efficient trading and convenience in other corporate actions. AHCLS
Share Registrar (CDCSRSL) is available to facilitate the shareholders regarding conversion procedure.
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STATEMENT UNDER
SECTION 134(3) OF
THE COMPANIES

ACT, 2017

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the
Special Business given in Agenda item No. 5 and Agenda
item No. 6 of the Notice to be transacted at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

Directors of the Company have no interest in the special

business except in their capacity as director /
shareholder.



STATEMENT UNDER SECTION
134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

ANNEXURE A

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO APPROVE THOSE TRANSACTIONS WITH
RELATED PARTIES (IF EXECUTED) DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 30TH JUNE 2021 WHICH
REQUIRE APPROVAL OF SHAREHOLDERS U/S 207 AND / OR 208 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

The Company shall be conducting transactions with its related parties during the year ending 30th June 2022
on an arm’s length basis as per the approved policy with respect to ‘transactions with related parties’ in the
normal course of business. Being the directors of an investment holding Company, many Directors may be
deemed to be treated as interested in transactions with related parties due to their common directorships
and/or shareholding. In order to promote good corporate governance and transparent business practices, the
shareholders desire to authorize the Board of Directors to approve transactions with the related parties from
time-to-time on case-to-case basis, including transactions (if executed) triggering approval of shareholders u/s
207 and / or 208 of the Companies Act, 2017, for the year ending 30th June 2022, which transactions shall be
deemed to be approved by the Shareholders. The nature and scope of such related party transactions is
explained above. These transactions shall be placed before the shareholders in the next Annual General
Meeting for their formal approval/ratification. The Directors are interested in the resolution only to the extent of
their shareholding and / or common directorships in such related parties.
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ANNEXURE B

Investments in Associated Companies & Associated Undertakings

The Board of Directors of the Company (“AHCL”) has approved the specific limits for loans/advances along
with other particulars for investments in the following associated companies and associated undertakings
subject to the consent of members under Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 / Companies (Investment
in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017. The Board of Directors do hereby
undertake / certify that necessary due diligence for the following proposed investment has been carried out.
The principle purpose of this special resolution is to make the Company in a ready position to capitalize on the
investment opportunities as and when they arrive. It is prudent that the Company should be able to make the
investment at the right time when the opportunity is available, and the limit shall be valid till the holding of next

annual general meeting with the option of renewal thereon.

1 Investment in Securities

of associated company or associated
undertaking that has not commenced
operations, following further information,
namely:

1. Description of the project and its history
since conceptualization;

2. Starting date and expected date of
completion of work;

3. Time by which such project shall become
commercially operational;

4. Expected time by which the project shall start
paying return on investment; and

5. Funds invested or to be invested by the
promoters, sponsors, associated company or
associated undertaking distinguishing
between cash and non-cash amounts;

Ref. No. | Requirement Information
I Name of associated company or associated | Aisha Steel Mills Limited (*ASML”")
undertaking
Il Basis of relationship An associated undertaking due to common
control & common directorships of Mr. Arif Habib,
Mr. Samad Habib, Mr. Nasim Begand Mr. Kashif
Habib
1l Earnings per share (basic) for the last three Year 2021: 8.19
years Year 2020: (0.89)
Year 2019: 0.26
\Vi Break - up value of share, based on the latest | pkR 17.72 per share as at 30t June 2021
audited financial statements
v Financial position, including main items of state- 30™ June 2021 (PKR in Million)
ment of financial position and profit and loss Non-current assets 19,951
account on the basis of its latest financial state- | Current assets 16,572
ments Equity o 14,467
Non-current liabilities 6,274
Current liabilities 15,783
Operating Revenue 55,116
Profit before Tax 8,588
Profit after Tax 6,368
VI In case of investment in relation to a project | Not applicable
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Vil

Maximum amount of investment to be made

Fresh limit of PKR500 million is requested for
approval. This is in addition to:

- Renewal requested separately for the
unutilized  limit of equity investment
ofPKR494million; and

- Cumulative investment at cost of PKR 3.8
billion already made up to 30 June 2021.

VI

Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the
investing company and its members from
such investment and period of investment

For the benefit of the Company and to earn better
returns on investment by capturing the
opportunities on the right time. Approval of limit
shall remain valid for a period upto next annual
general meeting and shall be renewable thereon
for further period(s).

Sources of funds to be utilized for investment
and where the investment is intended to be
made using borrowed funds

1. Justification  for  investment through
borrowing

2. Detail of collateral, guarantees provided
and assets pledged for obtaining such funds

3. Cost benefit analysis

The investment may be made from Company’s
own available liquidity and/or credit lines.

1. Higher rate of return

2. Pledge of listed securities and / or charge over
assets of the Company, if and where needed.

3. Company’s expects to time the investment to
earn return over and above the borrowing cost.

Salient feature of agreement(s), if any, with
associated company or associated
undertaking with regards to proposed
investment

There is no agreement to date

Xl

Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors,
majority shareholders and their relatives, if any,
in the associated company or associated
undertaking or the transaction under
consideration

Directors of the company have no interest in the
investee company except in their capacity as
sponsor / director / shareholder of associated
company

Xl

In case an investment in associated company
has already been made, the performance review
of such investment including complete
information / justification for any impairments /
write-offs

ASML reported earnings per share of PKR 8.19 for
the year ended 30th June 2021 as compared to
loss per share of PKR 0.89 last year.
Consequently, the investment is expected to add
value to AHCL shareholders.

Performance of ASML can be referred in Point Il to
V above.

Xl

Any other important details necessary for the
members to understand the transaction

None

XIV

Maximum price at which securities will be
acquired

At par / premium / market / offered / negotiated
price prevailing on the date of
transaction/investment

XV

In case the purchase price is higher than
market value in case of listed securities and fair
value in case of unlisted securities, justification
thereof

Not applicable
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XVI Maximum number of securities to be No. of securities purchasable under approved

acquired limit in accordance with / based on Sr. Nos. VI
& XIV

XVII Number of securities and percentage thereof Before: 3,571,616 (ordinary shares) and

held before and after the proposed investment 18,114,999 (preference shares) being 2.66%
holding in the company as on 30th September
2021. After: Increase in securities / percentage in
accordance with Sr. Nos. VII, XIV and XVI.

XVIII Current and preceding twelve weeks’ weighted | As at 30th September 2021: Current price per
average market price where investment is | share: PKR 20.81(ordinary shares), PKR 32.50
proposed to be made in listed securities; and (preference shares) and PKR 45.15 (cumulative

preference shares) Weighted average market
price per share of preceding twelve weeks: 24.43
(ordinary shares).

XIX Fair value determined in terms of | Notapplicable
sub-regulation (1) of regulation 5 for
investments in
unlisted securities

2 Investment in Securities

of associated company or associated
undertaking that has not commenced
operations, following further information,
namely:

1. Description of the project and its history since
conceptualization;

2. Starting date and
completion of work;

expected date of

3. Time by which such project shall become
commercially operational;

Ref. No. | Requirement Information
[ Name of associated company or associated | Power Cement Limited (“PCL")
undertaking
I Basis of relationship An associated undertaking due to common
control & common directorships of Mr. Nasim
Beg, Mr. Kashif Habib and Mr. Samad Habib.
11 Earnings per share for the last three years Year 2021: 0.17
Year 2020: (3.40)
Year 2019: 0.55
v Break-up value of share, based on the latest | PKR 10.10 per share as at 30th June 2021
audited financial statements
\Y; Financial position, including main items of | 30th June 2021 (PKR in Million)
statement of financial position and profit and | Non-current assets 38,483
loss account on the basis of its latest financial | Current assets 7,009
statements Equity 10,745
Non-current liabilities 18,546
Current liabilities 16,201
Operating Revenue 14,221
Loss before Tax (671)
Profit after Tax 358
VI In case of investment in relation to a project | Not applicable
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4. Expected time by which the project shall start

paying return on investment; and

5. Funds invested or to be invested by the

promoters, sponsors, associated company
or associated undertaking distinguishing
between cash and non-cash amounts;

\Yill Maximum amount of investment to be made Fresh limit of PKR 500 million is requested for

approval. This is in addition to:

- Renewal requested separately for the unutilized
limit of equity investment of PKR 553 million;
and

- Cumulative investment at cost of PKR 3.27
billion already made up to 30 June 2021

VI Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the | Forthe benefit of the Company and to earn better
investing company and its members from such | returns on investment by capturing the
investment and period of investment opportunities on the right time. Approval of limit

shall remain valid for a period upto next annual

general meeting and shall be renewable thereon
for further period(s).

IX Sources of funds to be utilized for investment The investment may be made from
and where the investment is intended to be Company’s own available liquidity and/or
made using borrowed funds credit lines.

1. Justification  for  investment  through 1. Higher rate of return

borrowing
2. Detall of collateral, guarantees provided and 2. Pledge of listed securities and / or charge
assets pledged for obtaining such funds over assets of the Company, if and where
needed.

3. Cost benefit analysis 3. Company’s expects to time the investment to
earn return over and above the borrowing
cost.

X Salient feature of agreement(s), if any, with | There is no agreement to date
associated company or associated undertaking
with regards to proposed investment

X| Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors, | Directors of the company have no interest in the
majority shareholders and their relatives, if any, | investee company except in their capacity as
in the associated company or associated | sponsor / director / shareholder of associated
undertaking or the transaction under | company
consideration

XII In case an investment in associated company | Performance of PCL can be referred in Point Il to
has already been made, the performance | V above.
review of such investment including complete
information / justification for any impairments /
write-offs

X1 Any other important details necessary for the | None
members to understand the transaction
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XV Maximum price at which securities will be | At par / premium / market / offered / negotiated
acquired price prevailing on the date of

transaction/investment

XV In case the purchase price is higher than market | Not applicable
value in case of listed securities and fair value in
case of unlisted securities, justification thereof

XVI Maximum number of securities to be acquired No. of securities purchasable under approved limit

in accordance with / based on Sr. Nos. VII & XIV

XVII Number of securities and percentage thereof | Before: 44,137,652 (ordinary shares) and

held before and after the proposed investment 18,766,114 (preference shares) being 4.81%
holding in the company as on 30th June 2021.After:
Increase in securities / percentage in accordance
with Sr. Nos. VII, XIV and XVI.

XVIII Current and preceding twelve weeks’ weighted | As at 30th September 2021: Current price per
average market price where investment is | share: PKR 7.02 (ordinary shares) and PKR 9.20
proposed to be made in listed securities; and (preference shares). Weighted average market

price per share of preceding twelve weeks: 8.64
(ordinary shares).
XIX Fair value determined in terms of sub-regulation | Not applicable

(1) of regulation 5 for investments in unlisted
securities

3 Investment in Securities

Ref. No. | Requirement Information
I Name of associated company or associated | National Resources (Private) Ltd (“NRPL”)
undertaking
1] Basis of relationship An associated undertaking due to common
directorship of Mr. Arif Habib
1] Earnings per share for the last three years Year 2021: (3.08)
Year 2020: (2.45)
Year 2019: (1.72)
v Break-up value of share, based on the latest | PKR 5.70 per share as at 30t June 2021
audited financial statements
\V/ Financial position, including main items of | 30t June 2021 (PKR in Million)

statement of financial position and profit and loss
account on the basis of its latest financial
statements

Non-current assets 9
Current assets 603
Equity 601
Non-current liabilities 2
Current liabilities 9
Operating Revenue b
Loss before Tax (320)
Loss after Tax (322)
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Vi In case of investment in relation to a project | Not Applicable, as AHCL is investing in NRPL
of associated company or associated | notin any of its projects.
undertaking that has not commenced
operations, following further information,
namely:
1. Description of the project and its history since | Not Applicable
conceptualization;
2. Starting date and expected date of | Not Applicable
completion of work;
3. Time by which such project shall become | Not Applicable
commercially operational,
4. Expected time by which the project shall start | Not Applicable
paying return on investment; and
5. Funds invested or to be invested by the | Not Applicable
promoters, sponsors, associated company
or associated undertaking distinguishing
between cash and non -cash amounts;
VII Maximum amount of investment to be made Fresh limit of PKR 500 million is requested for
approval. This is in addition to:
- Renewal requested separately for the unutilized
limit of equity investment of PKR 50 million; and
Cumulative investment at cost of PKR 99.99
million already made up to 30t June 2021
VI Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the | For the benefit of the Company and to earn better
investing company and its members from such | returns in the long run on strategic investment.
investment and period of investment Approval of limit shall remain valid for a period upto
next annual general meeting and shall be
renewable thereon for further period(s).
IX Sources of funds to be utilized for investment | The investment may be made from Company’s
and where the investment is intended to be | own available liquidity and/or credit lines.
made using borrowed funds
1. Justification ~ for  investment  through | 1. Higher rate of return
borrowing
2. Detail of collateral, guarantees provided and | 2. Pledge of listed securities and / or charge over
assets pledged for obtaining such funds assets of the Company, if and where needed.
3. Cost benefit analysis 3. Company’s expects to time the investment to
earn return over and above the borrowing cost.
X Salient feature of agreement (s), if any, with | Pursuant to joint venture arrangement among
associated company or associated undertaking | NRPL sponsor, certain equity investment was
with regards to proposed investment agreed to be made in to NRPL. NRPL will
directly / indirectly undertake exploratory /
appraisal steps relating to mineral mining in
Balochistan and look at developing any viable
minerals prospects

@ Arif Habib Corporation Limited




XI Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors,
majority shareholders and their relatives, if any,
in the associated company or associated
undertaking or the transaction under
consideration

Directors of the company have no interest in the
investee company except in their capacity as
sponsor / director / shareholder of associated
company

Xl In case an investment in associated company
has already been made, the performance
review of such investment including complete
information / justification for any impairments /
write-offs

The Company has made equity of PKR 99.99
million.

Performance of NRPL can be referred in Point Il
to V above.

X Any other important details necessary for the
members to understand the transaction

None

value in case of listed securities and fair value in
case of unlisted securities, justification thereof

XIV Maximum price at which securities will be | At par / premium / offered / negotiated price
acquired prevailing on the date of transaction / investment.
XV In case the purchase price is higher than market | Not Applicable

held before and after the proposed investment

XVI Maximum number of securities to be acquired No. of securities purchasable under approved limit
in accordance with / bases on Sr. Nos. VII & XIV
XVII Number of securities and percentage thereof | Nil

XVIII Current and preceding twelve weeks’ weighted
average market price where investment is
proposed to be made in listed securities; and

Not applicable

XIX Fair value determined in terms of sub-regulation
(1) of regulation 5 for investments in unlisted
securities

NRPL is in pre-feasibility stage, it is impractical
to ascertain fair value at this stage.

4 Loan and advances

Ref. No.| Requirement

Information

| Name of associated company or associated
undertaking

Javedan Corporation Limited (“JCL")

Il Basis of relationship

An associated undertaking due to common control
& common directorships of Mr. Arif Habib, Mr.
Samad A. Habib and Mr. Muhammad Ejaz.

I Earnings per share for the last three years

Year 2021: 1.04
Year 2020: 0.75
Year 2019: 1.83

v Break-up value per share, based on the latest
audited financial statements

PKR 56.25 per share as at 30t June 2021

\V Financial position, including main items of
statement of financial position and profit and loss
account on the basis of its latest financial
statements

30thJune 2021 (PKR in Million)
Non-current assets 21,119
Current assets 6,880
Equity 17,852
Non-current liabilities 4,956
Current liabilities 5,191
Operating Revenue 1,047
Profit before Tax 370
Profit after Tax 331
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\

In case of investment in relation to a
project of associated company or associ-
ated undertaking that has not
commenced operations, following further
information, namely:

1. Description of the project and its
history since conceptualization;

2. Starting date and expected date of
completion of work;

3. Time by which such project shall
become commercially operational,

4. Expected time by which the project
shall start paying return on investment;
and

5. Funds invested or to be invested by
the promoters, sponsors, associated
company or associated undertaking
distinguishing between cash and
non-cash amounts;

Not applicable

VI

Maximum amount of investment to be
made

Fresh limit for running finance facility of PKR 500
million and guarantee facility of PKR 200 million is
requested for approval. This is in the addition of
PKR 2,231.55 million and PKR 200 million
requested for renewal for previously sanctioned limit
of loan and guarantee, respectively. Consolidated
limit of PKR 2,731.55 million (PKR 500 million fresh
limit and PKR 2,231.55 million renewal of previous
sanctioned limit) may be utilized as loan / running
finance / advance, at the discretion of Company in
accordance with approvals already sought by
shareholders in 26th AGM of AHCL in 2020.

Vi

Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the
investing company and its members from
such investment and period of
investment

AHCL shall charge markup on the loan utilized by JCL
which will increase profit to the shareholders. Period of
loan will be decided at the time of extending the facility.
The facility is subject to renewal next year.

Sources of funds to be utilized for
investment and where the investment is
intended to be made using borrowed
funds

1. Justification for investment through
borrowing

2. Detail of collateral, guarantees
provided and assets pledged for
obtaining such funds

3. Cost benefit analysis

The investment may be made from Company’s own
available liquidity and/or credit lines.

1. Higher rate of return

2. Pledge of listed securities and / or charge over assets
of the Company, if and where needed.

3. Company’s average borrowing cost ranges from 1
month KIBOR + 1% to 3 months KIBOR + 1.75% and
the Company is expected to earn mark-up over and
above the borrowing cost.
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X Salient feature of agreement(s), if any, The markup on facility shall be 3 months KIBOR +
with associated company or 2.25% per annum. Markup is payable on Quarterly
associated undertaking with regards basis. The loan is repayable within 30 business
to proposed investment days of notice of demand. The markup rate may be

increased / reduced if borrowing cost of the
Company is increased.

Xl Direct or indirect interest of directors, Directors of the company have no interest in the
sponsors, majority shareholders and investee company except in their capacity as
their relatives, if any, in the associated sponsor / director / shareholder of holding
company or associated undertaking or company.
the transaction under consideration

X1 In case an investment in associated Performance of JCL can be referred in Point Il
company has already been made, the and V above.
performance review of such investment
including complete information /
justification for any impairments /
write-offs

XIll | Any other important details necessary | None
for the members to understand the
transaction:

XV | Category-wise amount of investment | Fresh limit for running finance facility of PKR 500
million and guarantee facility of PKR 200 million is
requested for approval. This is in the addition of PKR
2,231.55 million and PKR 200 million requested for
renewal for previously sanctioned limit of loan and
guarantee, respectively. Consolidated limit of PKR
2,731.55 million (PKR 500 million fresh limit and
PKR 2,231.55 million renewal of previous sanctioned
limit) may be utilized as loan / running finance /
advance, at the discretion of Company in
accordance with approvals already sought by
shareholders in 26th AGM of AHCL in 2020.

XV | Average borrowing cost of the investing | Average borrowing of Company ranges from
company, the Karachi Inter Bank | 1-month KIBOR + 1% to 3 months KIBOR + 1.75%.
Offered Rate (KIBOR) for the relevant | Funded facility shall be Conventional in nature.
period, rate of return for Shariah
compliant products and rate of return for
unfunded facilities, as the case may be,
for the relevant period

XV| | Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or | Negotiable; in line with prevailing commercial rates
commission etc. to be charged by | for similar facilities and will be decided at the time of
investing company extending the facility.

XVIlI | Particulars of collateral or security to be | As investee is a Group Company, no collateral is
obtained in relation to the proposed | required.
investment

XVill | If the investment carries conversion | Not applicable

feature i.e. it is convertible into
securities, this fact along with terms and
conditions including conversion

formula, circumstances in which the
conversion may take place and the time
when the conversion may be
exercisable
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XIX

Repayment schedule and terms and
conditions of loans or advances to be given
to the associated company or associated
undertaking

Facility extended in the nature of Running
Finance Facility / Advance shall be for a period
of one year and renewable in next general
meeting for further period(s) of one year(s).
Facility extended in the nature of Long-term
Loan shall be for a period as agreed at the time
of disbursement, and the portion of facility to
the extent of disbursement of longtermloan
shall be exhausted and shall not be renewable

in next annual general meeting.

5 Loan and advances

of associated company or associated
undertaking that has not commenced
operations, following further information,
namely:

1. description of the project and its history since
conceptualization;

2. starting date and expected date of
completion of work;

3. time by which such project shall become
commercially operational,

4. expected time by which the project shall start
paying return on investment; and

5. funds invested or to be invested by the
promoters, sponsors, associated company
or associated undertaking distinguishing
between cash and non -cash amounts;

Not applicable

Ref. No. | Requirement Information
I Name of associated company or associated Arif Habib Limited (“AHL")
undertaking
Il Basis of relationship Subsidiary Company
M Earnings per share for the last three years Year 2021: 35.08
Year 2020: 1.00
Year 2019: (0.95)
v Break-up value of share, based on the latest PKR 84.10 per share as at 30" June 2021
audited financial statements
v Financial position, including main items of | 30™ June 2021 (PKR in Million)
statement of financial position and profit and | Non-current assets 2,222
loss account on the basis of its latest | Currentassets 6,250
financial statements Equity 4,995
Non-current liabilities 4
Current liabilities 3,473
Operating Revenue 1,512
Profit before Tax 2393
Profit after Tax 2084
VI In case of investment in relation to a project
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VII Maximum amount of investment to be made Fresh limit for issuance of Guarantee up to PKR
1 billion is requested for approval. This is in the
addition to PKR 3 billion requested for renewal
for previously sanctioned of guarantee. This
Guarantee may be in the form of pledge of
shares or corporate guarantee by Arif Habib
Corporation Limited in favour of any bank / finan-
cial institution / company etc. in connection with
financing or other facilities availed / to be availed
by AHL.
VIII Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the To support the functionality, operations, and
investing company and its members from growth of the Subsidiary Company. This will
such investment and period of investment enhance the credibility of AHL to make further
investment(s) in the market and earn profits.
Consequently, it will add value to AHCL's
shareholders, in the form of cash dividend or
bonus etc. In addition, AHCL  shall charge
commission on pledge / corporate guarantee
utilized by AHL.
The facility (pledge / corporate guarantee)
shall be renewable in next general meeting(s)
for further period(s) of one year(s)
1X Sources of funds to be utilized for investment . o .
and where the investment is intended to be Not applicable, as it is an un-funded facility.
made using borrowed funds
1 Justification for investment through
borrowing

2. Detail of collateral, guarantees provided and
assets pledged for obtaining such funds

3. Cost benefit analysis

X Salient feature of agreement(s), if any, with It will be decided with mutual consent at the
associated company or associated undertak- time of extending the facility
ing with regards to proposed investment

X| Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors, Directors of the company have no interest in
majority shareholders and their relatives, if any, the investee company except in their capacity
in the associated company or associated as sponsor / director / shareholder of holding
undertaking or the transaction under consider- company
ation

Xl In case an investment in associated company | The Company has an equity investment in
has already been made, the performance AHL.
review of such investment including complete
information / justification for any impairments / Performance of AHL can be referred in Point
write-offs Il and V above.

Xl Any other important details necessary for None

the members to understand the transaction
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X1V Category-wise amount of investment Fresh limit for issuance of Guarantee up to PKR 1
billion is requested for approval. This is in the
addition to PKR 3 billion requested for renewal for
previously sanctioned limit of guarantee and
renewal requested for previously sanctioned limit
of PKR 1.5 billion as running finance / advance /
loan

XV Average borrowing cost of the investing Not applicable as the proposed facility is
company, the KIBOR for the relevant period, unfunded.

rate of return for Shariah compliant products and
rate of return for unfunded facilities, as the case
may be, for the relevant period

XVI Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or Negotiable, in line with  prevailing
commission etc. to be charged by investing commercial rates for similar unfunded
company facilities.

XVII Particulars of collateral or security to be Letter of Indemnity will be obtained from AHL
obtained in relation to the proposed investment before execution of unfunded facility.

XVIII If the investment carries conversion feature, | Not applicable

terms and condition, triggering circumstances
and other details thereof

XIX Repayment schedule and terms and conditions | Not applicable
of loans or advances to be given to the
associated company or associated undertaking

Following directors of the company have no interest in the investee companies except in their capacity as
director / shareholder

Mr. Arif Habib - Chief Executive and shareholder of Arif Habib Corporation Limited,
which is the holding company of Arif Habib Limited

- Director and shareholder of Aisha Steel Mills Limited

- Shareholder of Power Cement Limited

- Director and shareholder of Javedan Corporation Limited

- Director and shareholder of National Resources (Private) Limited

Mr. Asadullah Khawaja - Chief Executive and shareholder of Arif Habib Corporation Limited,
which is the holding company of Arif Habib Limited

Mr. Sirajuddin Cassim - Chief Executive and shareholder of Arif Habib Corporation Limited,
which is the holding company of Arif Habib Limited

Ms. Zeba Bakhtiar - Chief Executive and shareholder of Arif Habib Corporation Limited,
which is the holding company of Arif Habib Limited

Mr. Nasim Beg - Director and shareholder of Arif Habib Corporation Limited, which is the

holding company of Arif Habib Limited

- Director and shareholder of Aisha Steel Mills Limited

- Director and shareholder of Power Cement Limited

Mr. Muhammad Ejaz - Director and shareholder of Arif Habib Corporation Limited, which is the
holding company of Arif Habib Limited

- Director and shareholder of Javedan Corporation Limited

Mr. Samad A. Habib - Director and shareholder of Arif Habib Corporation Limited, which is the
holding company of Arif Habib Limited

- Director and shareholder of Aisha Steel Mills Limited
- Director and shareholder of Power Cement Limited
- Chief Executive and shareholder of Javedan Corporation Limited

Mr. Kashif A. Habib - Director and shareholder of Arif Habib Corporation Limited, which is the
holding company of Arif Habib Limited

- Director and shareholder of Aisha Steel Mills Limited
- Chief Executive and shareholder of Power Cement Limited
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ANNEXURE C

Statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017, in compliance with Regulation 4(2) of
Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017, for
decision to make investment under the authority of a resolution passed earlier pursuant to provisions
of Section 208 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (Repealed) / Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017
is not implemented either fully or partially:

The Company in its previous general meetings had sought approvals under section 208 of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (repealed) / section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 for investments in the following
Associated Companies and Associated Undertakings in which investment has not been made so far, either
fully or partially. Approval of renewal of unutilised portion of equity investments and sanctioned limit of loans,
advances, running finance and corporate guarantee are also hereby sought for the companies, in which
directors of the company have no interest except in their capacity as director / shareholder, as per following
details for a period upto next annual general meeting, unless specifically approved for a longer period. In the
26th AGM of AGM held in 2020, the already approved respective limits for long-term loans / running finance
were approved to be consolidated, and accordingly the Company may utilise the consolidated limit at its
discretion for extending long-term loans and / or running finance and / or advances; provided that sum of
respective natures of investments so extended does not exceed the already approved investment limit in the
aggregate. Provided further that the limit so utilised to the extent of extending long term loan shall be
exhausted and shall not be renewable in next general meeting(s) :

1 Name of associated company / undertaking : Javedan Corporation Limited

LOANS & ADVANCES IN THE NATURE OF:
S.No. Description INVESTMENT IN
SECURITIES RUNNING FINANCE CORPORATE
GUARANTEE
a) | total investment approved; 3,250,000,000 2,231,550,000 200,000,000
b) | amount of investment made to date; 2,875,255,638
; iti Facility is in the nature Facility is in the
c) | reasons for not having made complete Waiting for an s
) investment so far whereresolution required appropriate time in | of running finance and | nature of Guarantee
it to be implemented in specified time; and the interest of the availed as & when ol
p P ’ shareholders for needed in the interest Wh?nrger:ggggfdﬂl]nethe
complete utilisation of the shareholders shareholders
d) material change in financial statements of
associated company or associated undertaking
since date of the resolution passed for approval FY2021 FY2020
of investment in such company :
i |Earnings per share - basic & diluted 1.04 0.75
i |Net Profit 331,240,000 236,700,000
iii [Shareholders Equity 17,852,266,000 17,523,410,000
iv |Total Assets 27,998,944,000 26,154,969,000
v_|Break-up value 56.25 55.21
RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS Unutilised Sanctioned Sanctioned
REQUESTED FOR PORTION LE. : 374,744,362 2,231,550,000 200,000,000
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2 Name of associated company / undertaking : Arif Habib Limited

Lo LOANS & ADVANCES IN THE NATURE OF:
S.No. Description INVESTMENT IN
SECURITIES RUNNING FINANCE CORPORATE
GUARANTEE
a) | total investment approved, 3,421,676,000 1,500,000,000 3,000,000,000
b) | amount of investment made to date; 2,931,230,887 - 2,171,915,625
_ _ iti Facility is in the nature Facility is in the
c) | reasons for not having made complete invest- a VYgltlrri]a?tefzotErﬁg in of running finance and nature of Guarantee
ment so far where resolution required it to be tﬁg in?erest of the availed as & when and availed as &
implemented in specified time; and hareholders f needed in the interest | when needed in the
snarefocers or of the shareholders interest of the
complete utilisation shareholders
d) | material change in financial statements of
associated company or associated undertaking EY2020
since date of the resolution passed for approval FY2021
of investment in such company : (Restated)
i | Earnings per share 35.08 1.00
i | Net profit 2,084,005,193 59,856,433
iii | Shareholders Equity 4,995,383,370 3,271,333,777
iv | Total Assets 8,471,502,159 6,869,053,991
v | Break-up value 84.10 55.07
RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS REQUESTED| Unutilised Sanctioned Sanctioned
O FORTIONLE = 490,445,113 1,500,000,000 3,000,000,000

3 Name of associated company / undertaking : MCB - Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited

L LOANS & ADVANCES IN THE NATURE OF:
S.No. Description INVESTMENT IN
SECURITIES RUNNING FINANCE CORPORATE
GUARANTEE
a) | total investment approved; 481,200,000 - -
b) | amount of investment made to date; 81,947,527 - -
) Waiting for an - -
c) | reasons for not having made complete appropriate time in
investment so far where resolution required it to the interest of the
be implemented in specified time; and shareholders for
complete utilisation
d)| material change in financial statements of
associated company or associated undertaking
since date of the resolution passed for approval Fy2021 FY2020
of investment in such company :
i | Earnings per share - basic & diluted 5.23 3.58
i | Net profit 376,434,163 257,669,113
iii | Shareholders Equity 1,603,129,589 1,550,695,426
iv| Total Assets 2,375,510,961 2,265,572,401
v | Break-up value 22.27 21.54
RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS REQUESTED | Unutilised Sanctioned Sanctioned
FOR PORTION IE. : 399,252,473 - -

@ Arif Habib Corporation Limited




4 Name of associated company / undertaking : Pakarab Fertilizers Limited

L LOANS & ADVANCES IN THE NATURE OF:
S.No. Description INVESTMENT IN
SECURITIES RUNNING FINANCE CORPORATE
GUARANTEE
a) [total investment approved,; 2,324,332,000 1,000,000,000 -
b) |amount of investment made to date; 1,324,332,073 - -
) Waiting for an Facility is in the nature
c) | reasons for not having made complete appropriate time in | ©of running finance and
investment so far where resolution required the interest of the availed as & when -
it to be implemented in specified time; and shareholders for needed in the interest
complete utilisation of the shareholders
d) | material change in financial statements of
associated company or associated undertaking
since date of the resolution passed for approval FY2020 FY2019
of investment in such company :
i |Earnings / (loss) per share 2.46 9.17)
i |Net profit / (loss) 1,107,142,000 (4,125,072,000)
i [Shareholders Equity 9,322,554,000 4,897,169,000
iv | Total Assets 36,650,937,000 43,051,033,000
v |Break-up value 20.72 10.88
RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS Unutilised Sanctioned Sanctioned
REQUESTED FOR PORTION I.E. : 999,999,927 1,000,000,000 -

5 Name of associated company / undertaking : Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited

L LOANS & ADVANCES IN THE NATURE OF:
S.No. Description INVESTMENT IN
SECURITIES RUNNING FINANCE CORPORATE
GUARANTEE
a) |total investment approved,; 2,500,000,000 1,000,000,000 -
b) [amount of investment made to date; 700,037,106 - -
c) | reasons for not having made complete Waiting for an Facility is in the nature
investment so far where resolution required it to appropriate time in of running finance and
be implemented in specified time; and the interest of the availed as & when -
shareholders for needed in the interest
complete utilisation of the shareholders
d) | material change in financial statements of
associated company or associated undertaking
since date of the resolution passed for approval FY2020 FY2019
of investment in such company :
i |Earnings per share 6.32 5.75
i |Net profit 13,274,691,000 12,069,682,000
ii | Shareholders Equity 87,102,656,000 78,008,298,000
iv | Total Assets 157,556,890,000 155,116,305,000
v |Break-up value 41.48 37.15
RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS Unutilised Sanctioned Sanctioned
REQUESTED FOR PORTION I.E. : 1,799,962,894 1,000,000,000 -
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6 Name of associated company / undertaking : Rotocast Engineering Company (Private) Limited

o LOANS & ADVANCES IN THE NATURE OF:
S.No. Description INVESTMENT IN
SECURITIES RUNNING FINANCE CORPORATE
GUARANTEE
a) | total investment approved; 300,000,000 500,000,000 -
b) | amount of investment made to date; - - -
. Waiting for an Facility is in the nature -
c) | reasons for not having made complete appropriate time in | of running finance and
investment so far where resolution required the interest of the availed as & when
it to be implemented in specified time; and shareholders for needed in the interest
complete utilisation of the shareholders
d) | material change in financial statements of
associated company or associated undertaking FY2020 FY2019
since date of the resolution passed for approval
of investment in such company :
i | Earnings per share 14.45 34.34
i [ Net profit 144,508,116 343,395,011
iii | Shareholders Equity 4,459,440,766 4,267,522,472
iv | Total Assets 6,324,910,093 5,768,133,699
v | Break-up value 445.94 426.75
RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS REQUESTED | Unutilised Sanctioned Sanctioned
FOR PORTION |.E. 300,000,000 500,000,000 -

7 Name of associated company / undertaking

. Arif Habib Dolmen REIT Management Limited

L LOANS & ADVANCES IN THE NATURE OF:
S.No. Description INVESTMENT IN
SECURITIES RUNNING FINANCE CORPORATE
GUARANTEE
a)| total investment approved, 1,000,000,000 500,000,000 -
b)| amount of investment made to date; - - -
. Waiting for an Facility is in the nature -
c)| reasons for not having made complete appropriate time in | of running finance and
investment so far where resolution required it to the interest of the availed as & when
be implemented in specified time; and shareholders for needed in the interest
complete utilisation of the shareholders
d)| material change in financial statements of
associated company or associated undertaking EY2021 EFY2020
since date of the resolution passed for approval
of investment in such company :
i | Earnings per share 0.28 1.23
i | Net profit 5,530,902 24,509,101
iii| Shareholders Equity 224,430,432 218,899,530
iv| Total Assets 681,002,416 231,871,523
v | Break-up value 11.22 10.94
RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS Unutilised Sanctioned Sanctioned
REQUESTED FOR PORTION LE.: 1.000.000.000 500.000.000 B
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8 Name of associated company / undertaking : Aisha Steel Mills Limited

LOANS & ADVANCES IN THE NATURE OF:

S.No. Description INVESTMENT IN
SECURITIES RUNNING FINANCE CORPORATE
GUARANTEE
a)| total investment approved: 4,250,000,000 2,539,206,765 (RF)* |PKR 5500,000,000 plus
& 163,404,133 (LTLy** | USD 80,000,000
i : 3,756,183,007 163,404,133 (LTL) [PKR23880,457,000 plus
b)| amount of investment made to date; (LTL) U<D 8,800,000 p
; Waiting for an Facility is in the nature Facility is in the
9| vestment S0 ar where resolton required itto | approprate tme in | of unning finance and | nature of Guaraniee
be implemented in Specified time: and the interest of the availed as & when and availed as &
’ shareholders for needed in the interest Wh?n?er}ggsg?tknethe
complete utilisation of the shareholders shareholders
d)| material change in financial statements of
associated company or associated undertaking
since date of the resolution passed for approval FY2021 FY2020
of investment in such company :
i | Earnings / (loss) per share - basic & diluted 8194 6.61 (0.89)
i | Net profit/ (loss) 6,368,348,000 (616,573,000)
iii| Shareholders Equity 14,466,584,000 8,097,437,000
iv| Total Assets 36,523,517,000 34,530,748,000
v | Break-up value 1.2 9.96
RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS Unutilised Sanctioned Sanctioned
REQUESTED FOR PORTION L.E. - 103816003 |  2539.206,765 (RF)* | PKR5500000,000 pius
T 163,404,133 (LTL)** USD 80,000,000 **

*RF =

Running Finance

**LTL = Long Term Loan

***Approval of guarantee limit of any currency equivalent to USD 80 million has already been granted for 5 years by shareholders
in EOGM held on 30-Mar-19. The same is disclosed above for completeness of information.

9 Name of associated company / undertaking : Power Cement Limited

LOANS & ADVANCES IN THE NATURE OF:

S.No. Description INVESTMENT IN
SECURITIES RUNNING FINANCE CORPORATE
GUARANTEE
. PKR 500,000,000 plus
total investment approved, 3,822,000,000 1,000,000,000
3) n pprov USD 49,000,000 *
b) | amount of investment made to date; 3,268,933,266 - USD 9,635,620
_ Waiting for an Facility is in the nature Facility is in the
c) | reasons for not having made complete appropriate time in | of running finance and | nature of Guarantee
investment so far where resolution required it to tﬁe interest of the availed as & when and availed as &
be implemented in specified time; and shareholders for | needed in the interest | When needed in the
complete utilisation | of the shareholders interest of the
shareholders
d) | material change in financial statements of
associated company or associated undertakin FY2020
since date of the resolution passed for approva FY2021
of investment in such company : (Restated)
i | Earnings / (loss) per share 0.17 (3.41)
i | Net profit / (loss) 358,359,000 (3,621,629,000)
iii | Shareholders Equity 10,744,915,000 8,478,635,000
iv | Total Assets 45,491,678,000 45,501,205,000
v | Break-up value 10.10 11.49
e NERRLS T T oons | PRREB00Ops
e 553,066,734 1,000,000,000 USD 49,000,000 *

*Approval of guarantee limit of USD 49 million includes the following :

Any currency equivalent of USD 38 million was granted for 5 years by shareholders in EOGM held on 30-Mar-19; same
being disclosed above for completeness of information.
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10 Name of associated company / undertaking : Sachal Energy Development (Private) Limited

o LOANS & ADVANCES IN THE NATURE OF:
S.No. Description INVESTMENT IN
SECURITIES RUNNING FINANCE CORPORATE
GUARANTEE
a) | total investment approved; 3,500,000,000 1,000,000,000 USD 100,000,000
b) | amount of investment made to date; 2,746,465,560 - USD 60,000,000
, Waiting for an Facility is in the nature Facility is in the

c) | reasons for not having made complete aﬁpropriate timein | of running finance and | nature of Guarantee

investment so far where resolution required it to the interest of the availed as & when and availed as &

be implemented in specified time; and shareholders for | needed in the interest | When needed in the

complete utilisation |  of the shareholders interest of the
shareholders

d) | material change in financial statements of

associated company or associated undertaking FY2021 FY2020

since date of the resolution passed for approval

of investment in such company :
i | Earnings per share 5.83 5.72
ii | Net profit 1,864,137,972 1,830,985,197
iii | Shareholders Equity 8,879,410,417 7,015,272,445
iv | Total Assets 19,348,141,023 19,490,728,922
v_| Break-up value 27.75 21.92

RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS Unutilised Sanctioned Sanctioned

REQUESTED FOR PORTION LE. : 753,534,440 1,000,000,000 USD 100,000,000

11Name of associated company / undertaking : Safe Mix Concrete Limited

o LOANS & ADVANCES IN THE NATURE OF:
S.No. Description INVESTMENT IN
SECURITIES RUNNING FINANCE CORPORATE
GUARANTEE
a) |total investment approved; 150,000,000 150,000,000 -
b) |amount of investment made to date; - - -
: Waiting for an Facility is in the nature
c) | reasons for not having made complete - approlplrigte timein | of rllrlltxi:wgl finance aLLJnd
investment so far where resolution required it to the interest of th iled as & wh
be implemented in specified time; and € imerest orine avared as & wnen
’ shareholders for needed in the interest
complete utilisation of the shareholders
d) | material change in financial statements of
associated company or associated undertaking
since date of the resolution passed for approval FY2020 FY2019
of investment in such company :
i |(Loss)/earnings per share (3.95) (1.19)
i |Net (loss) / profit (98,777,041) (29,771,054)
iii | Shareholders Equity 177,356,035 188,148,433
iv | Total Assets 490,062,787 608,474,409
v |Break-up value 7.09 7.53
RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS Unutilised Sanctioned Sanctioned
REQUESTED FOR PORTION L.E. : 150,000,000 150,000,000 -

@ Arif Habib Corporation Limited




12Name of associated company / undertaking : Dolmen City REIT

S.No.

Description

INVESTMENT IN

LOANS & ADVANCES IN THE NATURE OF:

SECURITIES RUNNING FINANCE CORPORATE
GUARANTEE
a) | total investment approved,; 1,000,000,000 - :
b) [ amount of investment made to date; 201,492,133 - -
c)| reasons for not having made complete ap\é\ﬁggir?gtéq[rinag in i i
investment so far where resolution required it | G A% ke oo Ot the
to be implemented in specified time; and shareholders for
complete utilisation
d)| material change in financial statements of
approval of investment in such company :
i | Earnings per unit 3.87 3.65
ii | Net Profit 8,609,987,000 8,117,883,000
iii | Total unitholders fund 57,424,053,000 51,282,373,000
iv| Total Assets 58,084,224,000 52,034,420,000
v | Net Asset Value per share 25.82 23.06
RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS Unutilised Sanctioned Sanctioned
REQUESTED FOR PORTION IL.E. : 798,507,867 - R

13Name of associated company / undertaking : National Resources (Private) Limited

LOANS & ADVANCES IN THE NATURE OF:

S.No. Description INVESTMENT IN
SECURITIES RUNNING FINANCE CORPORATE
GUARANTEE
a) |total investment approved,; 150,000,000 - -
b) | amount of investment made to date; 99,993,500 - -
c) | reasons for not having made complete a V\ﬁg't'r?gtéotrmig in - -
investment so far where resolution required it tﬁg inFt)erest of the
to be implemented in specified time; and shareholders for
complete utilisation
d) | material change in financial statements of
associated company or associated undertak-
ing since date of the resolution passed for FY2021 FY2020
approval of investment in such company :
i |Loss per share (3.08) (2.45)
i |Netloss (321,776,693) (88,141,622)
iii | Shareholders Equity 600,612,126 237,388,819
iv | Total Assets 611,522,391 247,383,811
v |Break-up value 5.75 6.59
RENEWAL IN PREVIOUS LIMITS Unutilised Sanctioned Sanctioned
REQUESTED FOR PORTION IL.E. : 50,006,500 - k.
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FORM OF PROXY 27TH
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company Secretary

Arif Habib Corporation Limited
Arif Habib Centre

23, M.T. Khan Road

Karachi.
I/ we of being a member(s)
of Arif Habib Corporation Limited holding ordinary shares as per
CDC A/c. No hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss
of (full address)
or failing him/her
Mr./Mrs./Miss of (full address)

(being member of the company) as my/our Proxy to attend, act vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at
the Twenty Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 28 October2021.and/or

any adjournment thereof.

Signed this dayof _ 2021.

Witnesses:
1.

Name : Signature on
Address : Rs. 5/-
CNIC No. : Revenue Stamp
Signature :

Name :
Address :
CNIC No. :
Signature :

NOTES:

1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as his / her
proxy who shall have such rights as respects attending, speaking and voting at the meeting as are
available to a member.

Proxy shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC / passport and bring folio
number at the time of attending the meeting.

In order to be effective, the proxy Form must be received at the office of our Registrar M/s. CDC
Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi, not later than 48 hours before the meeting duly signed and stamped and witnessed by two
persons with their signature, name, address and CNIC number given on the form.

In the case of individuals attested copies of CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy
shall be furnished with the proxy Form.

In the case of proxy by a corporate entity, Board of Directors resolution/power of attorney and
attested copy of the CNIC or passport of the proxy shall be submitted alongwith proxy Form.
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A 4 Arif Habib Corp

Arif Habib Centre

23, M. T. Khan Road

Karach-74000

Tel: +02 21 32460717-19

Fax: +92 21 32468117, 32429653
Company website: www.arifhabibcorp.com
Group website: www.arifhabib.com.pk
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